Swindon Borough Council

Cabinet Panel on School Organisation
Monday, 20 October 2008

Committee Room 6, Civic Offices
(Anticipated meeting room)

At 5.30 p.m.

Conservative Councillors
Roderick Bluh (Deputy)
Fionuala Foley

Peter Greenhalgh
(Deputy)

Nick Martin (Deputy)
Garry Perkins (Deputy)
David Renard

Justin Tomlinson

Colin Lovell

Brian Mattock

Philip Young (Deputy)

Committee Officer: lan Willcox, 463601, iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk

Swindon Borough Council can be contacted at the Civic Offices, Euclid Street, Swindon,
SN1 2JH (Telephone 01793 463000)

AGENDA

1. Appointment of Chair.
2.  Apologies for Absence.

3. Declarations of Interest.
Members are reminded that at the start of the meeting they should declare any known
interests in any matter to be considered, and also during the meeting if it becomes
apparent that they have an interest in the matters being discussed.

4. Minutes. (Pages 1 -4)
To receive and note the minutes of the meeting held on 5" June 2008.

5. Public Question Time.
See explanatory note below. Please phone the Committee Officer whose name and
number appears at the top of this agenda if you need further guidance.

6. Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to Allow
the Expansion of Swindon Academy. (GDC) (GH & P); (MOR); (PEN);
(Pages 5 - 224)

Appendix 9 (Government Guidance) is attached as a separate Annex circulated



with the Agenda Papers.
Date of Despatch: 21 October 2008

Key:

Officers:
GDC Group Director: Children

Wards

GH&P - Gorse Hill and Pinehurst
PEN - Penhill
MOR - Moredon

Cabinet Members Responsible for the Service Area concerned:

RB - Roderick Bluh Leader of the Council and Chair of Cabinet
FF - Fionuala Foley = Deputy Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for
Corporate Affairs, Vice-Chair of Cabinet
PG - Peter Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and
Greenhalgh Strategic Planning
NM - Nick Martin Cabinet Member for Resources
GP - Garry Perkins Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
DR - David Renard Cabinet Member for Health, Housing and Adult
Social Care
JT - Justin Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and Recreation
Tomlinson
CL - Colin Lovell Cabinet Member for Community and
Neighbourhoods
BM - Brian Mattock Cabinet Member for Local Environment
PY - Philip Young Cabinet Member for Economic Development,

Regeneration and Development

Role / Terms of Reference - The Cabinet Panel on School Organisation (a Sub-
Committee of Cabinet) was established by Cabinet in June 2007 to deal with issues
of School Organisation. This followed changes in legislation that led to School
Organisation Committees being abolished.

The Panel comprises of any 5 members of Cabinet for each meeting, will consider
the outcomes of consultation across a range of school organisation issues such as
school expansions, closures and opening of new schools subject to "competition
regulations”.

Public Question Time - Swindon Borough Council is committed to increasing its
accountability to the public and to promoting active citizenship. Up to 15 minutes will
be allowed at the start of all Council meetings for questions to the Chair from
members of the public about the work of the Committee (except for confidential
matters and specific planning applications). Questions must be relevant, clear and
concise. Because of time constraints Public Question Time is not an opportunity to
make speeches or statements. Prior notice of a question to the Director of Law and
Democratic Services is desirable - particularly if detailed background information is
needed.



Access Arrangements - The venue is wheelchair accessible and an infrared
receiver hearing system is provided. If you would wish to attend the meeting but
have any special requirement to enable you to do so please contact the Committee
Officer, whose name appears at the top of this agenda, as soon as possible prior to
the date of the meeting.

If you would like to receive any of the pages contained in this agenda in a larger print
size please contact the Committee Officer whose name appears on the first page of
this agenda.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

CABINET PANEL ON SCHOOL ORGANISATION
THURSDAY, 5 JUNE 2008

PRESENT:- Councillors Fionuala Foley (Chair), Nick Martin, Garry Perkins,
Colin Lovell and Brian Mattock.

1. Appointment of Chair

Resolved — That Councillor Fionuala Foley Chair this meeting of the Panel.
(Councillor Fionuala Foley took the Chair.)

2. Declarations of Interest

The Chair reminded Members of the need to declare any known interests in
any matters to be considered at the meeting.

3. Public Question Time

The following question was asked in accordance with Standing Order 28.

Questioner

Mr. James Relph, Governor, Haydonleigh Primary School, Swindon.

As Cabinet are already aware, the Governing Body of Haydonleigh Primary
School have serious concerns over the ability of the school to cope in the
eventuality that admission numbers increase to 2 form entry on a permanent
basis. Even though our premises clearly need to expand in order to cope with
additional numbers, we have been led to believe that budgets for this year have
already been allocated and that the money needed for such expansion may not be
easily found. Given that the alternative way of dealing with the admissions crisis
would be to transport children from the northern sector to schools with
spare capacity, can Haydonleigh's Governing Body be given assurances that, if the
decision to increase admission numbers permanently is taken, the money that
would have been spent on the cost of transporting children will be used to offset
some of the hardships that the schools taking the increased numbers are going to
face?

Response
The Chair thanked Mr. Relph for his question. She advised that as the

Cabinet Panel on School Organisation was made up of only five members of the
Cabinet and had a specific remit in respect of school organisation matters only, it
was, unfortunately, not appropriate for a response to be provided to this particular
question in this forum, and she suggested to the questioner that the question should
more appropriately be re-submitted to a future meeting of the Cabinet itself for
response, and that she would welcome his or other governors attendance at the
Cabinet to ask the question, or at a future meeting of the Cabinet Open Forum when
the issue could also be discussed.

4. The Permanent Expansion of Abbey Meads, Catherine Wayte and
Haydonleigh Primary Schools.

The Group Director, Children submitted a report concerning proposals to

Page 1



permanently expand Abbey Meads, Catherine Wayte and Haydonleigh Primary
Schools in the Swindon Northern Sector. The Cabinet had considered the outcome
of pre-statutory consultation and authorised the publication of statutory proposals to
permanently expand the three schools at its meeting on 13" February 2008. (Minute
125 2007/08 refers.)

Following legal advice by Mr. Andrew Ferguson, Head of Litigation on the
required statutory process and a presentation of the proposals by Mr. lan Bickerton,
Director of Access and Provision, and Mr. Gareth Cheal, Admissions Manager, the
Cabinet Panel considered the proposals in detail and, in particular, (a) the reasons
why the Council was proposing the expansion, (b) the responses received following
the publication of the statutory notices, and (c) the guidance provided to decision
makers by the Department for Children, Schools and Families on the key factors to
be taken into account in the reaching of a decision on whether or not to support the
expansion of a mainstream school.

Mr. James Relph, Governor, Haydonleigh Primary School, advised that whilst
Haydonleigh Primary School recognised the need for, and had no objections to, the
proposed expansion plans, it did have concerns at the pressure that the expansion
would have on existing school infrastructure and that it was hoped that the Council
would be able to identify additional funding to help it provide improved facilities for
the newly expanded school.

Ms. Laura Brierley, Head of Catherine Wayte Primary School, expressed her
support for the proposed expansion plans, but reminded the Cabinet Panel that her
school was also experiencing pressures on existing school infrastructure as a result
of increased numbers of pupils. She also hoped that the Council would be able to
identify funding to enable action to be taken to overcome the impact of this
pressure.

The Chair and Councillor Garry Perkins, Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services, commented that the Council fully understood the concerns felt by the
schools. The Council was very appreciative that the three schools had agreed to
expand to admit extra pupils due to the pressure on primary school places as a
result of housing growth in this area. Capital funding had already been agreed to
provide the extra accommodation for classes, and it was also recognised that the
extra pupil numbers in the schools would place more pressure on the infrastructure
and facilities. Whilst it must be recognised that the Council has only a finite amount
of capital funding available and many priorities for work in schools across the
Borough, the needs of the schools that are to be expanded are understood and the
Cabinet will be looking at these very seriously against other priorities when the
Capital programme is reviewed again during the year.

Resolved — That the Cabinet Panel on School Organisation advises that In
reaching its decision it has carefully considered the report of the Group Director,
Children, the representations of the Director, the representations from the schools
attending the Panel meeting, and the Department for Children, Schools and
Families Decision Makers Guidance for expanding a mainstream school.

Before making its decision, and in accordance with the Department for

Children, Schools and Families Guidance, the Cabinet Panel has considered the
following matters:-

Page 2



a. Was any information missing in order to reach a decision?

The Cabinet Panel was satisfied that all necessary information was
present.

b. Does the published Notice comply with statutory requirements?

The Cabinet Panel was satisfied that the Notices complied with statutory
requirements in the case of each school.

C. Has the statutory consultation been carried out prior to the publication of
the Notice?

The Cabinet Panel was satisfied that the necessary statutory consultation
had taken place in respect of each school.

d. Are the proposals linked or related to other published proposals?

The Cabinet Panel was satisfied that the three proposals it was
considering are linked and that there are no other current published
proposals that should be considered at the same time.

The Cabinet Panel's decision on the proposals to permanently expand Abbey
Meads, Catherine Wayte and Haydonleigh Primary Schools is as follows:-

a. To approve the proposals, as set out in the statutory Notice attached
as Appendix 3 to the report of the Group Director, Children, to
permanently expand Abbey Meads Primary School.

b. To approve the proposals, as set out in the statutory Notice attached
as Appendix 4 to the report of the Group Director, Children, to
permanently expand Catherine Wayte Primary School.

C. To approve the proposals, as set out in the statutory Notice attached
as Appendix 5 to the report of the Group Director, Children, to
permanently expand Haydonleigh Primary School.

The reasons for the Cabinet Panel's decision to approve the above proposals were
as follows:-

Creating Additional Places

The Cabinet Panel felt that there was strong evidence to support the need to
create additional places at the above schools in order to enable parents
within the Swindon Northern Sector to obtain a place within a local school,
bearing in mind that there is no other spare capacity within the other schools
in the Northern Sector, and the identified increasing demand for places in the
Northern Sector from September 2008, as set out in the table at Paragraph
2.1 in the report of the Group Director, Children.

Page 3



Affect on Standards and School Improvement

The proposals will match school place supply as close as possible to pupils
and parents needs and wishes, and achieve the Government's and the
Council's aim to ensure that every child receives an excellent education.
Abbey Meads, Catherine Wayte and Haydonleigh Primary Schools contribute
to raising standards in English and Mathematics. For the Local Authority
these are currently above the national average.

Expansion of Successful and Popular Schools

Abbey Meads, Catherine Wayte and Haydonleigh primary School have a
history of over subscription of admissions that highlights their popularity with
parents. The schools are judged by OFSTED to be good to outstanding
during recent inspections.

Travel and Accessibility for All

The proposals will not have the effect of unreasonably extending journey
times or increasing transport costs. If the proposals did not proceed due to
the demand for places in the Northern Sector area there would be an
increase of transport costs and an extension of journeys for parents.

Capital Funding

The Cabinet Panel is satisfied that any capital funding required to implement
the proposals will be available.

Special Educational Needs Provision

The Cabinet Panel is satisfied that the proposals will not affect the current
level of Special Educational Needs Provision in that the Abbey Meads,
Catherine Wayte and Haydonleigh Primary Schools will continue to offer a
range of provision to respond to the needs of the individual children.

Views of Interested Parties

The Cabinet Panel considered the views of interested parties, as expressed
in the pre-statutory consultation, and noted that there was a significant
majority in support of the proposals. It was also noted that there had been no
objections or comments made to the statutory Notices.

Page 4



Agenda Item 6

Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

Author: Group Director, Children

Parish / Wards Affected: Penhill, Gorse Hill and Pinehurst and Moredon

Purpose

To report on the outcome of the statutory representation period on the proposal to
close Penhill Primary School and Nursery to allow the expansion of Swindon Academy
on the existing site in refurbished accommodation with effect from 1% January 2009.

Recommendation
Cabinet Panel is requested to:

e approve the proposals as set out in the statutory notice, attached as Appendix 6,
to close Penhill Primary and Nursery Schools, subject to a condition that the
Secretary of State makes an agreement for the expansion of Swindon Academy by
31°%' December 2008.

1. Reasons

1.1  The aim of the proposed closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery is
to allow the expansion of Swindon Academy and therefore to improve the
overall quality of education provided for the children of Penhill and, in
particular, to raise educational standards and strengthen the development
of good practice.

2. Detail
Background

2.1  The Cabinet initially considered a proposal to close Penhill Primary and
Nursery to allow the expansion of Swindon Academy at its 31%' October
2007 meeting, where the request for permission to submit an Expression
of Interest to the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF)
was granted.

2.2  Following the decision to submit an expression of interest to the DCSF,
the Cabinet at the 31% January 2008 meeting authorised the Group
Director, Children to consult with parents, staff and governors of Penhill
Primary School on the proposal, subject to approval from the DCSF and
appropriate funding being identified.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 5



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.3

Copies of these two reports to Cabinet are attached as Appendix 1.

Pre-statutory Consultation Period

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) describes five
key stages in making changes to schools. These are:

Consultation (Pre-statutory)
Publication

Representation Period (Statutory)
Decision

Implementation

The Local Authority’s pre-statutory consultation process ran from 1 June —
14 July 2008. The Local Authority consultation document, together with
the United Learning Trust (ULT) consultation document, were both sent to
every household in Penhill, together with a number of other key
stakeholders, on the weekend of 31 May/1June 2008. The consultation
documents are attached as Appendix 2 and Appendix 3.

Formal consultation meetings were held separately for parents and carers
(two meetings) and for staff and Governors on 9 June 2008. A further
meeting was held for the public on 12 June 2008. DJB, independent
consultants appointed by the ULT, chaired the meetings and a ULT
representative also attended. The final DJB consultation report is attached
as Appendix 4.

The outcomes of the pre-statutory consultation were presented to the
Cabinet at its meeting on 23 July 2008. The Cabinet agreed that statutory
representation should be carried out on the proposal that Penhill Primary
School and Nursery should be closed in order to allow the expansion of
Swindon Academy with effect from 31 December 2008, on the basis that it
becomes part of The Swindon Academy with effect from 1 January 2009.
This was on the basis that the school would remain on its existing site in
Penhill, and the accommodation would be subsequently refurbished. The
report to Cabinet is attached as Appendix 5.

Statutory Representation Process

2.8

The Local Authority’s statutory representation process ran from 14 August
to 25 September 2008. The representation period is the final opportunity
for people and organisations to express their views about the proposals
and ensures that the Cabinet Panel will take them into account.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 6



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.9

Notices were published in the Swindon Advertiser, at the school gates, at
community facilities in Penhill and sent to the relevant stakeholders
identified by the Education and Inspections Act 2006 and the School
Organisation Regulations 2007. A copy of the Notice is attached as
Appendix 6.

Views of interested parties

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

There is one individual letter in support for the proposal from the Principal
of Swindon Academy. There are letters of objection from the National
Union of Teachers, Penhill Forum, Swindon Association of Primary
Headteachers and the Headteacher of Penhill Primary School. In
addition, there are 41 standard objections from staff at Penhill Primary
School, 11 standard objections from governors at Penhill Primary School
and 163 objections from parents/residents.

Copies of the individual letters of support and objection are attached to
Appendix 7. Due to the number of standard letters of objection received,
only one example of each from staff, governors and parents is attached to
Appendix 7. A full set of all objection letters and the letter of support will
be provided separately to Cabinet Panel Members, to the Chair of
Governors and Headteacher of Penhill Primary School, to the Penhill
Forum and to the Principal of Swindon Academy. A limited number of
further copies will be made available.

As indicated above, a substantial number of responses were received
during the statutory representation period, and many of the issues raised
are very similar to those raised during the pre-statutory consultation and
reported to Cabinet in July 2008.

The Local Authority’s responses to a number of the key issues raised are
set out in Appendix 8.

The key objections and issues raised included:

e There is no attainment evidence for Swindon Academy;

e The negative effect on the community of Penhill;

e The consultation was flawed, the officers did not follow the agreed
procedures and views were not listened to at the meetings;

e The partial nature of DJB consultants;

e The LA has not brought forward all the options for Penhill Primary
School e.g. Trust Status;
The expanded Swindon Academy will be too large;

e The funding is only available to Penhill Primary if it is part of the

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 7



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

expanded Academy;
e Personal experiences of Swindon Academy.

Key factors in relation to the proposal

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

The DCSF Decision Makers Guidance for Closing and Maintained
Mainstream School (attached in full at Appendix 9) requires that full
consideration be given to a number of Key Factors. The officers views on
the key factors are set out below:

A System Shaped by Parents

The Local Authority is responding to the Government's wish to see a
dynamic system in which:

e Weak schools that need to be closed are closed quickly and
replaced by new ones, where necessary;

e Schools are able to expand and spread their ethos and success;

e New providers have the opportunity to share their energy and
talents by establishing new schools.

The Local Authority is under a specific duty to respond to representations
from parents about the provision of schools, including requests
to establish new schools or make changes to existing schools.

The aim of the proposed closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
allow the expansion of Swindon Academy is to improve the overall quality
of education provided for the children of Penhill and, in particular, to raise
educational standards and strengthen the development of good practice.

Standards

Standards of attainment at the end of 2007 were inadequate and well
below the national average, although, overall, pupils made satisfactory
progress. The Ofsted inspection in September 2007 judged that
achievement overall across the School was satisfactory, although
performance was not consistent and varied across Year groups and
subjects.

The Ofsted inspection graded the school in twenty-seven areas. In two of
these areas — healthy lifestyles, and safe practices — the school received a
grade 2 (good). In twenty-three areas the school received a grade 3
(satisfactory) and in two areas it received a grade 4 (inadequate). These
two areas were the standards reached by learners’ and pupil attendance.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 8



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

This judgement confirms the view of the Local Authority that pupils in this
school are not attaining well enough at primary level to be successful in
their secondary school and on into life. Whilst the rate of pupil progress is
accelerating, the School did not exceed the floor targets of 65% for
English or Mathematics in 2008, meaning that standards will still be well
below the national average for the fifth year running. The DCSF require
the Local Authority to address this issue.

Penhill Primary School and Nursery is on the DCSF list of 266 “hard to
shift” primary schools in England and has failed to meet the floor target at
Key Stage 2 in both Mathematics and English for the last five years,
despite receiving considerable additional resources and support from the
Local Authority over a significant period of time. It is considered that a
structural solution is, therefore, required to move this School forward. If
the School became part of the Academy, it would benefit from the drive to
raise standards already evident within the Academy.

Academies

If this proposal is agreed, all pupils currently on roll at Penhill Primary
School would automatically transfer to the Academy. For pupils who do
not wish to transfer from Penhill Primary School to the Academy, there are
places available in other surrounding primary schools. See section entitled
Need for Places.

Diversity

Swindon has 48 community primary schools, 3 voluntary controlled
primary schools, 1 foundation primary school, 8 voluntary aided primary
school and 1 primary element of the existing Swindon Academy.
Therefore, Swindon is able to demonstrate a widely diverse range of
schools.

Every Child Matters

Swindon’s extended services are delivered across a cluster of schools and
are available across the Borough. Twenty out of the twenty-four schools
within a two-mile radius of Penhill Primary School deliver the full core offer
of extended services. A further 3 deliver childcare.

Need for places: Provision for Displaced Pupils

There is sufficient capacity to accommodate any pupils who do not wish to
attend the Academy in the future, taking into account the overall supply

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 9



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

and likely future demand for places area (see table 1 below) at schools
within a 2 mile radius (see map below).

Table 1

Estimated Number on roll No. of

Type

Jan

Jan

Jan

Jan

Jan Yr

2009 2010 2011 2012

2012 Groups

Capacity

Abbey Meads | Community | 303 | 308 | 317 | 354 | 386 7 315

Beechcroft Community | 241 | 236 | 245 | 259 | 272 3 270

Infant

Bridlewood Community | 219 | 233 | 233 | 224 | 210 7 210

Catherine Community | 333 | 341 | 351 | 366 | 385 7 315

Wayte

Ferndale Community | 313 | 312 | 321 | 349 | 360 7 420

Gorse Hill Community | 161 | 168 | 171 | 172 | 172 3 179

Infant

Gorse Hill Community | 212 | 207 | 202 | 220 | 226 4 240

Junior

Grange Infant | Community | 270 | 265 | 265 | 263 | 266 3 300

Grange Junior | Community | 347 | 344 | 337 | 345 | 356 4 450

Greenmeadow | Community | 239 | 233 | 229 | 233 | 234 7 270

Haydonleigh Community | 350 | 367 | 383 | 394 | 405 7 330

Haydon Wick | Community | 277 | 277 | 272 | 270 | 270 7 280

Moredon Community | 377 | 375 | 397 | 410 | 410 7 420

Orchid Vale Community | 182 | 202 | 205 | 211 | 211 7 210

Penhill Community | 303 | 301 | 319 | 334 | 334 7 490

Red Oaks Community | 416 | 420 | 420 | 423 | 423 7 420

Rodbourne Community | 171 | 167 | 162 | 161 | 162 7 210

Cheney

Ruskin Junior | Community | 380 | 376 | 368 | 371 | 364 4 389

Seven Fields | Community | 235 | 248 | 250 | 269 | 270 7 280

St Andrew’s Foundation | 207 | 200 | 201 | 206 | 216 7 210

CE

St Catherine’s | Voluntary 194 | 194 | 192 | 189 | 191 7 210

Catholic Aided

St Francis CE | Voluntary 198 | 242 | 286 | 329 | 358 7 210
Aided

St Mary’s Voluntary 258 | 257 | 255 | 260 | 262 7 268

Catholic Aided

Swindon Academy 385 | 389 | 399 | 410 | 416 7 420

Academy

Totals 6571 | 6662 | 6780 | 7033 | 7159 7316

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 10



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

Schools within a 2 mile radius of Penhill Primary School

%‘mu{u!lglﬂll

o
e P | E
a-—-:_/,f.bH-"'“‘énﬁau-L;’n. e
: i y o !
: Y R |
Ry i !I
N L

- i

? "o
ST Y, B Hami
INFgy BSN)
3

Table 2

ok

A
o ~ L
et 1S
iy gh/.—_tf
PR

Seanb,

& % 5 T
.,
&7
Lawer Widhill Mewlznds
Fri g [

N 6
Chapel; 257
Naﬁ& \
e 2=
1

= 0

Lower

k. =5 Blunsdar
% =

H wr =
Fer Widhils L A

B~ >+

T =
= H&tSIj St fndrews
!

F—

45 1is— 7 " - Hesi ; 7
b - 2 e :‘; AL st aanbust
% i Ao
. L R

adpole Fmy ;:J;E?Q““ ..é:T‘!J 5

[Bete 21 Tt
= J 97 [ Red gaks |590T B

7

. S

", . R T_'.}";L&f 1

i BN BN . 222 sobey e

i B —_ = X
L . ; T T
_,ﬁmhid wale éﬁ"}f Wl l‘t& 2 ,_—%L -

]
Bk ;as{?{f«jy_-,n Catherine iayte
10 :

:“:t St Francis g Haydonleigh i 1 = g A
Wl o L i ety L ¥ . -
{ 4}; i 1 “f i - "‘1 1 : St Catherines ~ i
- L 3 r I oL ¥ . ;- o ’ [y
z e i HAVAO W = k@—\ Sewven Fields R Y o A
YRR [cofien Ve vl Haydon wick (s g . 19 S rorer -'!l'v-, o wi
~ T B O - ] b Beacheroft uskin e | = ]
Y ﬁ} @l -] Greenmeadow || ot TR ; 7= eachene T | -
y = ] . b AR I¥ ]
2 4 L L :l‘-ﬂ,-!.-' Rodboume '51\-' [N 5] EU'SI{ LS L2 'E[a“cm-,;.: ; /}\:{4 S ark
i 1 ) e _‘:1 ? = i
3 i g R ol 2 SRSl el
3 L *1 &_j_'ll_"@r__ﬁ Swindon Acadermy 1‘%&):_]{" 4 1'-!—"-‘-- 5 %rga Gl f
& hﬁj tﬁf_._(j l'l_,—-’gAE it -:}U Py s p = 4 = r_‘ x';s.!- Grange Jnr i
= T adboume —i=ra,= ol s e = L
e = (Rl E -t \% ! L]
] o] ot *fﬁé@?j’ Feael RS TS
o HE A W) 3 il = =
¥ = — L L % n,\r 2 z
3= f NS S
| - EﬂrSﬁ]irrlll Gorse Hil [a /i 40 S50 e JIEQ{S’
d Femdale [[==4 == 7 sy \SIEr_ﬁlI':EI':‘Q &
< R LY Qe NN e
FRupa it ML = %\ ‘.:l""?::jﬂ"
L S -,.,; o e T \; ”‘%’;\ "
i Yl SRR = .
STy G G, g i, She
e L S T T
2N e, SO S R T e
N Sy ¢Febast AN R Y B
B {uw”uf_/'_“ 4 B
275 I g ) , P
T “'%“::: R s "ﬁf

o=t e el R i o ol
) e Jiieg

J L = U
SR s uﬂtﬁ\:é{ g 1 o

Ve N =
. et EE
o 1y %‘I:ﬂ \\—g-' %ﬁ‘%‘%@.;* = 1 ;%Tli%‘-]::l! iz

2.26 Impact on Community

All schools within the vicinity provide access to a good range of services,
so transport would not be required.

2.27 The new Penhill site and building will serve the community of Penhill, will
be involved with Regeneration Initiatives, and will be a facility for the
whole community complementing the existing facilities in the area.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 11



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

It is proposed that this new academy site will offer:

e Extended school activities, including leisure and sport, child care,
before and after school, holiday and weekend provision;

A Youth Service provision on-site;

Access to ICT and business facilities;

Access to larger spaces e.g. halls, drama studios;

The opportunity for some co-located health and social services
provision that reflect the priorities of the local community;

e Continuing education and learning opportunities for local people.

Parents will be expected to participate actively in the education of their
children, not just providing encouragement and support but also being fully
engaged in the home/school partnership and other aspects of Academy
life. The Academy will look to introduce modern and immediate ways to
communicate with parents.

Links will be established with other primary and secondary schools,
Further and Higher Education Colleges and local employers. It is expected
that the Academy will make a valuable contribution to promoting social
inclusion, equality and diversity.

Community Cohesion and Race Equality

All schools have had a duty to promote Community Cohesion from
September 2007 and are due to be inspected on their ability to fulfil that
duty from September 2008. The Commission on Integration and
Cohesion (2008) reports that in order to achieve a cohesive community,
people from different backgrounds should have similar life opportunities
and access to services and treatment. The proposal to close Penhill
Primary School to allow the expansion of Swindon Academy aims to
enhance the overall quality of the education of Penhill's children. This is
achieved by paying particular attention to those children who are currently
under performing and being aware of when equality of opportunity starts to
become a reality. Without equality, community cohesion cannot be
fostered.

In Swindon, Community Cohesion is borne out of all stakeholders working
together to facilitate high aspiration, create equity in terms of life
opportunities and achievements, increase awareness/appreciation of
difference and diversity, challenge discrimination, develop resilience to
manage change, promote connections between different communities and

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 12



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

2.38

encourage positive citizenship. All schools, including Swindon Academy
are called to meet this aspiration.

Travel and Accessibility for All

The proposals will not have the effect of unreasonably extending journey
times or increasing transport costs, or result in too many children being
prevented from sustainable travel due to unsuitable routes e.g. for
walking, cycling etc.

Equal Opportunity Issue

It is not envisaged that there will be any sex, race or disability
discrimination issues that arise from the changes being proposed.

Early Years Provision

The alternative provision has a memorandum of understanding with the
Children’s Centre in Penhill. This includes joint training, shared planning
and helps provide a continuum of support for families through the
provision of family support and childcare services. The Academy would
continue to provide an equivalent nursery provision at the Penhill site, if
this proposal is implemented.

Special Educational Needs (SEN) Provision

From 1 April 2005 it was agreed that there should be continued delegation
to Swindon schools of SEN Funds. This means that a primary school will
be required to provide the equivalent of the first 10 hours of teaching
assistant support (or its equivalent if a teacher is recommended), if a
student’'s needs are identified in a statement as requiring this level of
support.

All maintained schools in Swindon have in place a SEN Coordinator and a
nominated Governor with responsibility for Special Educational Needs. All
schools are required to determine whether a pupil should be placed at
School Action or School Action Plus of the Code of Practice. The latter
reflects the need for the school to call upon external expertise as well as
revising and enhancing the provision made by the school.

The triggers for School Action Plus are that, despite receiving an
individualised programme and concentrated support under school action,
the pupil continues to make little or no progress in specific areas over a
long period. There are several supporting elements essential for effective

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 13



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.39

2.40

2.41

2.42

action with or on behalf of pupils with special educational needs that
Swindon schools will have in place:

e The Governors’ Annual report;
e The school’'s SEN policy;
¢ Individual education plans for the pupil.

Each Swindon school has its own individual character and structures.
However, all pupils attending Swindon mainstream schools have an
entitlement to access a minimum level of provision if they have a special
educational need. Many schools allocate provision above the minimum
level.

The Local Authority consulted on, agreed and issued in Autumn 2002 the
document ‘SEN: the entitlement of pupils in mainstream schools’. This
fulfills the DCSF requirement that each Local Authority explains the
special educational provision it expects to be made from within maintained
schools budget shares [Special Educational needs (Provision of
Information by Local Education Authorities) (England) Regulations 2001].
This guidance is necessary because it sets out:

e The minimum entitlement to provision for special educational needs
for all Swindon pupils attending a mainstream school,

e Guidance for parents about what provision can be expected,;

e The joint understanding that schools and advisors need in order to
support their dialogue about individual pupils;

e The point of reference to enable the Local Authority to carry out its
statutory duty to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of special
educational needs provision.

There has been a significant reduction in the number of low attaining
pupils in 2008, compared to 2007:

e KS2 -9 pupils in 2008, compared to 18 in 2007
e KS1 - 0 pupils in 2008, compared to 10 in 2007.

Comparative progress made by pupils who were low attaining at the end
of KS1.

e Mathematics — There was a good improvement in the percentage of
low attaining pupils making 2 levels of progress, from 2007 to 2008

e Reading — A higher percentage of low attaining pupils made good
progress in 2008 than in 2007

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 14



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to

Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.43

2.44

e Writing - Low attaining pupils made similar progress in 2007 and
2008.

The number of pupils with statements was 8 in 2007 and 10 in 2008 in
Penhill Primary School. The Academy would provide an equivalent SEN
provision if the proposal were to be implemented. ULT have emphasized
the importance they attach to a caring, supportive environment for pupils
with SEN.

Ofsted commented on provision for SEN/LDD pupils: ‘The very high
proportion of pupils who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities
receive plenty of appropriate support from skilled staff.’

Views of interested parties

2.45 These are set out in paragraphs 2.10 — 2.14 of the report and in
Appendix 7.

Conclusions

2.46 As shown in Appendix 7, there are a significant number of objections that

2.47

2.48

have been expressed in the consultation. The strength of feeling is not
underestimated and the attention of the Cabinet Panel is drawn to the
issues raised in this Appendix. There has also been a clear view
expressed throughout the consultation that Trust Status would be a better
way forward.

However, it remains the view of officers that inclusion within the Academy
offers the best opportunity for a step change to address the serious
standards and attainment issues that Penhill Primary has faced for a
number of years. The arguments supporting this view are set out in
various places in this report and appendices, in particular:

e in paragraphs 2.16 — 2.21 above;

e in Appendix 8 which sets out the key issues raised in the
consultation and the responses to these by the Local Authority;

¢ in other appendices attached where the educational arguments in
particular are put forward, including the two consultation documents
(Appendices 2 and 3) and the report to Cabinet in July 2008
(Appendix 5).

This report in paragraphs 2.15 — 2.44 also addresses the Key Factors set
out in the DCSF Decision Makers Guidance (Appendix 9).

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 15



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

2.49 Finally, the covering report under Alternative Options below and in
Appendix 8, responds to the view expressed that Trust Status would be a
preferable alternative. It remains our view that, although Trust Status
would be a suitable way forward in certain circumstances, in this case, in
view of the seriousness of the issues highlighted throughout this report,
inclusion within the Academy offers a more effective and speedier route
for driving up standards and increasing pupil attainment.

2.50 Insummary, therefore, despite the best efforts of the school, with the
support of the Local Authority, Penhill remains in the DCSF list of 266
‘hard to shift’ primary schools out of approximately 17,000 nationally. The
DCSF require the Local Authority to address this issue. Inclusion within
the Academy is seen as the best and most effective way forward.

Alternative Options

The main alternative to not proceeding to the statutory consultation is to withdraw from
the proposal to close Penhill Primary School and Nursery to allow stage expansion of
the Academy. However, by taking this action, it is considered that a major opportunity
will be lost to raise standards and pupil attainment at the School. Despite very
considerable Local Authority support over a number of years, the School continues to
under-perform and it is felt that a structural change will provide the impetus to move the
School forward for the benefit of the pupils of Penhill. Other options, such as federating
with a successful school, have previously been considered but these have been
rejected, as it is not clear that they would have sufficient impact.

In addition, it will be seen that the Governing Body of Penhill Primary School proposed
during the consultation and representation period, that an alternative option for the
school may be to pursue Trust Status. Governors expressed the view that this
approach may give them greater control over their own future and could be a more
effective approach in their view of addressing improved standards and pupil attainment.
It does, however, remain the view of officers that inclusion within the Academy is a
better option, for the reasons set out in this report, and would offer a more effective
structural change for the school, with an established educational provider driving up
standards and attainment. The Academy would also be able to offer Penhill pupils
better transition from Year 6 to Year 7 and beyond, together with a wider range of
facilities and expertise. Further details on the Local Authority’s response to the Trust
Options is set out in Appendix 8.

Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

e The costs of publishing statutory proposals are contained within the Access and
Provision Directorate cash limit.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 16



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL

Date: 20 October 2008

e Itis proposed that up to £2.3m capital funding is made available to undertake work
at the School to bring the quality of accommodation up to a higher standard, so that
the new school is fit for purpose. This follows surveys carried out by the Local
Authority and, more recently, by United Learning Trust (ULT). A review of the
Children’s capital programme has identified that a number of schemes are currently
predicted to come in under budget and that the funding this will release, together
with external grant funding that is available, is sufficient to fund the expenditure
required as long as no more than half is needed in the current financial year.

e When a school becomes an Academy the funding that Local Authorities receive
direct from the Department of Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) for that
school is removed from the overall Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Due to the
funding of schools and the requirement to provide retained services from the DSG
l.e. Special Educational Needs assessments, out of Borough placement, there
maybe financial implications relating to the retained services due to variations
between the level of per pupil funding the Council receives from the DCSF
compared to the per pupil funding that is allocated directly to the school.

e Inthe current year, Swindon receives £3,775 per pupil from the DCSF. Based on
the January 2008 PLASC data 334 pupils attend Penhill school, therefore, the
amount of DSG that would be removed from Swindon’s allocation (assuming a full
year impact) would be £1.26m. The current funding formula within Swindon
allocates a total budget for Penhill of £1.079m. The difference of funding
contributes towards the retained services within the DSG. The table below
illustrates that if Penhill became part of the Academy from 01 January 2009 there
would be a reduction of grant, totalling £183k that currently supports the retained

services.
Based on 2008/09 budget & pupil numbers for Penhill
totalling 334
£'s £'s
DSG per pupll 3,775 Total reduction of 1,260,850
DSG

School Budget per 3,228 Total School 1,078,152

pupil Budgets

Difference per pupll 547 Total Difference 182,698

Legal / Human Rights Implications

The proposals to close Penhill primary school and Nursery are required under the
Education and Inspection Act 2006 to follow a 5 stage statutory process as set out

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 17




Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008
below:
1. The Local Authority is required to carry out a pre-statutory consultation.
2. Cabinet decision whether to publish proposals
3. 6 weeks period for representations (i.e objections or comments)
4. Cabinet Panel decides on the proposals.
5. Implementation if proposals approved

There is a right of appeal against the Cabinet decision to the Adjudicator but only by
the Local Church of England Diocese or The Bishop of the Local Roman Catholic
Diocese or the Governing Body or Trustees of a Foundation, Trust or Voluntary
Controlled School. Any appeal must be made within 1 month. There is no statutory
timescale for the Adjudicator to decide.

The Cabinet must follow DCSF Guidance entitled "Decision Makers Guidance for
Closing Maintained Mainstream Schools” when considering whether to approve the
proposals. A copy of the Guidance is attached as Appendix 9. The Guidance states
that the Cabinet should consider before judging respective factors and merits of the
proposals:

A. Is any information missing?

B. Does the published notice comply with statutory requirements.

C. Have the statutory consultation been carried out prior to the publication of the
notice?

D. Are the proposals linked or related to other published proposals?

The Guidance then sets out in paragraphs 4.16 to 4.62 factors that must be considered
by Cabinet in reaching its decision.

The Guidance states that all decision makers must give reasons for their decision
irrespective of whether the proposals were rejected or approved, indicating the main
factors/criteria for the decision.

The formal approval of the expansion of the Academy rests with the Secretary of State.
Therefore if the Cabinet decision is to approve the closure of Penhill Primary School
and Nursery to allow the expansion of the Academy, that decision will need to be
subject to a condition on the Secretary of state making an agreement for the expansion
of the Swindon Academy. If the closure and expansion of the Swindon Academy is
agreed, the Local Authority will need to enter into a Heads of Terms agreement with
United Learning Trust which will provide a guide to the legal framework required from
each party as part of the commitment should this proceed. The Heads of Terms is not

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 18




Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

legally binding but if agreed the legal documentation required will need to be
progressed urgently in order to meet the implementation timescales.

If the closure and expansion of the Academy is agreed then all employees will transfer
their employment to the United Learning Trust. All contractual rights will transfer under
the TUPE Regulations 2006. Staff will continue to contribute to both the Local
Government Pension Scheme and Teachers' Pension Scheme.

The Governors of Penhill school in their objection to the proposals have asked Cabinet
to consider as an alternative to closure of the school that the school become a Trust
school. In order to become a Trust School, Governors would have to follow a statutory
process that includes a pre-statutory consultation, the issue of a statutory notice, a
period for representations and the final decision being made by the Governing Body.
The decision will not be made by the Governing Body if the Local Authority refer the
proposals to the School Adjudicator at the representation stage.

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises)
e There is a direct link to the Strategic Management Plan for Children Services and

the proposed expansion of the Academy would support Council Promises 20 and
45.

Consultees

e The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Demaocratic
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

e There has been widespread consultation undertaken on these proposals as set out
above in the body of the report. Stakeholders consulted include:
o Parents
Staff
Governors
Local residents
Penhill Community Groups/Leaders
o Ward Councillors

O 0 OO

Background Papers and Appendices

Appendix 1 — Reports to Cabinet dated 31% October 2007 and 23™ January 2008
Appendix 2 — Local Authority pre-statutory consultation document

Appendix 3 — ULT consultation document

Appendix 4 — DJB final report

Appendix 5 — Report to Cabinet dated 23" July 2008

Appendix 6 — Statutory Notice to close Penhill Primary School

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 19



Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET PANEL Date: 20 October 2008

e Appendix 7 — Responses to Statutory Consultation

e Appendix 8 — Local Authority Responses to Key Issues Raised

e Appendix 9 — DCSF — Decision Makers Guidance for Closing a Maintained
Mainstream school

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 20



Appendix 1
Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET 31° October 2007

Author: Cabinet Member for Children Services and Group Director, Children
Parish / Wards Affected: Penhill; Gorse Hill and Pinehurst, Moredon and St Philips

Purpose
e To seek permission to express an interest to the Department for Children,
Schools and Families (DCSF) and the United Learning Trust (ULT) for the
expansion of the Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary School.

Recommendation
Cabinet is requested to

e Authorise the Group Director, Children to submit an expression of interest to the
Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) and United Learning
Trust for the expansion of the Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary
School.

e Authorise the Group Director and Lead Member Children to actively pursue
discussions with the Department for Children, Schools and Families and the
United Learning Trust, which attempt to secure the funding necessary to bring
the quality of estate at Penhill Primary School in line with the Swindon
Academy.

1. Reasons

a) Penhill Primary school is on the Department for Children, Schools and Families
(DCSF) list of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary schools in England and has failed to
meet the floor target at Key Stage two in both Maths and English for five years,
despite receiving considerable additional resource and support from the Local
Authority. The Local Authority considers that a structural solution is required to
move this school forward. If the school became part of the Academy it would
benefit from the drive to raise standards already evident in the Academy.

b) An all-through Academy can help pupils with the transition from one school to
another and provides continuity of teaching and learning for pupils. Evidence
shows that pupil performance dips, and pupil progress is slowed, as a result of
moving schools. In an area where raising standards of achievement is a key
priority between primary and secondary and where this has not to date been
successfully addressed through to age 16, it is vital that these barriers to
progress are removed. There are opportunities in the future for feeder schools to
the Academy to be more closely associated with the United Learning Trust, for

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles,
Director of Quality & Standards, on Direct Dial No. 465744 or Email
mcoles@swindon.gov.uk

Page 21



Appendix 1
Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET 31° October 2007

d)

f)

example through, Trust status. However, the critical issue of school standards in
Penhill School needs to be addressed,;

During the consultation phase for the Academy, it became clear that members of
the community of Penhill felt that their children might miss out on the Academy
development. Although children from the Penhill Primary School area will have
the opportunity to apply for a place at the Academy at the secondary school
stage, there is a perception that primary age children may be potentially
disadvantaged compared to those in the previous Pinehurst Schools, by being
excluded from the Academy arrangement.

The developing educational plans for the all-through Academy suggest that it will
break out from traditional year group structures and move towards working within
vertically organised systems where the needs of the individual learner can be
more readily met and personalised. Pupils will be able to progress according to
the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather than their chronological age.
Such a development may make it more difficult for the pupils of Penhill Primary
School to integrate into the Academy when they move at 11 years of age.

As well as helping to raise standards, the expansion of the Academy to include
Penhill Primary School would also promote inclusion and is likely to be highly
popular with parents in the area who will recognise the benefits attached to
continuity of care, especially for more vulnerable children.

In the same way, an all-through Academy would help the more effective
deployment of multi-agency approaches i.e. easier access, economies of scale
for all agencies involved, and closer relationships through more regular formal
and informal contacts, all resulting in an improved standard of provision for

pupils.

Detalil

2.1  The Swindon Academy, sponsored by Honda UK, and under the
governance of United Learning Trust (ULT), opened in September 2007.
The 0-19 Academy incorporates Headlands School, together with
Pinehurst Infant and Junior Schools.

2.2  If the recommendation in this report is accepted, Swindon Borough
Council and ULT would have to seek Department for Children, Schools
and Families permission to move to a consultation on expanding the
Academy to include Penhill Primary School.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles,
Director of Quality & Standards, on Direct Dial No. 465744 or Email
mcoles@swindon.gov.uk

Page 22



Appendix 1
Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET 31° October 2007

2.3  The final date for the expansion of the Academy to include Penhill will be
dependent on DCSF approval, the outcomes of the consultation, and ULT
agreement, and cannot be defined as this moment.

2.4 Penhill Primary School was inspected by Ofsted on 18"/19™ September
2007. The report on the inspection is attached as Appendix 1.

Alternative Options

The alternative options are:

To close Penhill School place planning means that option is not viable as there
are not sufficient places in neighbouring schools for displaced pupils;

To continue to support Penhill with substantial additional resource and advice.
This strategy has been in place for the last two years, without obvious effect;

To federate or amalgamate Penhill with a neighbouring community school. There
are no suitable schools in the close vicinity.

Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

A feasibility study needs to be carried out in order to identify whether it will be
necessary to refurbish Penhill Primary school to bring the quality of the provision
in line with that of the Academy, as well as to identify the source of funding if a
refurbishment is required. Although a refurbishment scheme has been under
consideration for some years, there is currently no capital funding available for
the necessary work within the Children’s Services Capital Programme. It is
proposed therefore that discussions should be held with the DCSF about this,
also involving ULT.

When a school becomes an Academy the funding that Local Authorities receive
direct from the Department of Children, Schools & Families (DCSF) for that
school is removed from the overall Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Due to the
funding of schools and the requirement to provide retained services from the
DSG i.e. special educational needs assessments, out of borough placement,
there may be financial implications relating to the retained services due to
variations between the level of per pupil funding the Council receives from the
DCSF compared to the per pupil funding that is allocated directly to the school.

In the current year Swindon has received £3,597 per pupil from the DCSF,
based on existing number of pupils at Penhill. The total amount of grant that
would be removed from the DSG (assuming a full year impact) would be

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles,
Director of Quality & Standards, on Direct Dial No. 465744 or Email
mcoles@swindon.gov.uk

Page 23




Appendix 1
Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET 31° October 2007

£1.370m. The current funding formula within Swindon allocates a total budget
for Penhill of £1.211m. The difference of funding contributes towards the
retained services within the DSG. The table below illustrates that if Penhill
becomes an Academy there would be a reduction of grant, totalling £159k that
currently supports the retained services.

Based on 2007/08 budget & pupil numbers for Penhill
totalling 381
£'s £'s
DSG per pupil 3,597 Total reduction of 1,370,457
DSG

School Budget per 3,178 Total School 1,210,762

pupil Budgets

Difference per pupil 419 Total Difference 159,695

Legal / Human Rights Implications
e Educational achievement is clearly linked to the life chances of individuals. The
actions taken by the Local Authority should seek to ensure that all groups and
individuals are able to achieve their full educational potential and so maximise
their choices and access to opportunities.

o If the DCSF give approval following the expression of interest for the proposal to
go forward, it will be necessary for a statutory process to be followed by the
Council to close Penhill School as required by the Education and Inspection Act
2006. This process will take approximately 5 months and include a two month
pre-statutory consultation, the publication of a formal notice, a further 6 weeks
statutory consultation and then a final decision by Cabinet.

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies
e Links to Promise 20 and Local Area Agreement Outcome 7.

Consultees
e  The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Democratic
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

Background Papers and Appendices
Appendix 1: Report on Penhill Primary School by the Office for Standards in Education

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles,
Director of Quality & Standards, on Direct Dial No. 465744 or Email
mcoles@swindon.gov.uk

Page 24



Appendix 1
Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET 31° October 2007

Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan

This is not a key decision and is included in the October 2007 Forward Plan

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles,
Director of Quality & Standards, on Direct Dial No. 465744 or Email
mcoles@swindon.gov.uk

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Oféted

raising standards
improving lives

Penhill Primary School

Inspection report

Unique Reference Number
Local Authority
Inspection number
Inspection dates
Reporting inspector

131902

Swindon

315885

18-19 September 2007
Liz Kounnou

This inspection of the school was carried out under section 5 of the Education Act 2005.

Type of school Primary
School category Voluntary aided
Age range of pupils 3-11
Gender of pupils Mixed
Number on roll
School 330
Appropriate authority The governing body
Chair Ben Schmidt
Headteacher L Rankin
Date of previous school inspection 17 March 2003
School address Alton Close
Penbhill
Swindon
SN2 5HF
Telephone number 01793 723677
Fax number 01793 723807
Age group 3-11
Inspection dates 18-19 September 2007

Inspection number 315885

Page 27



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007

© Crown copyright 2007

Website: www.ofsted.gov.uk

This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial educational purposes, provided that
the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of publication are stated.

Further copies of this report are obtainable from the school. Under the Education Act 2005, the school must
provide a copy of this report free of charge to certain categories of people. A charge not exceeding the full cost
of reproduction may be made for any other copies supplied.

Page 28



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 3of 11

Introduction
The inspection was carried out by three Additional Inspectors.

Description of the school

The school serves an area of significant economic and social deprivation. Around half the pupils
have some learning difficulties and/or disabilities, and this is far higher than the national
average. Children's attainment when they start school in the Nursery at age three is very low.
The proportion of pupils who are entitled to free school meals is among the highest in the
country. Very few pupils are from minority ethnic groups, a much lower proportion than is
typical. During the last academic year several unavoidable staffing problems resulted in a high
proportion of temporary teachers being employed.

Key for inspection grades

Grade 1 Outstanding
Grade 2 Good

Grade 3 Satisfactory
Grade 4 Inadequate

Page 29



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 4 of 11

Overall effectiveness of the school
Grade: 3

The school provides a satisfactory standard of education despite the very low standards reached
in English, mathematics and science. Standards are low partly because there is a very large
group of pupils who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Pupils' achievement is
satisfactory overall from the Foundation Stage to Year 6. Those who have learning difficulties
and/or disabilities make satisfactory progress in English and mathematics but make better
progress in their emotional development due to the school's good pastoral care for this group.
This is a school that rightly prides itself on the good pastoral care provided for pupils, particularly
for those who are vulnerable. The great majority of parents are pleased with the school because
their children are happy there. However, the guidance and support that pupils receive to help
them achieve well is satisfactory overall. Guidance for pupils often lacks challenge and
contributes to some underachievement for a very small minority of pupils. These are mainly
boys. Overall, boys reach standards that are considerably lower than girls throughout the school.

Teaching and learning are improving and are satisfactory in a large majority of classes and good
in a small minority, but in a few lessons pupils' progress slows considerably because teaching
is inadequate. In Year 6, good teaching enables pupils to catch up some of the lost ground.
The Foundation Stage provides a satisfactory start for children.

Leadership and management are satisfactory. Governors are fully involved in checking how
well the school is doing and planning for further improvement in partnership with the school
management team. This has led to a continued trend of improvement in standards, and in
teaching and learning. However, school leaders do not use all the information they gather
sufficiently well to plan how to bring about improvement where it is needed most. Consequently,
the school's strategic planning lacks a sharp focus, and does not spell out precisely what needs
to change in order to raise standards further. This is particularly evident in relation to raising
boys' attainment, where it is not clear what strategies senior staff expect to see in all lessons
to engage boys more effectively in learning.

Pupils are prepared adequately for the next stage of their education because they are confident
and work well together, but their literacy and numeracy skills are well below average. Their
personal development and well-being are satisfactory, including enjoyment of lessons. However,
pupils' attendance is very low and not improving. The school is not yet taking sufficiently
rigorous action to tackle the high level of absences. School leaders identify a clear match
between some pupils' poor achievement and their low levels of personal attendance. The extent
to which pupils feel safe at school and understand the requirements of a healthy lifestyle is
good due to the school's good provision in these areas. Pupils' behaviour is satisfactory
throughout the school, and many make a good contribution to the school community through
their work on the school council. Pupils' contribution to the wider community is more limited.

Effectiveness of the Foundation Stage
Grade: 3

Children make satisfactory progress in all the Foundation Stage classes. Nonetheless, a large
majority do not reach the expected levels for their age by the time they move into Year 1. Staff
are skilled at helping children to settle in and provide plenty of enjoyable activities, both indoors
and outdoors, so that children are happy and content throughout the day. There is a focus on
developing language skills because many children come to school with significant speech

Page 30



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 50f 11

difficulties. However, this has had mixed success because many activities in all areas of learning
do not provide a real challenge for developing children's speech and this limits their overall
progress.

What the school should do to improve further

- Ensure that, across the curriculum, and especially in English and mathematics lessons, teaching
and learning in all classes fully engage boys and raise their standards of attainment.

- Use data and other information from school self-evaluation more effectively to plan how to
bring about improvement where it is needed most.

- Introduce effective strategies to improve pupils' attendance.

A small proportion of the schools whose overall effectiveness is judged satisfactory but which
have areas of underperformance will receive a monitoring visit by an Ofsted inspector before
their next section 5 inspection.

Achievement and standards
Grade: 3

Almost half the pupils have learning difficulties and/or disabilities, and this has a considerable
impact on the standards reached in each key stage, as many pupils struggle to reach the expected
levels for their age. There is appropriate support for all these pupils so that they make
satisfactory progress despite the very low standards they attain. Over the past four years the
school has achieved a steady increase in pupils' progress in Key Stage 2, and more recently in
Key Stage 1. However, the upward trend in pupils' progress is not even throughout the school,
in different subjects, or from one year to the next. The improvements in Key Stage 2 have been
secured partly by good teaching in Year 6, which accelerates pupils' progress. This year, improved
teaching and learning are beginning to even out pupils' progress across the school. Nonetheless,
a very few year groups do not make enough progress, and boys' standards remain lower than
girls. Boys make broadly satisfactory progress, and a few are doing really well, but the school
has not yet made a significant impact on raising boys' attainment in all classes.

Personal development and well-being
Grade: 3

Pupils' behaviour is satisfactory. They move safely, in an orderly way, and demonstrate safe
practices around the school. At times some are restless and silly in lessons. Pupils refer to some
bullying and ‘scraps’ in the playground but feel safe because potential incidents are dealt with
quickly and effectively; ‘It stops’, said one. Pupils know about healthy lifestyles. Year 5 pupils
said, 'We don't have fizzy drinks.....E numbers in them affect our behaviour.' Attendance levels
are well below average and declining. A significant number of pupils regularly miss school. The
majority enjoy the security of school but at times lack a real joy for learning. They have limited
experience of art, music or drama and knowledge of cultures other than their own. The school
council is influential: 'Everything outside is our idea’, they say. It represents the views of others
fairly. However, pupils' involvement with the community outside school is more limited. Although
pupils leave the school with low standards of basic skills in numeracy and literacy, their
information and communication technology skills are adequate and their self-confidence is
good so that they are developing appropriate life skills.

Page 31



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 6 of 11

Quality of provision
Teaching and learning

Grade: 3

Improvements in teaching and learning contribute to the steady improvement in pupils' progress.
Effective recruitment procedures led to a further improvement in overall teaching quality this
year. The very high proportion of pupils who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities receive
plenty of appropriate support from skilled staff. Teachers gather a great deal of information
about how well all the pupils are doing, but make too little use of it when planning lessons.
Consequently, there is inconsistency in the level of challenge for pupils of all abilities. Whilst
many lessons capture pupils' interest, a minority fail to motivate them, so their progress varies
from class to class. In Years 5 and 6, pupils say that lessons are lively and interesting. They
know what is expected of them and make good progress in both these year groups now. In
lessons where progress is slower, there are fewer opportunities for pupils to be actively involved
in learning, and too little emphasis on improving spoken language. This particularly affects
boys, who are seen to lose interest when listening to staff for long periods.

Curriculum and other activities
Grade: 3

The curriculum is enriched well, and pupils particularly enjoy the extra sports activities. The
Year 6 residential visit to Braeside is typical of the good provision for developing pupils' team
working skills. Pupils are enthusiastic about leading healthy lifestyles because the school has
been committed to the Healthy Schools programme since 2002. The steady improvement in
reading opportunities in Key Stage 2 resulted in a significant improvement in English standards
in 2007. Writing skills have not improved as significantly, mainly because there are too few
opportunities to develop writing skills across the curriculum in both key stages. Mathematics
standards improved in Key Stage 1, where pupils learn effectively through a good range of
practical activities. In Key Stage 2, there are limited opportunities for pupils to develop their
mathematical and mental arithmetic skills and this limits their overall achievement. Despite the
overall improvements, the curriculum is not contributing fully to raising standards in the core
subjects for boys because some lessons lack interest for them.

Care, guidance and support
Grade: 3

Good procedures to monitor attendance ensure that the school knows the reasons for pupils'
absences, but it has not yet taken effective action to reduce the high level of absences.
Arrangements to ensure pupils' safety are good. Staff are well aware of the robust and sensitive
child protection procedures. Pupils value comments made by staff and parents in the
‘Home-School Book'. They think that most members of staff manage behaviour fairly and
consistently, especially in relation to bullying. Most pupils know their learning targets for
English and mathematics and discuss them regularly with their parents and teachers. However,
teachers' marking and other guidance for learning often lacks sufficient challenge and this
limits pupils’ attainment.

Page 32



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 7 of 11

Leadership and management
Grade: 3

School leaders embraced the intensive support provided by the local authority to help raise
standards. As a result, there is clear direction for raising standards and a steady improvement
has been secured in pupils’ achievement. Targets set for pupils are mostly appropriate and the
capacity for further improvement is satisfactory. School leaders are clearly focused on improving
the quality of teaching and learning throughout the school to raise standards further. They
have succeeded in Years 3, 5 and 6, partly due to effective staff recruitment procedures, and
partly due to good quality professional development. Firm action is being taken to improve
and eradicate inadequate teaching. School self-evaluation is mostly accurate. The few differences
between the school's judgements about its own effectiveness and those of the inspection team
occur largely because the school has anticipated the improvements it expects to take place as
a result of recent changes. Senior managers collect a wealth of information about pupils’
progress and attainment. However, it is not analysed succinctly and provides limited information
to staff and governors. Consequently, strategic planning is not quite sharp enough. This has
contributed to the slower pace of improvement in boys' standards.

Page 33



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 8of 11

Any complaints about the inspection or the report should be made following the procedures set out
in the guidance 'Complaints about school inspection’, which is available from Ofsted’s website:
www.ofsted.gov.uk.

Page 34



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 9of 11

Annex A

Inspection judgements

Key to judgements: grade 1 is outstanding, grade 2 good, grade 3 satisfactory, and School
grade 4 inadequate Overall

Overall effectiveness

How effective, efficient and inclusive is the provision of education, integrated
care and any extended services in meeting the needs of learners?

Effective steps have been taken to promote improvement since the last
inspection

How well does the school work in partnership with others to promote learners’
well-being?

The effectiveness of the Foundation Stage

The capacity to make any necessary improvements

Yes

w

w

Achievement and standards

How well do learners achieve?

Hw

The standards' reached by learners

How well learners make progress, taking account of any significant variations between
groups of learners

How well learners with learning difficulties and disabilities make progress

w

w

Personal development and well-being

How good is the overall personal development and well-being of the
learners?

The extent of learners' spiritual, moral, social and cultural development
The extent to which learners adopt healthy lifestyles

The extent to which learners adopt safe practices

How well learners enjoy their education

The attendance of learners

The behaviour of learners

The extent to which learners make a positive contribution to the community
How well learners develop workplace and other skills that will contribute to
their future economic well-being

W [WWH|WININ|W] W

The quality of provision

How effective are teaching and learning in meeting the full range of the 3
learners' needs?

How well do the curriculum and other activities meet the range of needs
and interests of learners?

How well are learners cared for, guided and supported? 3

' Grade 1 - Exceptionally and consistently high; Grade 2 - Generally above average with none significantly
below average; Grade 3 - Broadly average to below average; Grade 4 - Exceptionally low.

Page 35



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007

10 of 11

Leadership and management

Annex A

How effective are leadership and management in raising achievement
and supporting all learners?

How effectively leaders and managers at all levels set clear direction leading
to improvement and promote high quality of care and education

How effectively leaders and managers use challenging targets to raise standards

The effectiveness of the school's self-evaluation

How well equality of opportunity is promoted and discrimination tackled so
that all learners achieve as well as they can

H JwWwwl w

How effectively and efficiently resources, including staff, are deployed to
achieve value for money

The extent to which governors and other supervisory boards discharge their
responsibilities

Do procedures for safeguarding learners meet current government
requirements?

Yes

Does this school require special measures?

No

Does this school require a notice to improve?

No

Page 36



Inspection Report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September 2007 11 of 11

Annex B

Text from letter to pupils explaining the findings of the inspection
20 September 2007

Dear Pupils,

Inspection of Penhill Primary School, Swindon SN2 5HF

Thank you all for making us so welcome and helping us when we visited your school. The school
is satisfactory and helps you make satisfactory progress, but many of you do not reach the
levels expected for your age in English, mathematics and science. Teaching is satisfactory
overall, but varies from class to class. The headteacher, all the senior teachers and the governors
are working hard to improve teaching and learning and help all of you to reach higher standards.

- Here are the things that we think are best about your school:

« You know how to stay safe and how to keep yourselves healthy.

- Staff look after you well so that most of you are happy at school.

« You told us that teaching in Year 6 is particularly good and we saw that it helps you to catch
up in your work.

- You really enjoy the extra activities, especially the visits and the sports clubs.

- Those of you who find the work difficult get a lot of help and support.

- These are the things that we think could be better:

- Boys make satisfactory progress but they are not reaching the same standards as the girls.
We think this is because the boys are not always interested in the work.

- There is a lot going on to make your school even better, but the school plan to improve
things does not show exactly how the most important things will be tackled in every class.

- Too many of you have poor attendance because you often stay at home, and this makes a
big difference to the standards that you reach. You could help by making a big effort to
come to school every day.

Thank you again for being so helpful and friendly when we came to see you.

Yours faithfully Liz Kounnou Lead inspector

Page 37



Inspection report: Penhill Primary School, 18-19 September l1ofl1

Annex B
20 September 2007

Dear Pupils,
Inspection of Penhill Primary School, Swindon SN2 5HF

Thank you all for making us so welcome and helping us when we visited your school.
The school is satisfactory and helps you make satisfactory progress, but many of you
do not reach the levels expected for your age in English, mathematics and science.
Teaching is satisfactory overall, but varies from class to class. The headteacher, all
the senior teachers and the governors are working hard to improve teaching and
learning and help all of you to reach higher standards.

Here are the things that we think are best about your school:
e You know how to stay safe and how to keep yourselves healthy.
o Staff look after you well so that most of you are happy at school.
e You told us that teaching in Year 6 is particularly good and we saw that it
helps you to catch up in your work.
You really enjoy the extra activities, especially the visits and the sports clubs.
¢ Those of you who find the work difficult get a lot of help and support.

These are the things that we think could be better:

o Boys make satisfactory progress but they are not reaching the same standards
as the girls. We think this is because the boys are not always interested in the
work.

e There is a lot going on to make your school even better, but the school plan
to improve things does not show exactly how the most important things will
be tackled in every class.

e Too many of you have poor attendance because you often stay at home, and
this makes a big difference to the standards that you reach. You could help by
making a big effort to come to school every day.

Thank you again for being so helpful and friendly when we came to see you.

Yours faithfully

MGA—-..—-——-

Liz Kounnou
Lead inspector

Page 38



Appendix 1
Pre-Statutory Consultation on the Potential Closure of Penhill Primary
School, and the Expansion of the Swindon Academy to include
Penhill Primary School

CABINET Date: 23" January 2008
Author: Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and Group Director,
Children

Parish / Wards Affected: Penhill

Purpose

e To set out the arrangements for pre-statutory consultation with parents,
staff and governors about proposals to ‘amalgamate’ Penhill Primary School with
the Swindon Academy, by formally closing Penhill Primary School, and expanding
the Swindon Academy to include an additional primary element, the present Penhill
Primary School

Recommendation
Cabinet is requested to

e Subject to approval from the Department from Children, Schools and Families
(DCSF), and appropriate funding being identified, authorise the Group Director,
Children to consult with the parents, staff and governors of Penhill Primary School
on linked proposals to close Penhill Primary School and incorporate it into the
Swindon Academy in the existing school buildings from September 2008 and to
report back to the Cabinet on the outcome of this consultation.

1. Reasons

It is proposed to close Penhill School in order to ‘amalgamate’ Penhill Primary
School with the Swindon Academy.

1.1. If the proposal to move to consultation is approved The United Learning Trust will
carry out a coincidental consultation on the expansion of the Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary School from September 2008 and report back to
Cabinet on this.

1.2 Itis considered that there is a range of benefits for pupils, parents and staff
of the proposal to amalgamate Penhill School with the Swindon Academy. These
were set out in the report presented to Cabinet on 31% October 2007, requesting
permission to submit an Expression of Interest to the Department for Children,
Schools and Families (DCSF) to expand the Swindon Academy.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles on
01793 465744 or Email mcoles@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 39



Appendix 1

Pre-Statutory Consultation on the Potential Closure of Penhill Primary

School, and the Expansion of the Swindon Academy to include

Penhill Primary School

CABINET Date: 23" January 2008

1.3

1.4

2.2

2.2

2.3

2.4

An Expression of Interest is lodged with the DCSF asking them to confirm that
they are content with Swindon Borough Council moving to consultation on this
proposal. The consultation will only move ahead if the response from the DCFS
IS positive.

Pre-statutory consultations are, therefore, proposed with all relevant
stakeholders, including governors, staff, parents and the Penhill Forum, subject
to DCSF approval.

Detalil

Penhill Primary School is a community school attended by children who come
from a predominantly white British background. Entitlement to Free School Meals
is above both the national and Swindon average and individual pupil postcode
data places the population of the school in the upper quartile boundary for
deprivation. The school has failed to meet the floor targets for pupils reaching the
expected level in literacy and maths at age 11 for five years in a row, and is on
the DCSF list of 226 schools nationally which are judged ‘hard to shift’.

The Local Authority believes that amalgamating Penhill Primary School with the
Swindon Academy would strengthen the capacity of the school to sustain
improvements. It would improve curriculum continuity and make progression from
Key Stage 2 to Key Stage 3 easier for pupils. It would also allow greater flexibility
in the use of resources.

The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) describes five key
stages in making changes to schools. These are:

Consultation (pre-statutory)
Publication

Representation Period (statutory)
Decision

Implementation

The six ‘school week’ pre-statutory consultation period of the process will include
meetings with the parents, staff and governors of Penhill Primary School and the
Swindon Academy. Once the views of the interested parties have been received
a further report will be presented to Cabinet on the outcome of the consultation.

Ward Councillors for the Penhill ward have been consulted. Councillor David
Glaholm’s comments are as follows:

‘| support anything that leads to an improvement in opportunities for the children.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles on
01793 465744 or Email mcoles@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 40



Appendix 1
Pre-Statutory Consultation on the Potential Closure of Penhill Primary
School, and the Expansion of the Swindon Academy to include
Penhill Primary School

CABINET Date: 23" January 2008

| hope the Academy will open up the facility to the wider community particularly in
the evenings.
There must be consultation with the Penhill Forum on this proposal as well as
parents.’

Alternative Options

The Local Authority could take the decision:

e To close Penhill School - school place planning means this option is not viable i.e.
there are not sufficient places in neighbouring schools for displaced pupils.

e To continue to support Penhill with substantial additional resource and advice. This
strategy has been in place for the last two years, and is not sustainable.

e To federate or amalgamate Penhill with a neighbouring community school. There are
no suitable schools in the close vicinity.

Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

e The capital implications of the proposal will have to be contained within the
resourcing limits approved by Council in the 4-year Capital Programme. If there
IS a requirement to target capital money to this project, the current approved
capital programme will need to be re-prioritised accordingly.

e The costs of publishing statutory proposals are contained within the School
Organisation Budget.

e When schools amalgamate, all staff are guaranteed transfer under TUPE
arrangements. There is always a risk of redundancies arising from the existing
management teams, though this is not anticipated in this case. The Schools’
Forum have accepted a principle that, where there are proven savings against
schools block budgets, it is not unreasonable for them to accept any such
redundancy costs associated with the amalgamation. However, there is always
risk that SBC core funds may be called upon if the Schools’ Forum do not agree
with the savings and associated costs position.

e The capital costs of any appropriate building alterations required would be
developed and reported to Cabinet in conjunction with the outcome of the pre-
statutory consultation.

e Potential funding sources for capital investment may include the receipt arising
from the disposal of any surplus site area, use of Schools Formula Capital, and
a capital grant from the DCSF.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles on
01793 465744 or Email mcoles@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 41



Appendix 1
Pre-Statutory Consultation on the Potential Closure of Penhill Primary
School, and the Expansion of the Swindon Academy to include
Penhill Primary School

CABINET Date: 23" January 2008

Legal / Human Rights Implications

e Any statutory proposals relating to Penhill Primary School are subject to the
relevant provisions in the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. Under
those provisions, the Council is required to consult with interested persons prior
to making a decision of publishing proposals to open, significantly alter, or close
a school. If there are any objections to proposals that are published they will be
referred to a further Cabinet for decision.

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises)
e The recommendations are in line with Swindon 2010 Promise 20.

Consultees

e  The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Democratic
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

. Ward councillors for Penhill Ward have been consulted on the contents of this
report.

Background Papers and Appendices
e None

Key Decision / Decision in Forward Plan

o This is a key decision for Cabinet and has been included in the Cabinet Forward
Plan for January 2008

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Martin Coles on
01793 465744 or Email mcoles@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 42



U2UNOD HONOUOE
UoauIms &

-Bujuses|puBUOEdNPS/N'ACH UOPUIMS MMM GO
3N'A0B"UOPUIMS ®|EBUP :[leWwd 10 L9EEYY €610 :[OL
HOF ENS ‘Uuopuims ‘198.1S pIOjUBS ‘@SNOH piojues

‘1obeue) 108l0i1d Awapeoy ‘[esN piAeQ :10BIU0D

8002 AInr - sunp

Awapeay

uopuims ay} jo uoisuedxa

ue mojje o} AiasinN pue |0oYyss
Arewiud [l1yuad asojd o} sjesodo.d

*JI] Ul YEe)S 1s8q ay) aAlasap ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iy)

S92IAI8S UBIp|IyD

80/LLTEIOL/E6T1 LAV

5IN'ACS"UOPUIMSD)SDIAIISIIWOISND :[IBW-]
T86€9Y €6L10 x4
STLEIY €6L10°PL

2uawiseda s921AI9S JawolsnD) aya Bundeauod Aq

(s1eWL.I0} 3|qISSEIE JBYIO JO I)jieg “ulid 28.e| SB Yons) siew.oy pue sadendue)
40 98ued & Ul paonpoud aq ued 3| 3s3nba. UO 3|qe|IeAE SI AJasInN pue

Jooyds AJeuiLld [[Iyuad 350> 03 [esodo.d ay3 INOGe UORBWLIOUI SIY |

94 10U ||IM UOIBWLIOJUI [BUOS.ISJ “I3UIGRD) 01 suonepuswiwodas Suljidwod jo sasodand aya uoy Awepesy

UOPUIMS 33 JO uoisuedxa Ue MOJ[e 03 [00YdS AJewilid [[1Yudd 3sO|> 03 sjesodo.d payul| ay3 Uo uomesjNsuod
Aao1meag-a.g ays Jo 1Jed se paAleda. sasuodsal Jo siskjeue ay3 .10} aq apiroad nok uoneuLiojul Y
uond330.d BIRQ M)

N0 UopuIMSD)AaUBASPI (|IRWD

8VLS9¥ €6L10

HOI INS uopuims

393.435 pJojuES

3sNoOH p.ojues

|1PUNoD) YENoIOg UOPUIMS ‘SIIAISS UBIP|IYD
AaueaaQ e

:03 3s0d Aq swo4 asuodsay uinjad asesld

*1591¢] 800T AIN[ Y| Aq paaadaa aq asnw sasuodsay

_ _ aunjeudis

age 43

syuswiod

D oN Dﬁ»

Awspesy uopuims

a3 Jo uoisuedxs Ue J10j Aem 9xEW 03 [0OYIS AJBWLI [|IYudd 9s0]d 03 sjesodoud payul| aya 3uoddns nok oq

D winJo4 ||Iyusd Y3 jo Jaquialy

D uapisay D yeas D JoUIPA0D) D pUCY LA

i asea)y

:9p02150d

:ss24ppY

DweN

Awspeoy UOPUIMS 33 JO uoisuedxs Ue MOJ[e 03 [00YDS AJBWL [[IYuS JO 34nso|d pasodoud
uoneansuoD) Aioamers aid

w04 asuodsay



uoneusws|dw pasodo.y

6007 Aaenue[

800¢

[aued 18uIqED 4q UO! J3QUIBAON / 489010

800¢
S9DUSWILIOD UONEINSUOD A103MEIS B3 ‘panuse | Jaquisadag / 3snSny 3e

19UIqeD) 03 240daJ UONEINSUOD AI0INJEIS-B. JO SWOANINO 00 AInf pagT
SPUS UOREINSUOD A10INIEIS g 00T AIn[ Yap |

LISl 8007 2unf yiz) pue yig

wn.o4 ||Iyuad pue [0oyds AJewiy [[Iyuad e a5e|d >jes sBupsaw u

suiSaq uoneansuo?) A1oimeg aig 8007 dunf3s|

ssad0.4d 3upjely uoisidd Y3 ul sayeq IadJe|
[uljpwil
‘Awapedyy UOpUIMS a3 3 yeas shkojdwa 1eya uonesiuedio ayy ‘asn.] Suluies

Pa3uN 3y3 03 J3jsuedy ||im d4nso> pasodoud si1 Jo awn 3y 38 AJrwig |Iyuad 38 pakojdwie yeis
ipeaye s208 [esodoad ay3 ji jooyds AtewiLid |[Iyudd Je Supjiom yejs o3 uaddey Im Jeypn

*211qnd ay3 jo sssquisw 03 usdo

s1 8uneaw ay | 'goOT AIN[ PAEZ U 12UIqeD) 01 pariodal 3q [|IM WINIOL [[IYud4 Y2 JO BSOYD PUE SIUBPISA.
‘s10U.1A03 ‘Yers ‘sua.aed/s3udled Aq passaadxa smalA 3y ssad0.d Supjew uoIsIAP Ayl JO saTeIs SNOLIEA
32 IN0 195 MO[3q BUI[WI BY| "31¥IG JO AJBIa.13S 33 Aq PapIdap aq 01 Sty AWapesy UOpUIMS

a3 Jo uoisuedxa 3y | 4|[e20] |00YIS AJBWILI] [|IYUSd JO 2INSO|> Y3 SPIdBP O3 3|qE SI [1PUNOD) BY| Y
ipeaye 5903 [esodoad siy3 ji SOpI2SP OYA

“s3uipjing aya
suodsad a3 ‘24042493 ‘pUB pue| aY3 UO ase3] SUO| B el ||IM IsnJ| SululesT paun By
is3ulpjing pue pue| ay3 03 uaddey M Jeym

‘Awapeoy uopuimg papuedxa ays Jo (|0
33 01 UYSUE. A|[EDIIBUIOINE [|IM BUNSO[D BYI JO BWII BY3 18 AJBWILIJ [|IYUS I [|O4 UO UBJP|IY [ ON "/
ipeaye sa03 [esodoud ay3 j1 Awspedy ayy je ade|d e 4oy A|dde
03 pasu Adewirid [1yudd J& UIp[IYyd Jo sadaed/syudaed [IAA

J3A0 DB 03 juswageurw mau
93 MO||e 03 PasO|2,2q O3 SPaaU 3| JUSWSSRUBW MaU OIUI
Pa.I9jsURI} B 03 [OOYS Y3 0} JSP.IO Ul JBY3 SUBSW UONESISDT]
‘AJeWLIg [[IYuy SUIRIUIBW PUB SUMO A]3US.JND [IDUNOD) BY] Y/
iAwapedy ay3 jo 3aed 03 31

a8ueyd 03 pasod> aq 03 aAeY |[IYudd S0P AYAA ‘1

suonsand pajse Apuanbaug

*800Z AInf yap | 4q sn o3
31 uINJa. puB W04 asuodsay paydene ayr 9319|dwod asesld Awspesy papuedxa ue yam [ooyds Alewid |Iyuad
Buidiaw jo sa8eIUBAPE B3 INOGE SMIIA N0 BBYS NOA JOU JO JBLIBYM MO O3 PaIsa.aul AI3A 3G PINOM SAA

‘3sn4] 3ujuaesT panun ay3 Uaojdws Mau & 03 pauajsuel) 3q osfe pjnom [esodoad
a3 Aq pazdaye yeis AWapedy aya 03 paJlajsue.d 3G pjnom suip|ing pue axs Sunsixe ay3 ‘parusw|dwi |

*sidnd 4oy uoisiroud jo paepuess paroaduw ue uj Bup|nsad |[e ‘$30BIUOD [BLWIOJUI PUE [BULIO)
Jen3a4 sJow yBnouys sdiysuone|a JSOJD PUE ‘PAAJOAUL SIIDUSTE |[B IO S[BIS JO SIIWOUOID ‘SSIIE IBISED
*9°1 42139q uaJpiyd 34oddns wesy Aouae-nw ay3 djsy pjnom Awspesyy ySnodya-|je ue Aem swes ay3 U] 4

“UaJP|IYyd 3|qRIBU|NA
a.1ow 104 Aj[e1dadss ‘a.ed Jo AINURUOd O3 PaydEIIE SIYDUIQ 3] [|IM SI3Y3 PUB UOISN|dUl d30wo.d Os[e pjnom
Jooyds AJewid [[Iyusd Spnjpul 03 Awapedyy sy jo uoisuedxa sy ‘spaepuels asied 03 Suidjay se [em sy

+a8e Jo sueak | | 38 aA0W

Aoy usym Awspeoyy ay3 oaul 83e4893ul 03 [00YdS AJewillg [|Iyuad jo sjidnd By Joj 3NdiyIp B40w 3 jew

Aew 3uswdoaAsp € yang “a8e [e180jouoayd Y3 UBY) Jayaes JusWdoPASp J1BY3 Ul 3 aJk Asy) a3els, oy 03

BuipJodoe ssauBo.d 03 9|qe 2q ||Im s|idng ‘pasijeuos.ad pue 19w A|ipeaJ S.uow aq UBD JBUIR3| [BNPIAIPUI 33

JO SP33U B3 3I9YM SWISAS PIsIUESIO A|[BD1ISA UIYIIM BUDJIOM SPIBEMOI SAOW pue $3.1mdN.3s dnoud Jeak
[eUORIPE.I} WOJ) INO Heauq [[IM 31 Iyl 3s983ns Awapedyy y3noay-||e sy Joj suejd [euonednps Suidojsasp ay|  p

uswaBue.ie Awspesy Y1 wouy papn|axa Suiaq 4q ‘s|ooyds 1sinyauld snoiasad aya ul

asoy) o3 paJedwod pageiueapesip Ajjenusiod aq Aew ua.pjiyd a8e Asewid Jeyy uondediad e ) auay ‘98eas

Jooyds Asepuodas aya 3e Awapedy sy 3e ade(d e .oy A|dde 01 Aauniioddo sy Ay ea.e [0OYdS AJewiLig

uSg Y3 Wouy uap|Iyd ySnoy|y uawdojaAsp AWapedy 343 UO INO SSIW WYSIW USIP|IYD J1BY3 JBY) I3}
1114ua4 JO AUNWIWIOD B3 JO SIAQUISW JBY3 IB3]D DWED3q 3| AWapedy a3 1oy aseyd uopeajnsuod sy uing >

‘passa.ppe 9q 03 spasu
|00YS AJewWlig [[IYusy Ul SPIEPUBIS [OOYIS JO BNSSI [E2111ID Y3 USASMOH SnIeas asn.a ‘ySnoaya s|dwexs oy
“snJj Sujulea padluf Yl YIIM PaIeIdosse A[3SO[d 210W 9q 01 AWSPesy 3yl 01 S|OOYdS J3P3d) IOy 34Mny
ay2 ur sanluniuoddo aue aay| "paAowad e ssa.uBoud 01 suaLLIeq 959Y3 3Byl [BIIA S1 31 ‘9| 9Se 01 ySnoays
passa.ppe A||nyssaddns Uaaq 93ep 03 10U SBY SIY3 d43ym pue A1epuodas pue Alewrid usamiaq Aniold 4o
B S| JUSWIASIYDE JO SPJepuels Sulsied 249YM BB UE U] 'S|OOYDS BUIAOW 4O 3|NSa.l B SB ‘pamo]s si ssa.Boud
|idnd pue ‘sdip souew.opad 1dnd 3eya smoys 9ouapiAg sjidnd oy Buu.es| pue Suiyoes) jo AInupuUod
S9pIAOId pUE JBYIOUE O3 [0OYDS BUO WOy UoRIsuER.l a3 yum sjidnd djay ues Awspesy ySnoay-je uy  q

‘Awapedy ay3 ul 3uapiAe Apeaufe

SP.IEpUEIS 3SIeJ 03 DALIP BY3 WO IJ3USq PINOM 31 AWSPEIY Y3 JO 1ed SWEIDG [00YDS BY3 §| "PIBMIO)

|ooyds siya aAow 03 padinbau s1 uoRN|OS [e4NIONIS B JRY) SIBPISUOD AoyIny [8307 3y | AloyIny [e207]

3y3 wouy 3u0ddns pue 92.1n0sa. [BUOIIPPE 9|qRIBPISUOD SUIAIRDA. 931dsap ‘s.aeak aAly Jo) ysijBug pue syiely

30q Ul om3 a3e1g A3y Je 39343 40O} BY3 393W 03 pajig sey pue puejdug ui sjooyds Asewrid yiys 03
P-eY, 997 40 35I| (4SD@) S3!|IWe4 pUE S|OOYDS ‘UBIP|IYD) 0} 3uswWIIedaq Y3 UO SI [00YdS AJewilig [Iyusd &

:MOJ2q 1IN0 195 dJE

[esodoud siys a30wo.d 03 s3ueM 1I9UNOD) BY3 JBY SUOSEaU By | AWwapedy papuedxa Ue olul uaJp|iyd SuLliajsuen
pue jooyds A.ewilig [euonipe.a aya Suiso|> Aq paAdIyde 2q O3 S| UOIBWLIONSURA SIY | BULISO UONEINPD dYY
Sulw.ojsuesy Aq BaJE [IyuSd Y3 Ul UJPIYD JO SaOURYD 3)1| a3 dAo.dwi 03 si [esodoud ay3 jo SARd3Iqo Aoy By

lesodo.d ay3 jo saAnd3lqo ay L

<

10035 Auewikig [|1yuad Ie sBunasw siaed/suaied ay3 36 3|GE|IEAR 3 [|IM SIRI|IIEY SIEXRHD

wdoQ'9 - 211N PUe winio [IgPd
800Z 2unf YaZ| - lIeH 100Yds Asewiid IIYERH

wdg|z SJa.ed/SIPRTey
wdpo9 sJou. 5]
wdgpy Has
wdog'e sda.ed/s3UB Ry

8002 2un( Y36 - IleH 100Yds Asewiid |IIyuad

:pUSMIE 03 SBUNSII OM] JO D10 B ARY SIBJBD
pue sjua.ed Jeyl 230U 95ED|J "MOJ2q INO 195 dJB SSUSIW UOIILINSUOD §[IDUNOD) BY3 JO SBWI pUE SIBP BY |

“1puno) ay3 Aq padue.Je s8uneaw sy ul a3edidned [Im pue uoneINSUOd

SIY3 3O A.LIBD [|IM ‘SIUBINSUOD) Juspuadapul Aduelnsuo) gf@ ‘[ooYdS AJewiig [[IYusyd WO.y J9jsue.l OYm
uaJp|1y> uo 1oedwi 2AnIsod & e ||Im AWSPedy UOPUIMS 33 JO UOIsUBdXD 33 MOY INOGE SMIIA INOA
Bunjaas aq os[e ||m AWapesyy UOPUIMS 3y Jo stosuods ‘(17n) 3sn] BuluesT padlun 3y ‘sIUBWWOD Aue
pJemuoy and pue aAey 3ySiw nok suonsanb jse 01 NoA Mojje 01 [ooydS AJewiLly |Iyudd 3e sSunsaw pasue.ie
Os|e sey [15UNo7) 3Y3 AUAWINOP SIY2 Ul papiAcad UiIo4 asuodsay pue UONEWLIOJUI USILIM B2 O) UONIPPE U]

‘lesodoud
SIY3 INOGE SMIIA INOA MO [1PUNOD) Y3 33| 03 PIIAUL e NOL AWSPEIY UOPUIMS 33 JO UOIsuedxa ue mojje
03 [0S AJewiLId [[I4udy 350J> 03 sjesodo.d pavjul| sIPUNOD SY3 INOGE UOREWLIOJUI PASO[DUS SY3 935 3583]d

*A3lunwiwod pue wnJio4 [IYyusd
Y3 jJo siaquidw pue A13sinpN pue jooyds Asewrid
|11lyuad JO SIOUISAOS) pue Jje3g§ ‘siae)/syualed Jeaq



Appendix 3

“Giving Children and Young People the best start in
life”

A Proposal to expand Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary & Nursery School
Consultation Document

Contents

Introduction

1. Reasons for this Proposal

2. The Academy Proposal

3. What are Academies?

4. About the Sponsor: United Learning Trust
5. The Academy Ethos

6. The Vision of the Academy

7. The Academy’s Curriculum and Specialisms
8. Teaching and Support Staff

9. Admissions

10.Governance

11.Building Improvements at Penhill

12. Community Involvement and Wider Use

13.Consultation

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 1
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 45



Appendix 3

Introduction

This document has been produced as part of the independent public
consultation into the proposal to expand the 0-19 Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary and Nursery School. The purpose of the
document is to inform potential students, parents, staff, governors,
education partners in Swindon, interested parties affected by the
proposed site and the wider community on the proposal to this
expansion to the Academy, so that they can express their views during
the consultation process.

Background to this proposal

The Department for Children Families and Schools (DCFS) and Swindon
Borough Council (SBC) in collaboration with the sponsor United
Learning Trust (ULT) established the Swindon Academy in September
2007. The academy replaced Headlands secondary school and
Pinehurst Infant and Junior schools. The Council now wishes to expand
the academy to include Penhill Primary School.

The academy is an all age 0-19 academy providing education and
community services and will serve students from Pinehurst, Gorse Hill,
Seven Fields and Penhill, one of the most deserving areas of Swindon.

The academy will permit the more effective deployment of multi-
agency approaches - easier access, economies of scale for all
agencies involved, and closer relationships through more regular
formal and informal contacts all resulting in an improved standard of
provision for the children.

The Penhill school building will be extensively refurbished and will
remain on its current site about one mile from the main academy
campus.

The Public Consultation Process

The following areas are the key priorities for consultation:
The Academy’s intake and development
Transition-Continuity and Progression

Governance
Community links and wider use

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 2
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 46



Appendix 3

This independent public consultation is being conducted by DJB
Consultancy on behalf of ULT and will run in parallel with the SBC
consultation process. SBC will consider all the views that are expressed
as part of this public consultation and the separate SBC statutory
consultation process before making a decision to publish statutory
proposals to close Penhill School. The Sponsor will seek the Secretary of
State’s approval for the expansion of the academy.

Further details about the consultation process and how your views can
be represented are given at the end of this document.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 3
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 47



Appendix 3

1. Reason for this Proposal

During the consultation to establish Swindon Academy there were a
number of responses suggesting that some feeder schools to the
academy, excluding Pinehurst Infant and Junior schools, which would
be part of the academy, would be disadvantaged, i.e. Penhill, Gorse
Hill and Seven Fields. 86% of the academy’s student cohort comes from
these feeder schools, with 20% from Penhill.

However, although in the future there will be opportunities for feeder
schools to the academy to work closely with the United Learning Trust,
Penhill Primary School standards have been identified by SBC as a
critical issue that needs to be addressed urgently.

Penhill Primary school is on the DCFS list of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary
schools and has failed to meet the floor target at key stage two in both
maths and English for five years, despite receiving considerable
additional resource and support from the Local Authority. An Ofsted
inspection which took place in September 2007, judged the standards
reached by learners to be inadequate (grade 4). The local authority
considers that a structural solution is required to move this school
forward. If the school became part of the academy it would benefit
from the drive to raise standards, which is enhanced by the
establishment of an academy.

The developing educational plans for this all-through academy suggest
that it will break out from ftraditional structures and move towards
systems where the needs of the individual learner can be more readily
met and be personalised. Pupils/students will be able to be progressed
according to the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather than
their chronological age. Such a development may make it more
difficult for the pupils of Penhill Primary School to integrate into the
academy when they move at eleven.

As well as helping to raise standards, an academy expanded to
include Penhill Primary School will also promote inclusion and enjoy the
benefits attached to continuity of care and personnel especially with
respect to more vulnerable children.

ULT and SBC share the view that an all age 0-19 academy is well
placed to transform the education and learning opportunities for
primary pupils of all abilities from the surrounding areaq, raise aspirations
and achievement and challenge expectations of learning. It removes
a number of transition issues when moving from one school to another
and provides continuity of feaching and learning for pupils!. The

! Evidence shows that pupil performance dips, and pupil progress is slowed,

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 4
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 48



Appendix 3

development allows for a cross-curriculum approach to teaching and
learning across all the key stages ensuring individual levels of
attainment are improved.

as a result of moving schools. In an area where raising standards of
achievement is a key priority- which has not to-date been successfully
addressed through to age 16-it is vital that these barriers to progress are
removed.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 5
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 49



Appendix 3

2. The Academy Proposal

The proposal to undertake a feasibility study to expand Swindon
Academy established in September 2007, which has replaced
Headlands School and Pinehurst Infant and Junior Schools to further
include Penhill Primary and Nursery School is supported by the DCSF,
Swindon Borough Council and the Governors of Swindon Academy.
The proposal is subject to agreement by the School Scrutiny
Committee. As part of the feasibility the expanded academy will:

¢ In partnership with the Council, explore the inclusion of Penhill
Primary and Nursery Schools into the 0-11element of the
academy.

¢ In partnership with the Council, also further explore the way in
which existing 0-4 family support services can be integrated into
the academy

e Openin January 2009 in the existing Penhill school building and
have a planned programme to refurbish the current
accommodation.

e Guarantee places for all existing students at Penhill School into
the 0-11 element of the academy at the time the school closes in
December 2008.

e Be co-educational and free of charge for pupils of statutory
school age.

e Continue to operate the existing schools catchment areas and
admissions policies in September 2008.

e Adopt the current ULT Admissions Policy (see section 9) subject to
any agreed amendments to reflect local existing policies with
effect from September 2009.

e Be committed to the pursuit of high standards and levels of
achievement in all areas of learning activity and behaviour.

e Be a place where all students will be supported in realising their
full potential and encouraged to take their place in society as
active and positive contributors.

e Work in partnership with other primary, secondary schools and
further education establishments in Swindon.

e Be at the heart of the local community, providing a driver for
change through the use of its facilities either during or outside
academy hours.

e Be sponsored and managed by the United Learning Trust a
subsidiary of the United Church Schools Trust.

e Build onits corporate partnership with Honda who is active in
supporting the work of the academy. Honda is a major global
company with a European manufacturing base in Swindon and
Sales and Services operations in Langley.

3. What are Academies?

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 6
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 50



Appendix 3

Academies are a new type of all ability school which aim to bring a
fresh approach to school leadership, teaching and learning, raising the
standard of education provision in the maintained sector in the more
disadvantaged areas. Academies draw on the expertise of the
sponsor and have the freedom to try new ways of teaching within an
innovative and stimulating environment.

Across the country, academies are being created to replace schools in
challenging circumstances or to meet demand for additional school
places. The Government is committed to establishing 400 academies
with at least 200 open or in the pipeline by 2010.

Academies are state-funded independent secondary schools. They
are independent of the Local Education Authority and have more
autonomy over curriculum design than maintained schools. They offer
a broad and balanced curriculum together with a specialism. All
places are free of charge with no fees paid by parents and are
available to the local community within an agreed admissions policy.

Academies are operated by a not-for-profit charitable trust.
Sponsorship for academies is from the private or voluntary sectors that
make donations up to a ceiling of £2 million to support the charitable
purposes of the academy. This establishes a long-term financial
endowment to enhance educational progress in the academy and in
the local community more generally.

The capital costs for remodelling the proposed Penhill extension will be
funded by Swindon Borough Council.

The annual recurrent costs are funded directly by the Department for
Children Schools and Families (DCSF) at a level comparable to the
funding of similar schools in the area. In addition, each academy
receives a per-student grant equivalent to specialist schools in the
maintained sector.

4. About the Sponsor: United Learning Trust (ULT)

ULT is a registered charity, specifically created to establish a family of
academies which provide an outstanding education to young people
across the country. Established in 2002, ULT is a subsidiary of the not-for-
profit charity, the United Church Schools Trust (UCST), which owns and
manages a family of independent schools in the UK for 125 years. ULT
offers the stability of an organization with a long term commitment to
education in this country and the experience to run schools.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 7
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 51



Appendix 3

UCST's extensive experience in providing high quality education makes
ULT a unique sponsor of academies. Its experience in bridging the
private and public sectors brings significant benefits to teachers,
students and parents through the sharing of good educational
practice. The two organisations share the objective of offering students
outstanding education.

In order to satisfy its charitable objectives, ULT is required to ensure that
the academy is founded on a Christian ethos. ULT hopes and expects
that its ethos can be accepted by people of all faiths and none.

ULT currently operates and manages 13 academies: Manchester,
Lambeth, Northampton Salford-City, Barnsley, Sheffield Park, Sheffield
Springs, Paddington, Walthamstow, Wiliam Hulme Grammar School,
North Oxfordshire, Swindon, and Stockport. It also has two others in
feasibility in Accrington and Midhurst, West Sussex.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 8
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 52



Appendix 3

5. The Academy Ethos
The ethos of Swindon Academy is one of:

Respect
Service
Compassion
Discipline
Hard work

This is supported by a constructive and supportive environment where
all students and staff are valued and respected. Students are given
individual care and support and guided and encouraged to develop
a lifelong love of learning.

A culture of hard work is instilled throughout the academy. It has a
philosophy that encourages achievement. Students will be expected
to develop a high standard of learning and life skills.

ULT academies aim to enable each student to become a balanced
arficulate person with the:

* intellectual freedom to be creative

» confidence to initiate

flexibility to react to change

e compassion to serve others.

motivation to have a lifelong love of learning.

It is a core belief of the ULT that students thrive when parents, the
school and the community work together to encourage and support
the success of each student.

ULT respects the differences that exist between the different
communities it serves. ULT has a strong and vibrant commitment to
quality and innovation built on dynamic partnerships with parents, the
local community and business organisations, local organisations and
other education providers.

6. The Vision for the new Academy

The academy offers a high quality educational experience to students
to ensure that they are thoroughly prepared to meet the challenges of
the workplace, either directly from school or after higher education. In
particular, it will aim to offer:

Innovative teaching, learning and development for all

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 9
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 53



Appendix 3

e Learning approaches that are targeted to the needs of the
students through a mixture of modular learning paths.

e A well-considered programme of life skills, incorporated into
many parts of the Academy day and curriculum, which will
help prepare students to become active and responsible
citizens;

e A fully accessible academy with extended day programmes
that offer study support and additional learning opportunities
and a wide range of arts, sports, and recreational activities;

e Provide opportunities for an integrated approach to teaching
and learning across different year groups;

e Personal tutor and peer mentoring systems which offer
individually- tailored learning plans for every student to raise
their aspirations and achievements. Particular attention will be
given to the core areas of literacy and numeracy. Where
appropriate, there will also be links to external agencies and
advisors to assist with the rounded development of students;

e Extension programmes and accelerated learning
opportunities, delivered using ICT and distance learning
materials;

¢ Innovative approaches to the teaching and learning process,
based on a framework of study skills and methods of
monitoring, assessment, reporting and planning that
encourage more ICT-based learning, with provision for
community participation;

e A framework of professional development and fraining in
transferable skills related to the use of new technology, and
remuneration policies to attract, retain and confinuously
develop teachers and support staff;

e Developing with the local business community and other key
stakeholders ways of assisting the regeneration of the areaq;

e Being a learning resource at the heart of the local community
with  a commitment to supporting a broad range of
community needs.

7. The Academy’s Curriculum and Specialism

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 10
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 54



Appendix 3

The academy will be committed to providing a broad, balanced and
relevant curriculum for all its learners. To achieve this it will have due
regard for the key areas of the National Curriculum, but as a publicly-
funded independent school it will be free to develop innovative and
creative approaches to both teaching and learning, making
education relevant and exciting. All students will have access to the
core curriculum, English, Mathematics, Science and Information
Communication Technology.

The curriculum will be at the cutting-edge of educational development
and designed to support the highest level of achievement by students.
State-of-the-art technology will help ensure that the curriculum is
accessible online 24 hours a day.

Each student will have a carefully prepared individual programme of
learning. This student-centred approach has been designed to meet
the needs of all students and will be present through the student’s
school life.

The 4-11 primary curriculum will be developed by blending existing
good practice with new opportunities for learning. The aim will be to
encourage high levels of individual achievement through an exciting,
engaging and creative curriculum which will also have a strong
emphasis on the development of the core skills that provide the
building blocks for the future success of learners. The education of
primary phase students will be further enhanced through access to the
21st Century facilities and technologies which the academy will provide
for all its learners.

One of the key benefits of a 0-19 academy is that all professionals and
key stakeholders in the chain of learning can ensure the best possible
confinuity of planning and progression for the individual learner.

In addition to covering key areas of the National Curriculum, the
academy has a focus on specialist subject areas in which it will aim to
become recognised as a Centre of Excellence. The specialism should
enable the school to retain and recruit enthusiastic, inspirational
teachers with outstanding motivational skills. The academy’s specialism
is Science with Business and Enterprise.

8. Teaching and Support Staff

The ULT is responsible for the employment of the academy’s staff. The
Principal decides, within the budget framework, how many teachers to
employ and makes the appointments.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 11
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 55



Appendix 3

It is recognised that the teachers and support staff at the academy are
its most valuable resource. Without good, well-supported teaching the
academy'’s vision for success will not be realised. Therefore it is
establishing:

Sound and sensitive employment practices
Excellent working conditions and relationships
Modern management structures

Competitive levels of remuneration and rewards.

The staff employed work to a common goal of raising standards for all
students. The academy will ensure strong pastoral care for students,
which will involve parents and the community.

ULT will consult with the Trade Unions about the application of the TUPE
regulations, as applied to staff in Penhill School, in advance of those
staff’ joining the academy.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 12
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 56



Appendix 3

9. Admissions

The academy is fully inclusive in terms of admissions with @
comprehensive intake of boys and girls across all ability ranges. The
academy currently provides up to 1,200 places for students aged 11—
19. Up to 180 students will be admitted in Year 7 each year and there
will be a maximum of 300 places in the Sixth Form.

The academy currently provides up to 420 places for students aged 4-
11 with up to 60 pupils being admitted into Reception each year. There
are also 52 part-time nursery places available. The Penhill site will admit
up to 60 pupils into Reception each year. 52 part- time nursery places
will also be available.

If incorporated as part of the expanded academy, all students at
Penhill School will be automatically offered a place at the academy at
the time the school closes in December 2008. Thereafter, pupils at the
Penhill site will automatically transfer to the academy’s secondary
provision unless there is parental preference to the contrary.

The expanded academy will adopt the current ULT Admissions Policy,
subject to any agreed amendments to reflect local existing policies
with effect from January 2009.

The principles on which the admissions criteria are based include:

1. Children with statements of SEN where the Academy is named
on the statement;

2. Children in Public Care (Looked after Children);

3. Children for whom it is essential to be admitted to the school
because of special circumstances related to medical and social
needs;

4. Children with special educational needs (SEN) but without a
statement will receive equal consideration with other applicants;

5. Children who have a brother or sister on roll at the academy at
the time of admission;

6. Places will be allocated to children in relation to the distance
from the child’s place of residence to the academy (Penhill site).

The academy is aware of the need to provide facilities which will be
appropriate for specific students with Special Educational Needs. These
would include:

e Students who are gifted and talented:;
¢ Students with individual learning difficulties;
e Students needing support with access.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 13
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 57



Appendix 3

The process of application for the academy will be made on the
common application form of the Education Authority in which the
applicant resides.

The academy’s admissions arrangements follow the DCSF Code of
Practice (including the guidance on appeals against refusal to admit),
and is founded on impartiality, regard for the law and the principles of
natural justice. The appeals system is transparent and fair. ULT's
Academy Policy on exclusions takes account of DCSF guidance.

10. Governance

The ultimate governance of the all the sponsors’ academies is the
responsibility of the Trustees of the ULT.

The Trustees are responsible in particular for:
e Overall policy for each Academy
e Policy decisions on where and when to open new
academies
Fundraising
Appointment of and Principals and Vice Principals
Relationship with the Government
Budget for the whole group
All staff contracts.

At the local level, the Swindon Academy has its own Local Governing
Body (LGB). The aim is that the LGB should best reflect the specific
needs of the academy. It is essential that the members will extend the
skills and influence of the LGB and actively support and promote the
aims, ethos and aspirations of the academy.

Members of the LGB include:

The Chair

The Principal, ex-officio

Two elected Parents

An elected teacher

An elected member of the support staff
A representative of the Local Council

In addition, the LGB includes other members drawn from the local
community and from business and industry. Honda is represented on
the LGB of the academy in Swindon and Sir Anthony Greener (one of
the benefactors via the ULT) is the Chair.

The LGB:

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 14
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 58



Appendix 3

Assist on appointment panels

e Support the Principal and the ULT Finance Director in monitoring and
managing the budget.

e Are responsible, with the Principal, for school policies and
operations such as:

Admissions

Behaviour

Discipline

Exclusions

Curriculum and its delivery
Reporting to parents

Maintaining the quality of the school
Links with the community

© O O O O oo ©

11. Building Improvements at Penhill

The proposals that are being considered for building remodelling will
offer improved quality of provision and facilities in a number of key
areas of the school as well as providing an independent youth and
community provision. Building construction work, in the main, will relate
to internal structural changes to some rooms as required and general
improvements and decoration to the whole school. Major
improvements will be made to all flat roofs and metal windows, which
will enhance the overall efficiency of the buildings. Upgrades will also
be made to the M&E infrastructure (heating and ventilation) in line with
current legislation on building efficiency. A new landscaped car
parking facility will be provided at the front of the school which will give
more emphasis to the entrance to the school and the current mobile
classroom provisions will be integrated into a secure nursery block with
it's own reception and secure access.

A summary of the changes considered are as follows:

e Structural remodelling to some of the classrooms to meet BB99
standards.

e Structural remodelling of the reception and nursery provisions info an
independent secure unit. (Removal of all mobiles).

e Addition of some general multi-use rooms.

e Addition of a secure youth and community provision with it's own
enfrance and identity.

Improvements to M & E facilities (heating &ventilation).

Replacement of all metal window frames to be replaced with uPVC
Refurbishment of all flat roofs

Improvements to surface water drainage.

12. Community Involvement and Wider Use

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 15
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 59



Appendix 3

The new Penhill site and building will serve the community of Penhill, will
be involved with Regeneration Initiatives, and will be a facility for the
whole community complementing the existing facilities in the area.

It is proposed that this new academy site will offer:

= Extended school activities, including leisure and sport, child
care, before and after school, holiday and weekend
provision;

» A Youth Service provision on-site.

= Access to ICT and business facilities;

= Access to larger spaces e.g. halls, drama studios;

» The opportunity for some co-located health and social
services provision that reflect the priorities of the local
community.

» Continuing education and learning opportunities for local
people.

Parents will be expected to participate actively in the education of
their children, not just providing encouragement and support but also
being fully engaged in the home/school partnhership and other aspects
of academy life. The academy will look to infroduce modern and
immediate ways to communicate with parents.

Links will be established with other primary and secondary schools,
Further and Higher Education Colleges and local employers. It is
expected that the academy will make a valuable conftribution to
promoting social inclusion, equality and diversity.

13. Consultation

Independent Consultants, DJB Consultancy - Dame Jocelyn Barrow,
Lead Consultant, and Dawn Hill - are running the consultation process
for expansion of the academy. The Consultants have considerable
experience of working in education and with ULT. They aim to engage
all sectors of the community.

The consultation process will start from 01st June 2008, during which time
this consultation document will be widely circulated. DJB Consultancy
will undertake consultation in parallel with the Council and be in
attendance at the Public Consultation Meetings held by the Council
for parents, staff and governors and the Penhill Forum. DJB Consultancy
will further carry out a randon survey of Penhill parents and hold focus
groups with Penhill parents and pupils; a series of interviews with key
academy and Penhill staff and governors and key stakeholders in
Swindon including Headteachers of associated primary schools,

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 16
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 60



Appendix 3

Swindon Borough Council Education Officers and Councillors, and
tfrade union representatives.

The public meetings will be held at,

Penhill Primary School, Alton Close, Penhill, Swindon, SN2 5HF on,
09t June 2008

Parents/carers 3.30pm

Staff 4.45pm

Governors 6.00pm

Parents/carers 7.15pm

Penhill Forum, Penhill Primary School, Alton Close, Penhill, Swindon, SN2
5HF on 12t June 2008 at 6.00pm

Details of the above meetings will be given to local schools and
through the local media. At the public consultation meeting ULT and
the Council will each make a presentation and be available to
respond fo your questions and listen to your views, which will be
recorded by the consultants.

At the end of the consultation period, the Consultants will bring
together all the views from the consultation and prepare a report for
ULT, the DCSF, Swindon Borough Council and the schools concerned.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 17
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 61



Appendix 3

Interested parties can additionally express their views on the proposal

by writing to:

Jocelyn Barrow and Dawn Hill
DJB Consultancy

111 Helix Road

London, SW2 2JR

Mobile: 07947 371 639

Email: hilldawn@aol.com

Questions can also be addressed to:

Martyn Baker

ULT National Education Advisor and Project Manager
Church Schools House

Chapel Street

Titchmarsh

Northants NN14 3DA

Email: martyn.baker@church-schools.com

The document can also be accessed at:
www.ult.org.uk

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 18
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 62



Penhill/Swindon Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

CONTENTS

Map showing the location for the new academy and the local primary schools

1. Introduction 1
1.2 The Background Reasons for this Proposal 1
2. Consultation Process 3
3. The Key Issues for Consultation — Stakeholders’ Views 4
3.1 Attitudes to the Academy Proposal 4
3.2 Staff and other Key Stakeholders Attitudes 5
4. Transition Issues 9
5. Governance 9
6. Swindon Academy’s Response to the Views Expressed 10
7. Conclusion and Recommendation 11
REFERENCES 12
APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Key Stakeholders - Individual and Group Interviews
Appendix 2: Summary of Penhill Primary School Pupils’ Views

ADDENDUM: Penhill Primary & Nursery School Consultation:
A Survey of Parents Opinion

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
PROPOSAL TO EXPAND SWINDON ACADEMY

TO INCLUDE PENHILL PRIMARY AND NURSERY
SCHOOL

CONSULTATION REPORT

1. Introduction

This report summarises the findings of an extensive public consultation into the
proposal to expand the 0-19 Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary and
Nursery School.

Swindon Academy, sponsored by the United Learning Trust (ULT), opened in
September 2007. It replaced Headlands School, Pinehurst Infant and Junior
Schools. Swindon Borough Council (SBC) has proposed this closure of Penhill
Primary and Nursery School to allow it to be incorporated into Swindon Academy.

Following the Council’s decision to close the school, ULT will seek the Secretary
of State for the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) approval
for the expansion of the academy.

Under the proposal:

e The academy’s Penhill expansion would open in January 2009 in the
existing Penhill school building and which would have a planned
programme of refurbishment;

e The school would remain on its current site but under the governance and
management of the academy;

e Places would be guaranteed for all existing students at Penhill School into
the 0-11 element of the academy at the time the school closes in December
2008.

The aim is to improve the quality of education provided for the children of Penhill
and, in particular, to raise educational standards and strengthen the development
of good educational practice. This is in line with the DCSF expectations of local
authorities to implement targeted interventions in primary schools identified as
‘hard to shift’.

1.2 The Background Reasons for this Proposal

Penhill Primary School is on the DCSF National List of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary
schools. It has failed to meet the floor targets at Key Stage Two in both maths

1

Page 65



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
and English for five years, despite receiving considerable additional resources and

support from the Local Authority. An Ofsted inspection, which took place in
September 2006, judged the standards reached by learners to be inadequate
(Grade 4).

SBC has identified standards at Penhill Primary School as a critical issue that
needs to be addressed urgently. The Council is of the view that a structural
solution is required and as such recommends that the school becomes part of
Swindon Academy, where it would benefit from the academy’s drive to raise
standards.

The educational plans for the 0-19 academy, which are currently being developed,
propose for the academy to break out from traditional structures and introduce
systems where the needs of the individual learner can be more readily met and
personalised. Students will be progressed according to the ‘stage’ they are at in
their development rather than their chronological age. Such a development could
make it difficult for the current Penhill Primary School pupils to integrate into the
academy when they move at age 11.

As well as helping to raise local educational standards, an academy expanded to
include Penhill Primary School will promote inclusion and enjoy the benefits
attached to continuity of care and personnel, especially for more vulnerable
children.

ULT and SBC share the view that an all-age 0-19 academy is well-placed to
transform the education and learning opportunities for primary pupils of all abilities
from the surrounding area, raise aspirations and achievement and challenge
expectations of learning. It removes a number of transition issues when moving
from one school to another and provides continuity of teaching and learning for
pupils.! The development allows for a cross-curriculum approach to teaching and
learning across all the Key Stages ensuring individual levels of attainment are
improved.

During the consultation to establish Swindon Academy, which was carried out in
2006 by DJB Consultancy? on behalf of the sponsor United Learning Trust (ULT),
a number of respondents suggested that some of the academy’s feeder schools
(excluding Pinehurst Infant and Junior Schools, which are now part of the
academy) would be disadvantaged, i.e. Penhill, Gorse Hill and Seven Fields. 86%
of the academy’s student cohort comes from these feeder schools, with 20% from
Penhill.

1 Evidence shows that pupil performance dips, and pupil progress is slowed, as a result of moving
schools. In an area where raising standards of achievement is a key priority, which has not to-date
been successfully addressed through to age 16, it is vital that these barriers to progress are
removed.
? See Swindon Academy Consultation Report November 2006.

2

Page 66



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

2. Consultation Process

This independent public consultation was conducted by DJB Consultancy on
behalf of ULT and ran from 1% June to 14™ July 2008 in parallel with the statutory
SBC consultation process into the closure of Penhill Primary School.

The following areas are the key priorities explored in the independent consultation:

The academy’s intake and development;
Transition, continuity and progression;
Governance;

Community links and wider use.

The consultation period included:

Two formal consultation meetings on 9" June for parents, carers and the
community;

Separate meetings for staff including trades union representatives and the
governing body;

A meeting on 12™ June for the Penbill residents (Forum) and the public;

Face-to-face interviews and group meetings with a cross-section of the
schools’ staff, trades unions, senior SBC representatives, other key
education stakeholders, the Chair of Swindon Academy’s Local Governing
Body and the Councillor for the Penhill area; (Appendix 1 lists all
individuals and groups interviewed and written submissions)

Focus groups with students from Years 5 and 6; (Appendix 2 Summary of
students’ views)

An independent statistically-valid Survey of Public Opinion commissioned
among 50 parents which included two parent focus groups with a cross-
section of parents who participated in the Survey. It was an opportunity for
these parents to explore more fully the issues raised in the Survey. (See
Survey of Public Opinion Report)

The school-based meetings were also attended by the Head Teachers and Senior
Management Teams of Swindon Academy and of Penhill Primary and Nursery
School. A representative from SBC Human Resources was present to answer
guestions on TUPE and other conditions of service matters. The DJB Consultancy
Lead Officer chaired all the meetings and presentations were made by SBC and
ULT representatives with input from the Principal of Swindon Academy.

The Chair of Penhill School was unable to meet with us for a face-to-face interview
but was in attendance at all the school-based meetings and chaired the

3

Page 67



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

Governors’ meeting. He was requested and agreed to submit a written response,
but this has not been received to date. SBC forwarded the Governing Body’s
response to the Council dated 13" July to the consultants on 14" July.

3. The Key Issues for Consultation — Stakeholders’ Views

3.1 Attitudes to the Academy Proposal

The Penhill School Parents’ Survey (details are in the addendum to this report)
reports that parents were split in their attitudes to the proposal to expand the
academy to include Penhill with:

46% supporting/strongly supporting the proposal;
37% opposing/strongly opposing the proposal,
25% neither supporting nor opposing the proposal;
4% said they did not know.

3.1.1 Positive Responses

‘Since Swindon Academy took over Headlands, my other daughter's
education has improved.’

‘My eldest goes to the academy and is doing really well.’

‘I know from people needing one-to-one attention it's quite a long wait to
get things done here, but from what I've read it would be different at the
academy.’

‘It will raise the standard and the school is not all that good anyway.’
‘There will be higher standards with all the schools on one level.’

‘If it's going to improve a lot of things, then it's worth it and if it brings up
standards.’

‘There are non-curriculum activities, and | think the standards would be
raised if it were in the academy.’

‘| agree with them on the curriculum. If one child is slow they go down in
the curriculum a bit to help them.’

‘Might be a better education — | don't think it's brilliant at the moment.’
‘Part of it is their standards will improve over the next two years or so,
and they won’t have to keep looking for funds.’

‘| think Swindon Academy is brilliant. | have other children who were at
Headlands, and I've seen the changes and they worked well with my
older son with ADHS.’

‘It'll give them more education.’

‘Because | don’t think with the way Penhill is going, which is badly, that
it's very good — no anti-bullying policy, they don’t follow it up, and it
needs improving.’

3.1.2 Negative Responses:

‘My daughter has had a good education and | don't see why it should
change, it's fine.’

Page 68



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

e ‘| don't like the academy. My other daughter has had problems, the
headmistress doesn't listen, and it is difficult to see her.’

e ‘They are alright as they are.’

e ‘Firstly, the academy hasn’t been going that long and I've heard reports
of bullying. Too early to say if it's working.’

e ‘Because the academy hasn't done a lot for my oldest child (first year
there). His level has dropped dramatically — inexperienced teachers
there.’

e ‘How are they going to do it? The fact they’ll be bringing in kids from
other areas — less of a community if that happens.’

e ‘Why change when it's going ok?’

3.1.3 Don’t Know Responses:

e ‘It's too soon to say, the academy hasn’t been there long.’

e ‘You hear two different stories.’

e ‘There’s not a lot of difference. When my son leaves Penhill, he’ll be
going to the academy anyway.’

e ‘The proposal for Swindon Academy, the idea was that it would be all
together but they will still have to make a move to the Pinehurst site. On
the positive side they would (hopefully) bring the standards up.’

e ‘Because Penhill School newsletters say it wouldn’t benefit the children.’

e ‘The academy says it would benefit, and the media say it would be
good. | just don’t know really.’

3.2 Staff and other key stakeholders’ attitudes to the proposal on the key
issues for Penhill to join the academy

3.2.1 Teachers and teaching assistants at Penhill on the whole, but not entirely,
expressed a negative attitude towards the proposal. The trades union
representatives were clearly against it, both with regard to academies in
general and specifically against this proposal. Staff were also worried about
their job security and conditions of work.

The Year 5 and 6 pupils, in particular, were also largely against the
proposal. Much of this negativity was based on the feeling that not enough
was yet known about how the change would affect Penhill and how the
changes would be implemented.

There were concerns about the lack of evidence that joining the academy
would improve educational standards for the Penhill children. There was
also a feeling that Penhill would be just an “add-on” or would be “slotted in”
to the academy.

A further concern was that Penhill children and teachers would not fit in
since they would remain on the existing site and as such would not have

5

Page 69



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
the advantages of the academy’s infant and junior school which is on the

same site as the secondary school. Scepticism was expressed repeatedly
with regard to the upgrading of the Penhill buildings; it was frequently asked
why this refurbishment is only available now, while the proposal is on the
table.

A few teachers favoured the idea of Penhill becoming a Trust and there
was a suggestion that they would work with the community and partners
including Plymouth University to form such a Trust. There appeared,
however, to be a lack of understanding of the process and the timeframe for
such a move. Resentment was expressed about the fact that it seemed to
be a foregone conclusion that Penhill would ‘close down’ and join the
academy.

3.2.2 Strong concern was expressed by the union representatives and others that

they were being ‘railroaded’ into this decision. They claimed the timescales
were such that people did not know what was going to happen. The union
representatives also voiced their disquiet about the implication that Penhill
school would ‘close’. They also claimed that there had been a lack of
transparency in the process; 'People feel it's a done deal and we're just
going through the motions’.

The trades union representatives complained that they had not seen SBC’s
consultation document before it went out despite being told, they claimed,
that the schools would be the first to see it. They also said that they had
been told they would be able to contribute to the document but that had not
happened. These promises had, they said, been made by the previous
Director of Education. They also voiced concerns about conditions of work
and whether teachers would have to ‘resign’ before taking up a post at the
academy.

3.2.3 Overall the main objections included:

Lack of evidence that the academy can improve educational standards;
Feeling that an academy of 2,000 pupils is too big;

Research suggests that children feel safer and happier in a family
environment in a school no bigger than 300; ‘Particularly here, where we
have vulnerable children (SEN and EBD) — they cope here, they’re secure.
They struggle in secondary school.” ‘Children come with emotional
baggage — we are the consistent place in their lives. When given a new
teacher they don’t know how to cope.’

Concern over the ‘heavily weighted’ senior leadership team and whether
they will understand ‘Foundation’ children;

Not a good model to bring ‘secondary’ practice into primary schools;

Page 70



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

e Paragraph D of SBC’s consultation paper (vertically organised systems):
‘This is damaging to the children’s self esteem. They'll feel they’ve failed if
they are kept back. Both the children and the parents will be affected.’

e Perception that SBC wants to ‘dump’ Penhill into the academy so as not to
have to worry about the school any more; ‘It will no longer be their problem
and the SATs results for SBC will rise.’

e The timing of the decision-making and implementation process, and
especially the date of 23 July for the ‘Report’ to Cabinet; this was the last
day of the summer term.

e The money apparently being suddenly available for the refurbishment of
Penhill School. Will this money still be used for the school if it does not join
the academy?

3.2.4 Despite the above reservations, all the staff were aware that standards
need to be improved, though there was debate about how far this is
necessary. Some teachers appeared to feel that standards were
acceptable. Where teaching staff perceived that standards were not high
enough, this was blamed variously on the community, the children and the
Local Authority. A wide range of interventions for children with particular
needs was mentioned, though during the interviews at least, these
interventions appeared to be numerous and somewhat haphazard.

3.2.5 There is strong loyalty amongst the staff at the school and the residents of
the estate to the school, the Head Teacher and the community. From the
following quotations, it appears that there are four main strands running
through both the support staff and teachers’ thinking:

1. ‘The children are lovely, but very, very needy’;

2. ‘We love working in this school, we love the children and the Head
Teacher

3 ‘Standards of education in the school are not as high as they might be,
but the children are happy’;

4. ‘We've done our best’.

3.2.6 A view supporting the academy move suggested that Penhill had strengths,
e.g. improvement in attainment levels of the more able pupils and also the
development of the teachers, but that there were ‘confused structures’ in
the school with a lack of focus, sustained teaching and performance
management. Expectations were also a problem, with the Local Authority
cited as having low expectations of Penhill; a significant stakeholder said:
‘Everyone has low expectations of the children’. It was stated that the Local
Authority had poured money in, but had not set standards and moved

Page 71



3.2.7

3.2.8

Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
children on. It was also suggested that the people living on the Penhill

estate would like the estate pulled down.

The overriding debate appears to be over the differing views of the
educational standards at Penhill and whether or not joining the academy
would make a difference.

The Penhill view is that the CVA (Contextual Value Added) score, which
identifies how much progress the children have progressed between the
KS1 SATs and the KS2 SATSs, gives a more informed indication of progress
as it takes into consideration the original starting points of the children, not
just the end result. It now also takes into consideration factors such as the
social and economic background of the catchment area — factors which are
acknowledged to be relevant to the progress and attainment of the children.

The CVA score for Penhill Primary for 2007 is 99.0. When listed in order of
CVA score, highest to lowest, there were five schools listed below Penhill
Primary. Two of those schools listed below Penhill Primary also missed
their ‘floor targets’ for mathematics and English. Three of the schools listed
below Penhill Primary met their ‘floor targets’ for mathematics and English.
All of those schools listed below Penhill Primary had higher aggregate
scores, yet their lower CVA scores indicate that the progress of the children
in those schools, between KS1 and the end of KS2, is not as good as the
progress of those at Penhill Primary.

Swindon Academy, however, has provided the consultants with the
following evidence about Penhill students entering the academy:

When tracking Year 7 students on entry and through the year it is evident
that those coming from Penhill present particular challenges that others on
the same scale do not. On average:

a. They are already below other schools in terms of KS2 standards,
particularly in English and science;

b. Their CATs scores are below those of students from other primary

schools;

Their average reading age at 11 is just over seven years;

Within the first six months of Year 7 they do not make the same level

of progress as other students academically or behaviourally. In fact,

significant numbers present challenging behaviour during this time as
they adjust to secondary school. This has been particularly
pronounced this year;

e. A significant number arrive with high levels of SEN which have not
been addressed. The academy has had to spend a great deal of time
applying for Statements of Need within the first few months. This has
been the case for four students this year. When talking with the

Qo

8

Page 72



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
parents of these students they often said that Penhill School just sent
their son or daughter home when they were naughty;

f. A significant number were withdrawn from the National Curriculum last
year (five, possibly eight). They do not appear, however, to have
followed an alternative programme and were not informed of their
withdrawal. The academy was therefore unprepared for them in
September.

4. Transition Issues

4.1 There was some disquiet voiced by the staff at Penhill about the transition of
Year 6 pupils to the ‘Headlands’ academy site. Some of their thinking
appeared to be muddled; there was recognition that by joining the academy
there would be continuity of education from 0 -19, but simultaneously
concerns were raised about how the transition would take place, and whether
Penhill children would be disadvantaged viz-a-viz Pinehurst children. They
asked how the children from Penhill would fit in if the proposal went ahead. It
was felt that the traditional ‘dip’ in standards on transition at Year 6/7 would
continue despite being all part of one institution.

Questions were also asked about whether the teaching assistants would
‘move up’ alongside the Year 6 pupils to help them manage the transition. It
was said that ‘it’s still a significant way to travel at transition time’.

Another point of view from staff in support suggested that transition will be
easier as the ‘children aged 11 will follow through with the same remit. The
same ethos will be followed'.

4.2 The academy is aware of the issues raised about the transition and has said
that working together with the same systems will make transition easier. It did
recognise, however, that as the Penhill Year 6 children will have been
physically separate they could feel ‘different. However, it was a “solvable
problem’.

The academy view is that it can build on the strengths that Penhill has and can
bring:

1. A consistent and coherent approach to teaching and learning which the
children need,;

2. An opportunity to build strong relationships with parents and the community
which will grow throughout the children’s education. This has been
significant for the academy this year and which is already seeing the
benefits;

3. A specialist delivery to aspects of the curriculum with targeted intervention
when needed. The curriculum can be delivered as a coherent framework
from 0 — 19, thus raising aspirations and expectations;

Page 73



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

4. Targeted SEN provision from a large team of specialists to ensure that

students’ needs are met early and proactively. The academy can provide
SEN support on a scale which Penhill cannot.

5. Governance

Staff across the board, from Sure Start, Penhill Primary and Nursery School and
members of the Penhill community voiced the same concerns:

e Will there be / Is there enough representation of primary school expertise at
Senior Management level?

e Will the needs of the primary level be catered for in the Governing Body of
the academy?

e What is the make-up of the academy’s Governing Body and will the existing
governors from Penhill be able to join the academy’s Governing Body?

At the public meeting with residents and the Penhill (Forum) community, very
strong views were expressed about governance, and some people who were at
the meeting were invited to apply to join the academy’'s Governing Body. It
appeared that some members of the community did not appreciate that they could
put themselves up for election as governors.

Concerns were also raised, both at the forum meeting and during some interviews,
about whether governors would be elected or appointed. People were particularly
worried about ULT ‘appointing’ governors.

6. Swindon Academy’s response to the views expressed

Swindon Academy’s vision is to see every member of the school community
achieve their best. It faces the challenges of deprivation but will never allow that
to be an excuse for underachievement. The academy provides a broad ranging
and personalised curriculum and supports its students to do their best. The
academy intends the same to be true for the children of Penhill if they become part
of Swindon Academy.

ULT and the academy acknowledge that much still needs to be done, and the
academy is only just beginning to ‘bed down’ but there are enthusiastic teachers
who will make things work. The academy is also looking forward to the completion
of its new buildings.

The academy describes the current situation as a time of transition. Although
there are still some difficulties at the academy, staff and students are working
together to overcome them. Continuity of education across the 0-19 age range will
provide an anchor for the children and offer opportunities for children’s attainment
to be monitored and appropriate interventions provided where necessary. Poor
standards of literacy in the primary age range is a significant problem.

10

Page 74



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

Both we and the academy were, however, concerned to hear a number of
comments made at consultation meetings which either made assumptions with no
basis or had little to do with the children and their opportunities.

Having spoken with Penhill parents, it was clear that a number of inaccurate
rumours have spread, including that the school was to be knocked down and the
staff sacked, so it is no wonder some were angry!

The academy acknowledges that there will be complexities in Penhill joining the
academy. In particular, a special effort will need to be made to ensure Penhill
pupils ‘fit in’; this is because they will not be located on the same site as the rest of
the academy and also because they will be joining later. Although the academy
acknowledges these complexities, it is confident that they can be overcome — with
goodwill, good management structures and everybody working together to
achieve what they all want — the very best education for the children. Having
carried out this consultation, we likewise believe this is possible.

The Principal of Swindon Academy has offered to talk to senior staff, staff and
governors about the structures and details of the academy as they are at the
moment. She has also invited them to visit the Beech Avenue site to see the
academy in action. It is very much hoped that these offers will be accepted.

7. Conclusion and Recommendation
In November 2006, the School Improvement and Targets Unit stated:

‘The Local Authority will be challenged to justify the continued existence of these
schools (hard to shift primary schools), with the strong presumption that those
schools unlikely to meet the target by 2008 should be considered for closure. The
Local Authority, in justifying the need to preserve provision in that school, Penhill,
has used many other statutory interventions to raise attainment.’

The Local Authority, however, having taken into consideration the concerns
raised, feels that although there has been some improvement, the best
educational solution for further sustainable improvement is for Penhill Primary and
Nursery School to be included in Swindon Academy.

We have not been given any detail of the Governors’ Trust alternative to this
academy proposal so we are not in a position to comment on it.

Therefore, on the balance of the evidence gathered, it is our view that the more
significant issues raised can be overcome.

11

Page 75



Penhill/ Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4
We recommend that the Principal of Swindon Academy and the Head Teacher of

Penhill Primary set up a Transition and Development Working Group with ULT
guidance to work out the best way forward.

We therefore recommend that the proposal for Penhill School to be included in
Swindon Academy should be progressed, as it offers the best way forward for
continued improvement.

REFERENCES

A Proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary and Nursery
School — ULT Consultation Document.

Proposals to close Penhill Primary School and Nursery to allow expansion of the
Swindon Academy — SBC Children Services.

Improving Attainment in Primary Schools Below Floor targets — DCSF School
Improvement and Targets Unit, November 2006.

Swindon Academy Consultation Report, November 2006.

Swindon Academy and Sure Start Children’s Centre, Pinehurst and Penhill —
Partnership Principles and Working Relationship Policy.

Penhil/Swindon Academy Preliminary Report July 2008.

12

Page 76



Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report

September 2008
Appendix 4
Appendix 1
Key Stakeholders Individual and Group Interviews
Swindon Borough Council
John Gilbert Director of Children and Young Peoples Services
lan Bickerton Director of Local Provision
Martin Coles Director of Quality Provision
Swindon Academy
Sir Anthony Greener Chair of Governors
Jan Shadick Principal
Paul Dunmore Assistant Principal, Development
Shaun McKeown Assistant Principal, Community
Penhill Primary & Nursery School
Linda Rankin Head teacher
Mandy Sturman Deputy Head teacher
Vicki Wyatt Deputy Head teacher
Emma Chapman Yrl Class teacher, Music Co-ordinator
Claire Neville Yr 3/4 Leader, MFL Co-ordinator
Carol Shute SENCO - Job share
Maggie Watts SENCO
Avril Marder Nursery Teacher, Nursery Leader
Chris Gulliver Higher Learning Teaching Assistant (HLTA)
Pam Mitchell Teaching Assistant for Gifted & Talented
Sue Ballantyne Teaching Assistant - works with Interventions KS2
Trades Union Representatives
Debbie New NASUWT, Arts & Humanities Team Leader
Steve Beale NUT, PE Co-ordinator
Tracey Rogers ATL, Special Needs Teacher

Correspondence has been received from the following:

02.06.08 — Creighton Muirhead, Headteacher of Ruskin Junior School
26.06.08 — Marilyn Beale, on behalf of Penhill Forum Steering Group
15.07.09 - Helen Beale, a former pupil.

14.07.08 - Governors’ response

14.07.08 - GMB Trade Union

10.07.08 - Valerie Golden

26.07-08 - Penhill Forum Steering Group

20.07.08 — Phil Deaves

19.07.08 — Amanda Broomhill, parent

24.07.08 — Ms C Bourton, parent

Page 77



Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

09.07.08 — Ms Jan Shadick, Principal, Swindon Academy

Page 78



Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

Summary of Penhill Primary School Pupils’ Views - Years 5 & 6
An overview

Ten pupils each from Years 5 and 6 participated in two focus groups to express their
views on the possible inclusion of their school to become part of the academy.
Nearly all the pupils expressed a general feeling of negativity towards the proposal
that Penhill should become part of the academy. There was also a strong feeling that
the children had been heavily influenced by the adults they had been listening to —
both parents and teachers.

When asked if they knew why they had been asked to come to this meeting, one boy
said, “It's to discuss the little problem of joining the academy.” When questioned
about why the proposal to join the academy might be a ‘problem’ he responded: “I've
heard things on the radio and from my parents. The school might shut down and all
the teachers might go. We might get a new Head Teacher”. Another child joined in
and said, “Miss “Y” keeps on saying the Head Teacher and all the teachers would
change”. One Year 5 boy announced with conviction, “My mum says I'm leaving if it
becomes an academy.” Some Year 6 pupils stated: “The lessons should stay the
same. Our teachers try to boost us up. The grades here are good enough. I like the
teachers and the lessons (well, some teachers). Miss “X” does a good job and has
been here for so many years”. “All the teachers say they’ll leave it becomes an
academy”.

About 80% of the Year 6 pupils who will be going to the academy said they felt
reasonably happy about going there and about 20% said they felt ‘so-so’.

Of the 10 Year 6 pupils interviewed, three said they would be going to other
secondary schools, two were unsure, and the rest thought they would be going to the
Academy. A year 6 girl said: “I'm not going to the academy because my sister went
to Headlands.

Of the 10 Year 5 pupils interviewed, only one boy and one girl appeared to be
reasonably happy about the proposal, and were sure they would go to the academy
in Year 7. The others expressed a high degree of negativity towards the idea of
Penhill becoming part of the academy.

It was noticeable that the Year 5 pupils had a more negative attitude to the proposal
than the pupils in Year 6. This could be because they realise that if the proposal
goes through, then they will experience two major changes: changes within Penhill
for two terms prior to transition to their secondary school. This is clearly making them
feel uncertain and vulnerable. They seem nervous of change. This links to the
comments made by some teachers that Penhill is the one consistent place in their
lives.

Page 79



Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

The table below is for comparison of responses between Yr 6 and Yr 5 pupils:

Question

Year 6

Year 5

What have you heard
about the academy?

e The grades have
gone down since it
became an
academy.

e You get bullied

e Theygoin at
different times

e Don't have to do
science if you
don’t want to

e It's very big

e Big kids running
around the little
kids, being nasty
to the little kids

Do you have any worries
about going to the
academy?

1) They put your head
down the toilet.

2) Everyone gets bullied.

3) The throw egg and
flour over you

1) How it will affect my
education.

2) How much I'll have to
do notes — | hate notes.

2) Bullying

3) Making friends —
people taking the “micky”

4) New teachers

Have you heard anything
good?

1) Good PE
2) Nice food

3) Uniform — you have to
wear it (not like at Penhill
where you don’t have to)

1)The uniform is good

2)The maths is good

Would you like to see any
improvements at Penhill?

Be like Pinehurst
New windows
More paint

Car park

More playgrounds

More equipment

Bigger classrooms

Bike holders

Jungle gym

Slide

Swing

Better equipment

for the Nursery

e 2more
classrooms

e Music sessions —

particularly drums

Page 80




Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report

September 2008
Appendix 4
e After school clubs
— computers
e Artclub
How to deal with “Don’t shout at e Get sent home
troublesome pupils? troublesome children” e Get more work
e Detention
Detention e All the naughty
e Isolation if really ones should go in
bad one class
e Exclusion e Sent out of the
room
Get expelled

At Penhill you can get
exclusion for a day — not
really bad

e Write an essay
Be given a letter
home

About Homework:

About 1 hour a day at
Penhill. Some said they
did no homework, while
others said their parents
helped them with their
homework.

There is an assumption
that there will be less
homework at first at the
academy.

“We’ve got homework
books”.

“We don't get any
homework”.

“We've all got books.”

Almost all these Yr 5
pupils felt they should be
given more homework.

The subjects they want to
have at the academy
are:

e Maths, English
Science
Biology

e Geography

Design and

Technology

Music

IT — computers

Art

Cooking

Electronics

Woodwork

History (about

50% said this)

Drama

PE

Dance

Science

Art

Geography
Maths

Literacy
Everything

Music

Sport

Football
Archaeology

Art — making
things out of wood
and tissue paper
e Drawing and clay

Things they would like to
see in their new school:

Interactive
whiteboards
e PE Equipment

e Drama Club
Climbing Club
e After-school club

3

Page 81




Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report

September 2008
Appendix 4
e New play (Mum is at work)
equipment e Sewing Club
Drama Studio e Basketball team
e Computers e Tennis
Nice teachers and o Golf
pupils e Cricket
Big sports hall e Drawing and
e The teachers from painting

Penhill (most of
them)
e Amusement park
for playtime
Big field
Swimming pool
Science things
Good security
Equipment for
maths, English

e Cooking club

and science
¢ New toilets
My opinion be
listened to
Trampoline
e Giant swing
What extra help or extras e A homework club e Maths
would you like to see at to help with e Literacy
your new school? homework * Writing and
e Extra help with reading
school work ¢ Reading
e Youth club e Writing
e Singing club e Maths
e Lockers e Homework club
e A school bus “We could do better —
both me and this school
could do better.”
Travel to school at Walk: 9 Bus: 1 Walk mostly: 6

present?

Driven by parents
sometimes: 4 - 6

Travel to academy?

Walk: 5 - parents would
occasionally drive

Bus: 1 occasionally
Bike: 1 occasionally

Walk: 5 Driven: 1 Bus: 3
(some are going to other
schools)

Have you visited the
academy?

Yes - 10

Yes -5

Page 82




Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report
September 2008

Appendix 4

Talked to teachers atthe | Yes-7 -
academy?

Attended Open Day at Yes-5 -
the academy?

Responses to the above: | The teachers seemed
kind. They wanted to
know about us. They took
photos of us to put in our
books when we get there.
They made us feel better
about the academy.
We're going to the
academy on Wednesday
— Ms Shaddick is going to
be hidden — we have to
look for clues

Asked if they had “Don’t change Penhill. “No point in turning
anything else to add: Leave Penhill the way it | Penhill into an academy
is.” because there are
already 2 schools in the
academy.”

“If this school turns into
an academy I’'m definitely
moving because | didn'’t
just come to this school
just to see a hew
Headteacher and new
teachers. | don’t want to
see new faces. | don't
want to re-start with my
knowledge.”

“You shouldn’t turn it into
an academy. We're
proud to be Penhill.”

“You shouldn’t turn it into
academy in the middle of
the school year —

Page 83



Penhill/Swindon Academy Consultation Report

September 2008
Appendix 4

January 2009.”

Page 84



Penhill Primary and Nursery School
Consultation: A survey of parents’
opinion

Prepared for DJB Consultancy on behalf of ULT
July 2008

EW Research

Page 85



TUO T U U000 U0 U0 U UGB U U U U U WL WL WU

Background

e Swindon Academy was established in September 2007 by the Department for Children, Schools and
Families and Swindon Borough Council in collaboration with the sponsor, the United Learning Trust
s Swindon Borough Council has now proposed expanding the Academy to include Penhill School

+ DJB Consultancy has commissioned a consultative opinion poll amongst a sample of parents with a child
attending Penhill Primary and Nursery School

*  The aims of the research are:

to find out parents views on educational standards at Penhill

—  Tofind out whether parents support or oppose the proposal and reasons for their views
—  Toassess the expected effect on children and on Penhill school

—  Toidentify concerns around the proposal

—  Tomeasure attitudes to proposed building refurbishments

*  All respondents were given a brief introduction:

I would like to ask you your views on a proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill

Primary and Nursery School. As you may know, Swindon Academy opened in 2007. It is a school for

children aged 0 to 19. If the proposal goes ahead, Penhill School would close in December 2008 and

re-open as part of the Academ q_m L.: Lm::w._.t 2009, on th me site as it is now. Existing Penhill pupils
e aim of th r

e sa
would be guaranteed a place. e proposal is to raise standards at Penhill by making it
part of the Academy.

Page 86




TOO000UOO0T 000U 00UV OUUIUUDUUUUUUUHY

The consultation process began on 15 June 2008 and included the widespread circulation of a
consultation document, public meetings and interviews with key stakeholders

DJB Consultancy commissioned EW Research to carry out research among parents/carers to assess
attitudes to the proposal

It was felt that a combined qualitative and guantitative approach would give both a broad range and
depth of response

A total of 52 parents were interviewed for the survey (there are 400 children on roll)

—  Parents were approached and interviewed on a random basis as they visited school between 18" and 25" June 2008
—  Interviewers working on the survey wers fully trained and briefed and had completed CRB checks

Interviews were conducted face to face in the school playground. The school was kept fully informed of the
survey

Following the survey, two focus groups were conducted among a total of 13 parents (mainly mothers)
to investigate attitudes in more detail

The groups took place on 2" July 2008 at Penhill School. Parents attending were selected to
represent a range of opinion both for, against and unsure

One group was made up of parents from households where the chief income earner is on benefits or
working in an unskilled job, while the other was made up of parents who tended to be working, some
in non-manual occupations

The survey has been conducted by EW Research, an independent market research agency which
operates according to the Market Research Society Code of Conduct.

Page 87



Sample details: 52 parents

Gender % | Working status % School year of child/children %
Male 29 Full time 8 Nursery class 13
Female 71 Part time 12 Reception 13
Unemployed 21 Years 1 or2 58
Housewife 29 Years 3or4 33
No answer given 27 Years 5 or6 31
Age %o Ethnicity % Religion %
18-24 years 8 White 98 None 65
25-34 years 48 | Asian 2 Church of England 23
35-44 years ar Catholic 8
45+ 8 Muslim 4
Social Class* % The sample reflects the profile of parents:
AB 6 - Predominantly DE socio-economic grouping
C1 2 (unskilled workers or those reliant on state
c2 25 benefits)
DE 67 - Seven in ten of those surveyed are women.
In our experience mothers traditionally take
lead role in children's education
- The large majority are white British,

reflecting demographics of the area

Page 88



pono 000000000000 UUTBOUOUUUUNNUER0EEd

Summary and conclusions

 Almost half of parents (46%) support the proposal for Penhill School to
become part of the Academy while a third (37%) oppose it. Parents are

overall split in their attitudes to the proposal. The main reasons given by
those in favour are:

— Children will find the secondary transfer process easier if they are already part of
the Academy

— They have a positive opinion of the Academy which may be due to their child’s
experience

— They like the sound of the individual approach to learning
— Standards are likely to go up at Penhill

¢ Those against the proposal cite the following reasons:
— Good teachers may leave Penhill

— Penhill would remain on a separate site to the Academy, which may cause
children to have trouble integrating

— Some parents do not have a good opinion of the Academy, as they feel
discipline is an issue and there are too many supply teachers

L

Page 89



pooopooooCOODOODOQOOUOUUT

Summary and conclusions

« Parents feel the proposal is already decided and their views will not truly be
taken into account. They feel disappointed with the public meeting which

they say failed to answer their questions. They tend to feel that Penhill is
treated less well and receives less funding than other schools

« Many parents are happy with educational standards at Penhill at the
moment. This may be because of low expectations in an area with a
traditional lack of educational attainment

« Others feel standards should be improved and in particular more homework
should be set and marked, the ratio of adults to children in classes should
be increased, and those children falling behind should be identified earlier

and given special help

Page 90



ponoonoODOO0O0UOUOOUCUUUOUUUUUNUUNNUUUUEE

Summary and conclusions

e Parents would benefit from clear reassurance and information on a number
of their concerns:

— They would like to know whether the building improvements will go ahead if
Penhill does not become an Academy, and would like a clear explanation of the
programme of school buildings improvements including other primary schools

— They would like clarification over uniform: in particular, will it become
compulsory at Penhill (which many would like) and will they have to buy uniform
twice, once in September and once in January

— Parents would like to know that someone is listening to and taking account of
their views

— Parents would like to know what will happen to the headteacher and teachers if
the proposal goes ahead

— Parents would like more information on the process of integration at the
secondary stage for Penhill children

— Parents would like to know more about attitudes to discipline at Swindon
Academy

Page 91



pononooooonooOnOOOOQUOOQOOQUOQUOONT

Parents have mixed views on the need for standards

to be raised at Penhill

46%

50%

4%

Base: All (52)

[l Penhill needs to raise standards

W Standards are fine at the moment
M Don't know

Q Ofsted education inspectors have judged the standards at Penhill at Key Stage 2 to be low and have advised that standards
need to be raised. Others think standards are fine at the moment. Which of the statements comes closest to your view?

Page 92



- aan DR DR R 00000 0UUUUUUTOUUUoTUUTE

Three parents in five think it is very important that

educational standards are raised within two years

37%

Yo

2% 8%

Base: All (52)

B Urgent

| Very important @ Quite important

£ Not important m Don't know

Q How important would you say it is that Penhill School raises its standards of education over the next two years?

Page 93



mERER

* Parents are generally warm and enthusiastic about Penhill, and in particular

they

* Some parents feel standards are fine at the moment, feeling children will learn
if they want to and are ready to, and what is most important is for the school
to provide a happy environment

*  Others feel standards should be raised, as they are variable from class to
class. Working parents are more likely than those not working to feel
standards should be raised

gbudubvuuunbuduuvuduluueoooooT

Overall, the school and teachers are valued but some

would like to see standards raised

like:
The teachers, many of whom they say have taught at the school a long time, and
genuinely care about the children

Family Learning at Key Stage 1. which is reported to bring parents together and
encourage them to mix, as well as providing a gualification

The position of the school as the heart of the community: many parents attended the
school themselves

Parents who have wanted their children to be set homework say they have had to
push for this, and when homework is set it is not always marked

The teaching environment would be improved by more teaching assistants in class
Some feel the problem in the area is the lack of input from some parents: some do
not have high expectations of education. Parents feel it is hard to raise standards
when a substantial proportion of parents do not value or want this

Some parents may struggle themselves with reading and learning so may not be
equipped to support their children

If there is a lack of back-up at home it is hard for the school to enforce higher
standards

p—

Page 94



ppooouuooOoUOOOO000000UUUUTO 000 ag

Many would like uniform to be made compulsory

«  For many parents Penhill school's attitude to uniform represents a lack of
complete commitment to raising standards

Unitorm at the moment is optional, which some parents think is fairer to those who
may naot be able to afford uniform

However, most think uniform for all children looks better and brings the children
together with a sense of belonging

This opinion is felt among parents dependent on benetits as well as working parents

Therefore, parents would welcome clearer direction on uniform for the school. It
uniform becomes compulsory this should be enforced

Parents feel compulsory uniform would be a good preparation for secondary school

* A concern voiced on uniform is that if Penhill becomes part of the Academy in
January, parents may have to buy uniform twice in a school year, once in
September and then again when the change happens in January

Clarification over uniform would therefore be well received

*  Some parents feel that Penhill is badly treated in comparison to other schools
in the borough

They believe that Penhill receives least funding and rarely receives new equipment
or building refurbishments

They report that the head has repeatedly been told that no money is available for
building work at Penhill

Page 95



pppoguoooooRoOOOUOOUUOUooouoouooEun

Parents are looking for answers to their concerns

about the proposal

* Awareness of the proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill
school is high
—  94% of the 52 parents surveyed are aware of the proposal
— Some parents are aware of United Learning Trust as the sponsor
— Almost all have received the consultation document and several attended a public
meeting
— Attitudes to the information received and the consultation in general tend to be

negative, as a strong feeling among parents is that the proposal has already been
decided so there is little use their voicing their opinion

« Some parents received the impression at the public meeting that those
presiding did not really listen to what parents had to say and did not answer
questions

— The end result was that parents left feeling dissatisfied
— Some parents feel that the Council, the sponsor and the Principal at the Academy

have not subsequently been willing to give answers to parents’ questions, particularly
on building work at Penhill

..mo:,_mjmcmqmmaﬁmno:wc:mzo:n_oo::,_o:rm:aaoqm:mcmagmmomao:m
Eoﬂx_,:mum_.mzﬂmm:aﬁowm__::_m:mqmoo_o(ono:o:.___nm__acum
iA:m_Evamm_o:oI:maoocam:__mEmﬁx_mﬂoogo:@_fimqocﬁoﬂSmquuowm_m:n
n_omm_._oﬁuﬁmm:irmm_SSm:qmsméuomE
|._.:_m :mm_ _:ézjumqm%m_<._m£m5m:jmOoc:nm_:mmm_am%amoama__iméc_\orjm -
proposal

* Parents would like to feel that someone is listening to and taking account of
their views. It is important to counteract the widespread feeling that the

proposal is already decided and provide reassurance to parents on their key
questions

Page 96



pppoopooooOoOOOOOOORQOUQOOQOOOOOUUD

There is no clear consensus among parents on

whether the proposal will benefit Penhill School or not

37%

Base: All (52)

= Will be of benefit

m Will be of no benefit

E Don't know

* Q On balance, do you think it will be of benefit or no benefit to Penhill Schoal to be included in Swindon Academy?

Page 97



gpooponpoouoooogooooooUOUOOUO0OOCOCUOURE

The proposal may lead to higher standards but

parents fear teachers will leave

«  Parents are concerned that the proposal will cause teachers to leave the
school because they are against the change in status, or because they will be
made to hand in their notice and re-apply for their job. As already stated,
parents value teachers highly

—  Some feel this will have a negative effect on the school as it will lose its most
valuable resource
Similarly, parents fear it will not be beneficial to the school if the head is not on site

* The perceived benefits for Penhill are in improvements in educational
| standards

- Parents feel this would be a good thing as on balance the school could do with
raising standards

-  Some feel that Swindon Academy has proved that it can raise standards as it has
greatly improved teaching and learning after changing from Headlands School

—  Others feel that the Academy approach is currenily untested as it has been open
only a year and results are not yet available

—  Similarly, it is unknown how it would work when applied to a primary school

*  Some parents would welcome improved access to extra-curricular activities
such as after school clubs, and feel this is needed at Penhill

= However, some fear that Penhill would lose its identity if it becomes part of
the Academy

—  Others feel that the it is people that make the identity of a school, and it would be
important to ensure this remains un changed as far as possible

Page 98



DNDDHEODDOOODUUUUUUUNUUUUUUUUUUUUEEL

Parents fear the separate site may cause problems for
Penhill children after secondary transfer

* The main benefit of the proposal for the children is
perceived to be an easier transition to secondary
school

— Children will feel they belong to something, so that when
they move on they are still part of the school, which
makes the process of integration less difficult

— Children will know their new teachers: the familiar faces
will help the transfer

* The main drawback parents see for the children is the
geographical issue of Penhill remaining on a different
sSite

— The children may be perceived as different from others

who are based on the main site and singled out as
Penhill kids

— Inthe worst case parents fear children would be bullied

— Part of this perception is the already identified feeling
that Penhill is less well regarded and receives lower
funding than other schools in the area

Page 99



 pon o BHEBRDODOODREBUUUUUUUUUUUUUNUNUUUUL
Attitudes to Swindon Academy are mixed; some

parents are positive while others remain unsure

» Most parents agree that Swindon Academy is a great
improvement on Headlands school, and they give credit to
the Academy for the change

» Some parents, especially those with a child at the Academy,
are positive towards it, in particular the individual approach
to learning

— The Academy is highly rated for its work with special needs
children

« Others feel Swindon Academy has problems, in particular a
perceived lack of discipline among the children, bullying is
allowed to go unchecked and fighting is an issue

— Some comment that the standard of teaching is not always high as they
feel there are too many supply teachers or inexperienced teachers

« For many parents it is too soon to tell, as the Academy has

been open only a year, and they feel they need longer to
judge the school

o'l'

Page 100



poBREEEDEDOOREODOBOOOOOORUUUUUUOOOOC!
Almost half (46%) support the proposal while a third

(37%) oppose it

12%

135 e 259,

Base: All (52)
B Strongly support H Support & Neither /nor
L1 Oppose ® Strongly oppose ® Don't know

Q Do you support or oppose the proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill school?

Page 101



SRR EEEEEEEEREEERE R R AR ER RN EER

Attitudes to the proposal are mixed

Many support the proposal because they would like to
see standards raised at Penhill

Parents with a positive view of the Academy due to

personal experience are particularly likely to support
the proposal

— Many feel the change would help children with special
needs or those needing individual attention
— Those who have heard of the curriculum which offers

individual tailored learning are in favour of this approach
as it offers the best solution for each child

Page 102

Others feel the proposal would result in children
becoming unhappy
— They may not integrate fully as they are from a separate site
— Staff changes would mean lack of continuity and uncertainty

— Some are unhappy with discipline and teaching standards at
the Academy




popREREBRRRRORRORRORO0UUCUCEUUUUUHOT
The large majority think building improvements at

Penhill are an important priority

42%

Base: All (52)

E Very high priority B Fairly high priority [l Neither /nor

W |ow priority B Don't know

Q The proposal includes plans to improve buildings and facilities at Penhill including a nursery block with no mobile

classrooms, a landscaped car park at the front of the school and an independent youth and community centre. How much of a
priority do you think it is that building improvements are made at Penhill?

Page 103



:

103NN UENEURENUREENUERUUCOUORO
Parents would like to see building improvements at

Penhill

* Most parents think Penbhill is in need of building
Improvements
— In particular they would like to see refurbishment of the car

park, the nursery block, the drainage, the toilets, leaking roofs
and the playground

— The feeling appears to be that these improvements are
important but not urgent

* Discussion of the building improvements causes
parents to question why these would be made only if
the school becomes an Academy (as parents believe)

— This seems unfair to many

— Parents compare Penhill's status with other local
schools which they perceive receive greater funding for

building works; this contributes to the consensus that
Penhill is treated unfairly

— ltis important to clarify for parents the building works
programme and under what circumstances the
refurbishments will take place

20

Page 104



'EEEEEEEEEEEREERERENEERREREEERERE N R EE R EEE R

Interest is expressed in adult learning, IT and leisure

and sport facilities for young people

« Parents feel the school at the moment has strong links with
the wider community, due to the fact that many parents
attended the school themselves, and the school is the heart
of the community

— Nevertheless, parents acknowledge the school does not currently offer
its facilities to the wider community, and there is some interest in
changing this situation

— Adult education is of interest, because of the need to improve standards
in the area, and to help children with homework

- Parents express interest in the continuation of Family Learning

* Some problems of behaviour relate to the fact that there is
not enough for young people to do locally, according to
parents; it would be a good idea to offer more facilities

— A youth club including structured leisure activities would be a
good idea

— Sport especially football would be popular

Page 105

* Parents would like to have access to school IT facilities

* Parents like the idea of childcare in the form of before and
after school clubs, but in practice they say this can be too
expensive for those not working or on low incomes



EW Research

51 Falkland Road
Barnet

ENS 4LQ

Tel: 020 8440 7291

Page 106



Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Appendix 5

Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of

Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET Date: 23 July 2008

Author: Cabinet Member for Health, Housing and Adult Social Care and Group

Director, Children

Parish / Wards Affected: Penhill, Gorse Hill & Pinehurst and Moredon

Purpose

To report on the outcome of pre-statutory consultation on the proposal to amalgamate
Penhill Primary School with Swindon Academy. This would involve the closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery to allow the expansion of Swindon Academy on
the existing Penhill site in refurbished accommodation

Recommendations

Cabinet is requested to:

consider the responses set out in this report to the pre-statutory consultation
carried out into the proposed closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery in
Appendix 3, and the summary of the consultation undertaken by DJB
Consultancy, independent consultants appointed by the United Learning Trust
(ULT) set out in Appendix 4, regarding the proposal to expand Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary School and Nursery.

authorise the Group Director, Children to publish statutory proposals to close
Penhill Primary School and Nursery with effect from 31 December 2008, on the
basis that it becomes part of Swindon Academy with effect from 1 January 2009;

note that the outcome of the statutory consultation will be reported to the Cabinet
Panel that considers and makes final decisions on school reorganisation proposals.

1.

Reasons

1.1  The aim of the proposed closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to
allow the expansion of Swindon Academy is to improve the overall quality
of education provided for the children of Penhill and, in particular, to raise
educational standards and strengthen the development of good practice.

1.2  Standards of attainment at the end of 2007 were inadequate and well
below the national average, although, overall, pupils made satisfactory
progress. The Ofsted inspection in September 2007 judged that
achievement overall across the School was satisfactory, although

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 109




Appendix 5

Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of

CABINET

Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

Date: 23 July 2008

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

performance was not consistent and varied across Year groups and
subjects. The Ofsted inspection graded the school in twenty seven areas.
In two of these areas — healthy lifestyles, and safe practices — the school
received a grade 2 (generally above average). In twenty-three areas the
school received a grade 3 (broadly average to below average) and in two
areas it received a grade 4 (exceptionally low). These two areas were the
standards reached by learners’ and pupil attendance. This judgement
confirms the view of the Local Authority that pupils in this school are not
achieving well enough at primary level to be successful in their secondary
school and on into life. Whilst the rate of pupil progress is accelerating,
the School does not expect to exceed the floor targets of 65% for English
or Maths in 2008, meaning that standards will still be well below the
national average for the fifth year running. The DCSF require the local
authority to address this issue.

Penhill Primary School and Nursery is on the Department for Children,
Schools and Families (DCSF) list of 266 “hard to shift” primary schools in
England and has failed to meet the floor target at Key Stage 2 in both
Maths and English for the last five years, despite being the subject to a
Local Authority Task Group and a School Improvement Action Plan. This
means that the school receives considerable additional resources and
support from the Local Authority. It is considered that a structural solution
is, therefore, required to move this School forward. If the School became
part of the Academy, it would benefit from the drive to raise standards
already evident within the Academy.

Cabinet decided on 31 October 2007 to submit an Expression of Interest
to the DCSF for Penhill Primary School and Nursery to be closed and
incorporated within Swindon Academy. This was subsequently agreed by
the DCSF, and Cabinet, at its meeting in January 2008, agreed that pre-
statutory consultation should be carried out with parents, staff, Governors
and the local community.

The pre-statutory consultation has now been completed and the results
are set out in this report. The report also includes a summary of the
parallel consultation of the local community carried out by DJB,
independent consultants appointed by the United Learning Trust (ULT),
which runs Swindon Academy.

The consultation document produced by the Local Authority is attached at
Appendix 1. The consultation document issued by ULT is attached at
Appendix 2. The summary results of the pre-statutory consultation
carried out by the Local Authority are set out in Appendix 3. A summary

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 110



Appendix 5

Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of

CABINET

Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

Date: 23 July 2008

2. Detalil

of the consultation with the local community carried out by DJB is set out
in Appendix 4. Appendix 5 sets out responses to key issues raised in
the consultation. This appendix is TO FOLLOW as a significant number of
responses, including one from Penhill Primary School Governing Body,
were received on the last day of the consultation period (14" July), the day
before the despatch of the agenda.

Background

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Following approval of the Expression of Interest by the DCSF, the Cabinet
agreed at its meeting on 23 January 2008 that pre-statutory consultation
should be carried out on the proposal that Penhill Primary School and
Nursery should be closed in order to allow the expansion of Swindon
Academy. The school would remain on its existing site in Penhill, and the
accommodation would be refurbished. It was proposed, at that time, that
this should — if agreed — be implemented from September 2008.

However, it has subsequently become clear that a January 2009
implementation date is more realistic.

It will be recalled that the 0-19 Swindon Academy opened on the
Headlands and Pinehurst sites in September 2007. The Academy
incorporated the former Headlands and Pinehurst Infant and Junior
Schools and Nursery. The Academy works in close partnership with Sure
Start in relation to Early Years provision.

At the time the consultation was carried out on the proposed Academy in
Summer 2006, it became clear that some members of the community of
Penhill felt that their children might miss out on the Academy
development. Although children from the Penhill Primary School and
Nursery area have the opportunity to apply for a place at the Academy at
secondary school stage, there was a perception that primary-aged
children may be disadvantaged compared to those in the former Pinehurst
Schools.

Pre-statutory consultation has, therefore, been undertaken on this
proposal and further details are set out below.

Objectives of Proposal

2.5

As previously reported to the Cabinet, there are a number of objectives of
this proposal, including:

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 111



Appendix 5

Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of

CABINET

Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

Date: 23 July 2008

2.6

Penhill Primary School and Nursery is on the DCSF list of 266 “hard to
shift” primary schools in England and has failed to meet the floor target
at Key Stage 2 in both Maths and English for five years.

An all-through Academy can help pupils with transition from one
school to another and provides continuity of teaching and learning for
pupils. Evidence shows that pupil performance dips and pupil
progress is slowed as a result of moving schools.

As the Academy admissions policy is based on distance, being on roll
at the Academy will guarantee Penhill pupils a place at 11 years old, if
that is the preference of parents. If Penhill Primary remains outside
the Academy, a place cannot automatically be guaranteed.

The developing educational plans for the all-through Academy suggest
that it will break out from traditional Year group structures and move
towards working within vertically organised systems, where the needs
of the individual learner can be more readily met and personalised.

As well as helping to raise standards, the expansion of the Academy
to include Penhill Primary School and Nursery would promote
inclusion and there would be benefits attached to continuity of care,
especially for more vulnerable children.

An all-through Academy would help the multi-agency team support
children better through, for example, easier access and economies of
scale for all agencies involved.

Further details of the objectives of the proposal are set out in the
consultation documents attached to this report as Appendices 1 and 2.

Pre-Statutory Consultation Process

2.7

2.8

The Local Authority’s pre-statutory consultation process ran from 1 June —
14 July 2008. The attached Local Authority consultation document,
together with the attached ULT consultation document, were both sent to
every household in Penhill, together with a number of other key
stakeholders, on the weekend of 31 May/1June 2008.

Formal consultation meetings were held for parents and carers (two
meetings) and for staff and Governors on 9 June 2008. A further meeting
was held for the public on 12 June 2008. DJB, independent consultants

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 112



Appendix 5
Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET Date: 23 July 2008

appointed by ULT, chaired the meetings and a ULT representative also
attended.

2.9 DJB, whilst working closely with the Local Authority, has carried out its
own separate consultation exercise, involving focus groups and
interviewing of stakeholders, including parents, local residents and
representatives of the Local Authority.

Results of Consultation

2.10 The results of the pre-statutory consultation undertaken by the Local
Authority are set out in Appendix 3 attached. A summary of the
consultation so far undertaken by DJB is set out in Appendix 4.
Appendix 5 (TO FOLLOW) sets out responses by the Local Authority to
key issues raised in the consultation.

2.11 As will be seen from Appendix 3, a number of issues and concerns were
raised at the consultation meetings held on 9 and 12 June, and in the
response forms returned to Children’s Services. The written responses
from trades unions and Swindon Academy are also attached to this
appendix. Around 3500 consultation documents (including response
forms) were sent out across Penhill and to other stakeholders - about 11%
of response forms were returned. In addition, on 11" July, a 432
signature petition was delivered to the Council opposing the proposal to
close Penhill Primary School to enable it to become part of the Academy.
Further information on this is also set out in Appendix 3. The Cabinet are
asked to consider the summary of responses received. Copies of the
forms returned and other information, including the petition, will be
available in the Members Room and at the meeting.

2.12 The Governing Body of Penhill Primary School during the consultation
also expressed a view that they may wish to explore the option of seeking
Trust Status. This would involve the school changing its status from
Community to Trust, and linking in with a Trust partner (or partners) such
as a locally based business or educational establishment. The school
would remain within the Local Authority, but the Trust would become the
employer of its staff, be responsible for its own admissions policy and
would own the site/buildings.

Conclusions

2.13 As shown in Appendices 3 and 4, there are a wide range of views that
have been expressed in the consultation, including a number of concerns

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 113



Appendix 5
Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET Date: 23 July 2008

about the proposed course of action. However, it remains the view of
officers that inclusion within the Academy offers the best opportunity for a
step change to address the serious standards and attainment issues that
Penhill Primary has faced for a number of years.

2.14 Despite the best efforts of the school, with the support of the Local
Authority, Penhill remains in the DCSF list of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary
schools out of approximately 17,000 nationally. The DCSF require the
Local Authority to address this issue. Inclusion within the Academy is
seen as the best way forward.

Alternative Options

The main alternative to not proceeding to the statutory consultation is to withdraw from
the proposal to close Penhill Primary School and Nursery to allow stage expansion of
the Academy. However, by taking this action, it is considered that a major opportunity
will be lost to raise standards and pupil attainment at the School. Despite very
considerable Local Authority support over a number of years, the School continues to
under-perform and it is felt that a structural change will provide the impetus to move the
School forward for the benefit of the pupils of Penhill. Other options, such as federating
with a successful school, have previously been considered but these have been
rejected, as it is not clear that they would have sufficient impact.

In addition, it will be seen that the Governing Body of Penhill Primary School proposed
during the consultation process that an alternative option for the school may be to
pursue Trust Status. If the school pursue Trust status that would not prevent the
Council proceeding with the proposals to close the school. Governors expressed the
view that this approach may give them greater control over their own future and could
be a more effective approach in their view of addressing improved standards and pupil
attainment. This therefore represents an alternative option that Cabinet is asked to
consider. It does, however, remain the view of officers that inclusion within the
Academy is a better option, for the reasons set out in this report, and would offer a more
effective structural change for the school, with an established educational provider
driving up standards and attainment. The Academy would also be able to offer Penhill
pupils better transition from Year 6 to Year 7 and beyond, together with a wider range of
facilities and expertise.

Risk Management

Financial and Procurement Implications

e The costs of publishing statutory proposals are contained within the Access &
Provision Directorate cash limit.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 114



Appendix 5
Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET Date: 23 July 2008

e To bring the quality of accommodation up to a higher standard and thereby make
the school fit for purpose, it is currently estimated that £2.3m capital expenditure is
required. This follows surveys carried out by the Local Authority and, more
recently, by ULT. The results of these surveys are in the process of being
analysed further. A review of the Children’s capital programme has identified that a
number of schemes are currently predicted to come in under budget and that the
funding this will release, together with external grant funding that is available, is
sufficient to fund the expenditure required as long as no more than half is needed
in the current financial year.

 When a school becomes an Academy the funding that Local Authorities receive
direct from the Department of Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) for that
school is removed from the overall dedicated schools grant (DSG). Due to the
funding of schools and the requirement to provide retained services from the DSG -
l.e. special educational needs assessments, out of borough placements there may
be financial implications relating to the retained services due to variations between
the level of per pupil funding the Council receives from the DCSF compared to the
per pupil funding that is allocated directly to the school.

e Inthe current year Swindon receives £3,775 per pupil from the DCSF. Based on
the January 2008 PLASC data, 334 pupils attend Penhill school, therefore, the
amount of DSG that would be removed from Swindon’s allocation (assuming a full
year impact) would be £1.26m. The current funding formula within Swindon
allocates a total budget for Penhill of £1.079m. The difference of funding
contributes towards the retained services within the DSG. The table below
illustrates that if Penhill became part of the Academy from 1% April 2008, there
would be a reduction of grant, totalling £183k that currently supports the retained

services.
Based on 2008/09 budget & pupil numbers for Penhill
totalling 334
£s £s
DSG per pupll 3,775 Total reduction of 1,260,850
DSG

School Budget per 3,228 Total School 1,078,152

pupil Budgets

Difference per pupil 547 Total Difference 182,698

Legal / Human Rights Implications

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 115



Appendix 5
Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET Date: 23 July 2008

e Before deciding to publish proposals to close Penhill Primary School and Nursery,
the Local Authority is required by statute to carry out a pre-statutory consultation. If
the Local Authority then decides to publish proposals and any person objects to the
proposals, the Cabinet Panel decides on the proposals. There is a six week period
during which any person can make representations to the Local Authority and then
the Cabinet Panel decides on the proposals. The following bodies may appeal the
Cabinet Panel decision to the Adjudicator:

o The Local Church of England Diocese

o The Bishop of the Local Roman Catholic Diocese

o The Governing Body or Trustees of a Foundation, Trust or Voluntary
school Appeals must be made within 1 month. There is no statutory
timescale for the Adjudicator to decide. The formal approval of the
expansion of the Academy rests with the Secretary of State.

e In order to become a Trust School, governors would have to follow a statutory
process which includes a pre-statutory consultation, the issue of a statutory notice,
a period for representations and the final decision being made by the Governing
Body. The decision would not be made by the Governing Body if the Local
Authority referred the proposals to the School Adjudicator at the representation
stage.

« If the closure and expansion of the Academy is agreed, the Local Authority will
need to enter into a Heads of Terms Agreement with the United Learning Trust
which will provide a guide to the legal framework required from each party as part
of the commitment should this proceed. The Heads of Terms is not legally binding
but if agreed the legal documentation required will need to be progressed urgently
in order to meet the implementation timescales.

« If the closure and expansion of the Academy is agreed then all employees will
transfer their employment to the United Learning Trust. All contractual rights will
transfer under the TUPE regulations 2006. Staff will continue to contribute to both
the Local Government Pension Scheme and Teacher Pensions Scheme.

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises)
e There is a direct link to the Strategic Management Plan for Children Services and

the proposed expansion of the Academy would support Council Promises 20 and
45.

Consultees

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 116



Appendix 5

Proposal for the Publication of Statutory Proposals for the Closure of
Penhill Primary School and Nursery
to Allow Expansion of Swindon Academy

CABINET

Date: 23 July 2008

e The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Democratic
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports.

o There has been widespread consultation undertaken on these proposals as set out
above in the body of the report. Stakeholders consulted include:

O 0O 0O OO0

e}

Parents

Staff

Governors

Local residents

Penhill Community Groups/Leaders
Ward Councillors

Background Papers and Appendices

Reports to Cabinet on:

o
o

Appendix 1 — Local Authority consultation document

Appendix 2 — DJB consultation document

Appendix 3 — Summary of consultation carried out by Local Authority
Appendix 4 — Summary of consultation undertaken by DJB
Appendix 5 — Responses to Key Issues raised TO FOLLOW

31 October 2007
23 January 2008

Key Decision / Decision in Forward Plan
e This is a key decision for Cabinet and has been included in the Cabinet Forward

Plan for July 2008.

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from lan Bickerton,
Director of Access & Provision, 465724 or Email ibickerton@swindon.gov.uk.

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



-Buiues|pueUoREINPEyN ACE IOPUIMS MMM gapp
yr'aoB uopuIMEE) [esUp :[IBle 10 JOEEok £6.1L0 1Bl
HOL LNS 'UDpUMS '|88.S piojues ‘eshoH piojues

YabBeuey 108loug Awepeoy '[eap prneq 198jUCD

g00g AInf - eunp

Awaspeosy

uopuims ayj jo uoisuedxs

ue mojje o} AlesinN pue jooyas
Alewiid ||Iyusd @so|d o} s|esodoid

o

‘8Jl] Ul Yels 1seq auy) antesap ajdoad Bunok pue uaip|iyo

S82IAI8S UBIP|IYD

BO/LLTEIOHE6TI LIV ‘ 1
I

AN ACEUopUIMST)SAIIAIBSIBLIOISN IEW-]
TB6ESY £6410 ey
STLESK E6LIOISL

sLIeda $831AlaS JaLuolsn D) 8yl Bunomuod Aq

(s1BWI0) 3|g|s53308 JaL10 4O 3|jieag Jund 384e| se yans) s1ewuo) pue ssdendug)
Jo s8urd & ul paonpoud aq ued 3| 1senbad U @|qe|eAR 5| AJBsInpy puE

jooyag A1ewig [iyuad 350)> 01 [esodoud SY3 INCQE USIIBLLIC SIY |

|
I
I
1
I
|
l
I
I
|
I
I
|
I
I
I
|
I
|
i
I
i
1
I
[
I
I
i
I

30 10U |17 USHELLIOJUI [BUOSIa4 “13Igqe]) 01 suoiepuawruodal Supdwos jo sesodind ays Joy dwapesy

UOPLIMS DI JO LO|SUBDRD UR sMO||E ) 005 AIRLULL [|1YUdd 250|0 01 sjesodosd payul| U UO LOIIBYNSUOD
Aoameig-aig au jo 1ed se panadal sasuodsal Jo sIsARUR B Joy aq ||im apiaced nod uonelLIop Y|
uol3I1044 BIRC m

HOand s TE e

BRL59F E6LIO

HOI IS Uopuims

10915 pujuLS

35n0H projues

117UNoT YBNCUOY UOPUIMS ‘SITIAIDS URIPIIYD
Apueaag] B

103 350d Aq suuo4 esuodsay uaniad eses)|g

5018) G007 AN ik | Aq Poalacas 2 1smu sasuodsay

_ | mameuBlg

ge 119

SSIUBLUPAE S

Clow [

AP UOPUIMS
aup o uoisuedxa ue 1oy dem axE 01 [ooyag AJBLLg [jIyuad 350fa o1 sesodasd payuy st woddns nod og

Pe

_H WO [IYud 243 JO JaquiRly

_H_ WopIsoY _H_ ung _H_ JOWITADT H WIEY
{31 ssesly

" lponsod
55Uy
DLuEp

AUBPEIY UOPUIMS BUY) JO UOISUEDXA UE MO||E 01 [00V25 AJEWLY [[|lyuad jO aunsa) pasodaid
UONEYNSUCT) AJCINIBIS Bg

wiio4 asuodsey



uopruawR|dw| pasodoly
|aurg 10ugeED Aq UoisaQ

_ SPIUUALIOD UOIIEINSUOD AlcimeElg oyl posude j|
1augeD 01 Woda uoneynsuod LioimEs-alg Jo aWoenn
_ SpUD UoNEYNSUED AICIMES aug

winiog [yuag pue 0oudg Aleuig |iyuad 1e aed aye sBunasw uoneynsuoD

_ sufaq uopminsuos Aicanmg aug

60o0T Aenue|

BOOT
ADGUIBADRN] [ 890130

BOOT
Jaquindag fisnBny meq

8007 Ainf p1gz

B0OT AN iy
8007 2unf Y3z | pue g

800T aunf 15|

ssado.dd Sunjely uoisidaq ay3 ul sajeq yediel
aulpwiL

AapE Ty UopUIMS 31 18 Ye1s sdojdwae 1euyl uonesiueBio syl 1sny) Bujwes
PAUUNY DYY OF JHSURSY || 2503 pasodoud s Jo swn a1 ey yuag 18 padopdwe yeag
ipeaye 5203 esodoad ayy ) jooyds Adewupg (Yuagd 3¢ Buplaom jjels o3 uaddey s 3eyan

“H|gnd a3 jo suaquuMu 01 uado

S BUnAawW Y1 gOOT AN PIET U 131qeD) 03 paliodal aq |Im WO ||IU3d AL JO ISOU) PUR SUApIsA
‘saousancd Yeas siaueapsiuaded g passaudxa smala oy ssaacud Supjew voisi3ep ayl o salels snolies
FUE N0 5125 MO[DG SN DY | aaeIs jo Amaudag ays Ag papiaap aq o1 sey AWwapesy uopulmg

A Jo uolsuedxd 24| 4|0 |00ya5 AJBLILIY |I|4URd JO RINSOIT U1 IPIIIP ©1 IGR 51 |I2UNOD DY) Y
ipeaye 5203 |esododd s1y1 )1 sApIRap OYAA

sBuipjing aip
0§ Aijigqisuodsaa 3l ‘aI0paIaLE PUE pUE] Al Uo 3583 Buo| B e ||m 3sn BulweaT payun ayL v
isBuipjing pue pue| ay3 o3 uaddey |jim IEYAN

ALDPEYY UOPUIMS papuEdxa Ul Jo o
40 00 JBjsuRD A[EIRWOINE |14 UNSO|3 AR o I D4 38 Livuaag [IYUag 1T |00 US LIP3 IV eN Y
ipeaye s208 |esododd ay) )i Awapexy ayy e acepd ¢ Jo) Adde
03 paau Ldewilad [IIYuad 3¢ uaIpliy2 jo saadexjsauaded A

J3h0 @) 01 uawaBeunu mau

YL MO||E 01 PSP, DG 01 5PORU I WtwRBEuT mau ol
PRLIBSUEI] 90 O1 [OOLIS Byl JOJ JOPIO U| JEY] SUBSLL UO|TRjsIEa
AL [[IYUdd SUIBILIELY PAIE SUMO ATULIND [IDUNOT 24
Awspeay ayy jo red 03 3

e3uey> 03 paso|2 9 03 PARY [|Iyuad 530P AUA

suopsend pajse Apuenbauy

'800T AIn[ yap | Aq snoi
3 Wimal pue Wioyg asucdsay payIene ay 19jdwod ases|y Awapey papuedxa ue yuym jooyss Liewud jiyuay
Buifiow jo soBRIUTADE Y1 INOGE SMA|A JN0 LITLS NOA 10U IO JHIYM MOUY 01 PIISIIIIN AITA 3G PINOM IAN

2sn) BUjWea paiun) AU Y240/ U MIU B 01 PAUIRJSURI] 3G O5|E Pnom [esodold
o 4q paanaye yeig AWopEdY AU 01 paLIasUR 9q pinom sBulpjing pue aus Bupsio aup ‘parudwaidu) |

“spidnd 1oy usisiacud Jo piepURLS pascadun UE Ui SUYnsad (|2 513IU6T [ELLIGUI PUS [BLLLIS)
Jendaug auow yEnouyn sdiysuo|IE|ag JB50)3 DU ‘PAAOAL S3IIUAEE || 10 B|EIS JO SHLUOLOIS “S5a008 3|5
@1 .49033G upy Hoddns wean LHuaBe-pinw sy djy pjnos Awapedy yBnouip-jje ue'fes swes ag up

UIPIYD BGRIBINA
auow 1o Ajeradss ‘ased jo Aunur o1 pay SIPIUDG 24 || RIYL PUE LOISN|IW 21cuucad os[E pinom
|ooURS AIBULY [IYUagd 3pR3w o) AU3PEIY AUl Jo usisuedxa aup SPUBpURLS 3siel o) Sudjay e jlam sy 3

-afe jo suead || 18 asow

Aaup uaym Awapeay au o) aeidanu 03 [oous Alrwnig |Iyuad jo sidnd aup o) Ynayip auow 3 Sew

Arw 1snwdojasap © yang o8e [E3Fo|ouosyD JI9YI UBYL JOT UDWHO[BADP JIBYL Ul 18 2JE Ao o8s, syl o1

Bupuoe ssaufosd 01 Mge og Iam sidng PasiTuosiad pur 1040 IPTaS 2UOW 9O UED JHLIED| [ENPIAIRE 41

JO SPODU U DM SLIASAS PASIUEEIO KJ[ENLIDA WYM BUIOM SPIBMOY BAOW PUE sUMInGs dnaud Jead
[EUORIPEN WK N0 HEDK (1M 2 141 15083ns Awapray yBnoup-|e 2 Joy sueld [euoneanpa Sudojmap a4l P

uawafuelie Awapey a3 wouy papnjaxa Bwaq 4g '5jooyas 1sinypuly snoaid g u

asoup o pauedwod paBeiueapesip djenusod ag Aew wuppye a8e Aewud Jeg vondaiad B s auey ‘aBes

jooys Aepuodas au 1e Awapeay oyl 18 23ed e uoy dde o1 Ljumuoddo ays aary vaue ooy Ay

l1yuag 2y way uipiy YBnoy)y usisdojaasp ALBpEdY a3 uo N0 SsIL YBIU UUpIYD 13U 1B Y3y
YD JO ANUNWILLIOD DU JO SIDGUUIDLL TBYY JEN JWEIDG 1 KDpeDy aul Joj aseyd uvoneynsuod ap Buung 2

passaIppe aq o1 spaau
|00UPS AIBULILLY [[IJUad Ul SPIEPURLS |OOUISE JO BNES! [BINLID U1 USA3MOH SMEIS 15n1 'yEnauip ajdiexs o)
“15ru) BUILiEa] padlun) SUl s paleidosse A3so]d auow aq ol AWspedy syl 01 5]00Y s 19pas) Jo) auniny
s w sanjunoddo aue auay | paswowad aue ssaiold 01 sIBLLIEG 233U TR [EUA 51 3] 28e o1 yEnouys
POSSUPPE AJMSSDINS UDIG JUEP O 10U SBY S B3 pue Alepuods pue Aewad uwasadg Auoud Ly
B 5| IUDLUDAMYIE JO SPIEPUELS TUISIRS DUDUM BB UR U] "5o0yDs Bulaowl Jo 3 NS B SE 'pasmo)s 5| ssauBoad
jiénd puesdip asuewuiopiad pdnd 18y smoys asuspiag ‘siidnd oy Buwies) pue Bulyoeas jo Aununuos
sopiacud PUR JILROUE 01 [OOLIS U0 L0} UOINSURT 243 yusm sidnd diay ued dwopey Enouyrje uy  q

“dusapery ays u wapise dpeasje

SPIEPUEIS DSIE1 01 SALIP SLR WO 12U PInosm U Auapedy 3 jo 1ied SWeaaq [0oUIs Y §| pIesIO)

|O0Y2S SIY1 A0 01 PAIINDA S1 UCINOS [BIMIMIIS B TR SI0PISUOD AUJOUIMY 207 2y | AILoLIny 2307

2up wou) Lioddns pue 11PPT 2|GEIDp| Buimaoas udsap ‘sitad aal a0) ysEug puE ST

Lpog Ul oml a8eI5 Ay 18 ..vm._ﬂ Jo0j U3 109w o1 pajig sey pue pueEul ul sjooyas Aewud yiys oy
PR, 95T 40 35| (45DQ) SRS PUT S|OOYIS 'UMPIIYD o) WaunIedd] U U 5| [004IS Advuid (Iyuad  ®

Mo|aq NG 133 ale

|esedoud s Moweald 01 SIUEM [IIUNST) U IR SUOSEA Dy AURpEDY papuedxa UR olu) UaIp)IYD BuLisuRl
pue jooys Aewld [Ruonipeil ay Bwsor A pasaiygae 2 01 S uonRwojsuR S|4 Buliayo uoneanpa g
FuILLIoEURIY AQ BOJE |I4Udd UL Ul UNIP|IYD JO S2OURYD DY) 2yl dscudus o1 51 jesodousd i jo anadalqo Am oy

[esedoad @2y3 jo seARda(qO =YL

Jeoyag AdeLg [Iyuad 18 sEu s d 241 I8 HGE|IRAE DG |[1M SDIN|IDE Eﬁmu

E&oou_aimsaa___c
2007 2un[ WIT| - IIeH 100438 Asewtad |y

wdg g siaseysy
wdgo'g siouflos
widgp yag
wdge's SIDIED{SIUDIEY
8007 aunf Y1 - [leH [00y5 Adewuad [Iyuag

IPUIIIE €1 SBUIDDW OMD JO DHOUD B DARL SIDIED
pue sjuased 18U S10U B3EIY MO(aG INO 3¢ aE SHUITSB UOIIEYNEUOT 5|13UNOT) BYL JO ST PUR STIED DY)

“auna) A Aq paBurale sBunaaw aa w aedianaed ||wm pUT UORTNsUOD

i 100 Aies [|1m ‘sumnsue Juspuadapu) D AlQ 100435 AIBLILIY [IYUd] LI JDJSURL Olm
uaupiya uo 1edu aaysod B e |1 ALUSPETY LOPULMS 3LR JO uoisuedxa L) moy INoge Smala Jnod
Fupjaas 2 Os|e [[Im AUDPEDY UOPUIMG DU JO S1osuods (1)) 15nu] Suiea paaup) 24| "SIUDUALD Aue
paEsmte) 1nd pue aazy 1EIW Now sUonsIND Hse 01 ok MOj[E £ [0oyaS AlRwLd [Iyuad 1t sBupaaw padueiie
O3] SEY [IIUNOT) AU IUAUNIOP S W papiacd W0 25uodsay PUR USIIELLIOHU USNILIM 3L OF UCIHPPE u|

“[esodeoud
I3 INOGE SMAA JNOA MO [I2UNSD A3 19] 03 PRIAU T NOA HUBPEY UOPUIMS 24 JO UoisuedXa ue mo||e
O [0S AIBURAS |IYyudd 2302 01 sjesodoud panul] 512UN0D DY) INOGE UORELLIOJU| POSOJIUD DU 295 DSED|Y

“A3lunwiwod pue wnJdoH ||Iyusgd
a2y3 Jo siaquisw pue Aiasinp pue joolas Adewig
[11Yuad JO SI0UJDA0SD PUE YEIS ‘Siaie)/sjualed Jeaq



Appendix 5

“Giving Children and Young People the best start in
life”

A Proposal to expand Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary & Nursery School
Consultation Document

Contents

Introduction

1. Reasons for this Proposal

2. The Academy Proposal

3. What are Academies?

4. About the Sponsor: United Learning Trust
5. The Academy Ethos

6. The Vision of the Academy

7. The Academy’s Curriculum and Specialisms
8. Teaching and Support Staff

9. Admissions

10.Governance

11.Building Improvements at Penhill

12. Community Involvement and Wider Use

13.Consultation

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 1
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 121



Appendix 5

Introduction

This document has been produced as part of the independent public
consultation into the proposal to expand the 0-19 Swindon Academy
to include Penhill Primary and Nursery School. The purpose of the
document is to inform potential students, parents, staff, governors,
education partners in Swindon, interested parties affected by the
proposed site and the wider community on the proposal to this
expansion to the Academy, so that they can express their views during
the consultation process.

Background to this proposal

The Department for Children Families and Schools (DCFS) and Swindon
Borough Council (SBC) in collaboration with the sponsor United
Learning Trust (ULT) established the Swindon Academy in September
2007. The academy replaced Headlands secondary school and
Pinehurst Infant and Junior schools. The Council now wishes to expand
the academy to include Penhill Primary School.

The academy is an all age 0-19 academy providing education and
community services and will serve students from Pinehurst, Gorse Hill,
Seven Fields and Penhill, one of the most deserving areas of Swindon.

The academy will permit the more effective deployment of multi-
agency approaches - easier access, economies of scale for all
agencies involved, and closer relationships through more regular
formal and informal contacts all resulting in an improved standard of
provision for the children.

The Penhill school building will be extensively refurbished and will
remain on its current site about one mile from the main academy
campus.

The Public Consultation Process

The following areas are the key priorities for consultation:
The Academy’s intake and development
Transition-Continuity and Progression

Governance
Community links and wider use

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 2
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 122



Appendix 5

This independent public consultation is being conducted by DJB
Consultancy on behalf of ULT and will run in parallel with the SBC
consultation process. SBC will consider all the views that are expressed
as part of this public consultation and the separate SBC statutory
consultation process before making a decision to publish statutory
proposals to close Penhill School. The Sponsor will seek the Secretary of
State’s approval for the expansion of the academy.

Further details about the consultation process and how your views can
be represented are given at the end of this document.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 3
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 123



Appendix 5

1. Reason for this Proposal

During the consultation to establish Swindon Academy there were a
number of responses suggesting that some feeder schools to the
academy, excluding Pinehurst Infant and Junior schools, which would
be part of the academy, would be disadvantaged, i.e. Penhill, Gorse
Hill and Seven Fields. 86% of the academy’s student cohort comes from
these feeder schools, with 20% from Penhill.

However, although in the future there will be opportunities for feeder
schools to the academy to work closely with the United Learning Trust,
Penhill Primary School standards have been identified by SBC as a
critical issue that needs to be addressed urgently.

Penhill Primary school is on the DCFS list of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary
schools and has failed to meet the floor target at key stage two in both
maths and English for five years, despite receiving considerable
additional resource and support from the Local Authority. An Ofsted
inspection which took place in September 2007, judged the standards
reached by learners to be inadequate (grade 4). The local authority
considers that a structural solution is required to move this school
forward. If the school became part of the academy it would benefit
from the drive to raise standards, which is enhanced by the
establishment of an academy.

The developing educational plans for this all-through academy suggest
that it will break out from ftraditional structures and move towards
systems where the needs of the individual learner can be more readily
met and be personalised. Pupils/students will be able to be progressed
according to the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather than
their chronological age. Such a development may make it more
difficult for the pupils of Penhill Primary School to integrate into the
academy when they move at eleven.

As well as helping to raise standards, an academy expanded to
include Penhill Primary School will also promote inclusion and enjoy the
benefits attached to continuity of care and personnel especially with
respect to more vulnerable children.

ULT and SBC share the view that an all age 0-19 academy is well
placed to transform the education and learning opportunities for
primary pupils of all abilities from the surrounding areaq, raise aspirations
and achievement and challenge expectations of learning. It removes
a number of transition issues when moving from one school to another
and provides continuity of feaching and learning for pupils!. The

! Evidence shows that pupil performance dips, and pupil progress is slowed,

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 4
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 124



Appendix 5

development allows for a cross-curriculum approach to teaching and
learning across all the key stages ensuring individual levels of
attainment are improved.

as a result of moving schools. In an area where raising standards of
achievement is a key priority- which has not to-date been successfully
addressed through to age 16-it is vital that these barriers to progress are
removed.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 5
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 125



Appendix 5

2. The Academy Proposal

The proposal to undertake a feasibility study to expand Swindon
Academy established in September 2007, which has replaced
Headlands School and Pinehurst Infant and Junior Schools to further
include Penhill Primary and Nursery School is supported by the DCSF,
Swindon Borough Council and the Governors of Swindon Academy.
The proposal is subject to agreement by the School Scrutiny
Committee. As part of the feasibility the expanded academy will:

¢ In partnership with the Council, explore the inclusion of Penhill
Primary and Nursery Schools into the 0-11element of the
academy.

¢ In partnership with the Council, also further explore the way in
which existing 0-4 family support services can be integrated into
the academy

e Openin January 2009 in the existing Penhill school building and
have a planned programme to refurbish the current
accommodation.

e Guarantee places for all existing students at Penhill School into
the 0-11 element of the academy at the time the school closes in
December 2008.

e Be co-educational and free of charge for pupils of statutory
school age.

e Continue to operate the existing schools catchment areas and
admissions policies in September 2008.

e Adopt the current ULT Admissions Policy (see section 9) subject to
any agreed amendments to reflect local existing policies with
effect from September 2009.

e Be committed to the pursuit of high standards and levels of
achievement in all areas of learning activity and behaviour.

e Be a place where all students will be supported in realising their
full potential and encouraged to take their place in society as
active and positive contributors.

e Work in partnership with other primary, secondary schools and
further education establishments in Swindon.

e Be at the heart of the local community, providing a driver for
change through the use of its facilities either during or outside
academy hours.

e Be sponsored and managed by the United Learning Trust a
subsidiary of the United Church Schools Trust.

e Build onits corporate partnership with Honda who is active in
supporting the work of the academy. Honda is a major global
company with a European manufacturing base in Swindon and
Sales and Services operations in Langley.

3. What are Academies?

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 6
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 126



Appendix 5

Academies are a new type of all ability school which aim to bring a
fresh approach to school leadership, teaching and learning, raising the
standard of education provision in the maintained sector in the more
disadvantaged areas. Academies draw on the expertise of the
sponsor and have the freedom to try new ways of teaching within an
innovative and stimulating environment.

Across the country, academies are being created to replace schools in
challenging circumstances or to meet demand for additional school
places. The Government is committed to establishing 400 academies
with at least 200 open or in the pipeline by 2010.

Academies are state-funded independent secondary schools. They
are independent of the Local Education Authority and have more
autonomy over curriculum design than maintained schools. They offer
a broad and balanced curriculum together with a specialism. All
places are free of charge with no fees paid by parents and are
available to the local community within an agreed admissions policy.

Academies are operated by a not-for-profit charitable trust.
Sponsorship for academies is from the private or voluntary sectors that
make donations up to a ceiling of £2 million to support the charitable
purposes of the academy. This establishes a long-term financial
endowment to enhance educational progress in the academy and in
the local community more generally.

The capital costs for remodelling the proposed Penhill extension will be
funded by Swindon Borough Council.

The annual recurrent costs are funded directly by the Department for
Children Schools and Families (DCSF) at a level comparable to the
funding of similar schools in the area. In addition, each academy
receives a per-student grant equivalent to specialist schools in the
maintained sector.

4. About the Sponsor: United Learning Trust (ULT)

ULT is a registered charity, specifically created to establish a family of
academies which provide an outstanding education to young people
across the country. Established in 2002, ULT is a subsidiary of the not-for-
profit charity, the United Church Schools Trust (UCST), which owns and
manages a family of independent schools in the UK for 125 years. ULT
offers the stability of an organization with a long term commitment to
education in this country and the experience to run schools.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 7
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 127



Appendix 5

UCST's extensive experience in providing high quality education makes
ULT a unique sponsor of academies. Its experience in bridging the
private and public sectors brings significant benefits to teachers,
students and parents through the sharing of good educational
practice. The two organisations share the objective of offering students
outstanding education.

In order to satisfy its charitable objectives, ULT is required to ensure that
the academy is founded on a Christian ethos. ULT hopes and expects
that its ethos can be accepted by people of all faiths and none.

ULT currently operates and manages 13 academies: Manchester,
Lambeth, Northampton Salford-City, Barnsley, Sheffield Park, Sheffield
Springs, Paddington, Walthamstow, Wiliam Hulme Grammar School,
North Oxfordshire, Swindon, and Stockport. It also has two others in
feasibility in Accrington and Midhurst, West Sussex.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 8
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 128



Appendix 5

5. The Academy Ethos
The ethos of Swindon Academy is one of:

Respect
Service
Compassion
Discipline
Hard work

This is supported by a constructive and supportive environment where
all students and staff are valued and respected. Students are given
individual care and support and guided and encouraged to develop
a lifelong love of learning.

A culture of hard work is instilled throughout the academy. It has a
philosophy that encourages achievement. Students will be expected
to develop a high standard of learning and life skills.

ULT academies aim to enable each student to become a balanced
arficulate person with the:

* intellectual freedom to be creative

» confidence to initiate

flexibility to react to change

e compassion to serve others.

motivation to have a lifelong love of learning.

It is a core belief of the ULT that students thrive when parents, the
school and the community work together to encourage and support
the success of each student.

ULT respects the differences that exist between the different
communities it serves. ULT has a strong and vibrant commitment to
quality and innovation built on dynamic partnerships with parents, the
local community and business organisations, local organisations and
other education providers.

6. The Vision for the new Academy

The academy offers a high quality educational experience to students
to ensure that they are thoroughly prepared to meet the challenges of
the workplace, either directly from school or after higher education. In
particular, it will aim to offer:

Innovative teaching, learning and development for all

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 9
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 129



Appendix 5

e Learning approaches that are targeted to the needs of the
students through a mixture of modular learning paths.

e A well-considered programme of life skills, incorporated into
many parts of the Academy day and curriculum, which will
help prepare students to become active and responsible
citizens;

e A fully accessible academy with extended day programmes
that offer study support and additional learning opportunities
and a wide range of arts, sports, and recreational activities;

e Provide opportunities for an integrated approach to teaching
and learning across different year groups;

e Personal tutor and peer mentoring systems which offer
individually- tailored learning plans for every student to raise
their aspirations and achievements. Particular attention will be
given to the core areas of literacy and numeracy. Where
appropriate, there will also be links to external agencies and
advisors to assist with the rounded development of students;

e Extension programmes and accelerated learning
opportunities, delivered using ICT and distance learning
materials;

¢ Innovative approaches to the teaching and learning process,
based on a framework of study skills and methods of
monitoring, assessment, reporting and planning that
encourage more ICT-based learning, with provision for
community participation;

e A framework of professional development and fraining in
transferable skills related to the use of new technology, and
remuneration policies to attract, retain and confinuously
develop teachers and support staff;

e Developing with the local business community and other key
stakeholders ways of assisting the regeneration of the areaq;

e Being a learning resource at the heart of the local community
with  a commitment to supporting a broad range of
community needs.

7. The Academy’s Curriculum and Specialism

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 10
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 130



Appendix 5

The academy will be committed to providing a broad, balanced and
relevant curriculum for all its learners. To achieve this it will have due
regard for the key areas of the National Curriculum, but as a publicly-
funded independent school it will be free to develop innovative and
creative approaches to both teaching and learning, making
education relevant and exciting. All students will have access to the
core curriculum, English, Mathematics, Science and Information
Communication Technology.

The curriculum will be at the cutting-edge of educational development
and designed to support the highest level of achievement by students.
State-of-the-art technology will help ensure that the curriculum is
accessible online 24 hours a day.

Each student will have a carefully prepared individual programme of
learning. This student-centred approach has been designed to meet
the needs of all students and will be present through the student’s
school life.

The 4-11 primary curriculum will be developed by blending existing
good practice with new opportunities for learning. The aim will be to
encourage high levels of individual achievement through an exciting,
engaging and creative curriculum which will also have a strong
emphasis on the development of the core skills that provide the
building blocks for the future success of learners. The education of
primary phase students will be further enhanced through access to the
21st Century facilities and technologies which the academy will provide
for all its learners.

One of the key benefits of a 0-19 academy is that all professionals and
key stakeholders in the chain of learning can ensure the best possible
confinuity of planning and progression for the individual learner.

In addition to covering key areas of the National Curriculum, the
academy has a focus on specialist subject areas in which it will aim to
become recognised as a Centre of Excellence. The specialism should
enable the school to retain and recruit enthusiastic, inspirational
teachers with outstanding motivational skills. The academy’s specialism
is Science with Business and Enterprise.

8. Teaching and Support Staff

The ULT is responsible for the employment of the academy’s staff. The
Principal decides, within the budget framework, how many teachers to
employ and makes the appointments.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 11
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 131



Appendix 5

It is recognised that the teachers and support staff at the academy are
its most valuable resource. Without good, well-supported teaching the
academy'’s vision for success will not be realised. Therefore it is
establishing:

Sound and sensitive employment practices
Excellent working conditions and relationships
Modern management structures

Competitive levels of remuneration and rewards.

The staff employed work to a common goal of raising standards for all
students. The academy will ensure strong pastoral care for students,
which will involve parents and the community.

ULT will consult with the Trade Unions about the application of the TUPE
regulations, as applied to staff in Penhill School, in advance of those
staff’ joining the academy.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 12
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 132



Appendix 5

9. Admissions

The academy is fully inclusive in terms of admissions with @
comprehensive intake of boys and girls across all ability ranges. The
academy currently provides up to 1,200 places for students aged 11—
19. Up to 180 students will be admitted in Year 7 each year and there
will be a maximum of 300 places in the Sixth Form.

The academy currently provides up to 420 places for students aged 4-
11 with up to 60 pupils being admitted into Reception each year. There
are also 52 part-time nursery places available. The Penhill site will admit
up to 60 pupils into Reception each year. 52 part- time nursery places
will also be available.

If incorporated as part of the expanded academy, all students at
Penhill School will be automatically offered a place at the academy at
the time the school closes in December 2008. Thereafter, pupils at the
Penhill site will automatically transfer to the academy’s secondary
provision unless there is parental preference to the contrary.

The expanded academy will adopt the current ULT Admissions Policy,
subject to any agreed amendments to reflect local existing policies
with effect from January 2009.

The principles on which the admissions criteria are based include:

1. Children with statements of SEN where the Academy is named
on the statement;

2. Children in Public Care (Looked after Children);

3. Children for whom it is essential to be admitted to the school
because of special circumstances related to medical and social
needs;

4. Children with special educational needs (SEN) but without a
statement will receive equal consideration with other applicants;

5. Children who have a brother or sister on roll at the academy at
the time of admission;

6. Places will be allocated to children in relation to the distance
from the child’s place of residence to the academy (Penhill site).

The academy is aware of the need to provide facilities which will be
appropriate for specific students with Special Educational Needs. These
would include:

e Students who are gifted and talented:;
¢ Students with individual learning difficulties;
e Students needing support with access.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 13
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 133



Appendix 5

The process of application for the academy will be made on the
common application form of the Education Authority in which the
applicant resides.

The academy’s admissions arrangements follow the DCSF Code of
Practice (including the guidance on appeals against refusal to admit),
and is founded on impartiality, regard for the law and the principles of
natural justice. The appeals system is transparent and fair. ULT's
Academy Policy on exclusions takes account of DCSF guidance.

10. Governance

The ultimate governance of the all the sponsors’ academies is the
responsibility of the Trustees of the ULT.

The Trustees are responsible in particular for:
e Overall policy for each Academy
e Policy decisions on where and when to open new
academies
Fundraising
Appointment of and Principals and Vice Principals
Relationship with the Government
Budget for the whole group
All staff contracts.

At the local level, the Swindon Academy has its own Local Governing
Body (LGB). The aim is that the LGB should best reflect the specific
needs of the academy. It is essential that the members will extend the
skills and influence of the LGB and actively support and promote the
aims, ethos and aspirations of the academy.

Members of the LGB include:

The Chair

The Principal, ex-officio

Two elected Parents

An elected teacher

An elected member of the support staff
A representative of the Local Council

In addition, the LGB includes other members drawn from the local
community and from business and industry. Honda is represented on
the LGB of the academy in Swindon and Sir Anthony Greener (one of
the benefactors via the ULT) is the Chair.

The LGB:

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 14
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 134



Appendix 5

Assist on appointment panels

e Support the Principal and the ULT Finance Director in monitoring and
managing the budget.

e Are responsible, with the Principal, for school policies and
operations such as:

Admissions

Behaviour

Discipline

Exclusions

Curriculum and its delivery
Reporting to parents

Maintaining the quality of the school
Links with the community

© O O O O oo ©

11. Building Improvements at Penhill

The proposals that are being considered for building remodelling will
offer improved quality of provision and facilities in a number of key
areas of the school as well as providing an independent youth and
community provision. Building construction work, in the main, will relate
to internal structural changes to some rooms as required and general
improvements and decoration to the whole school. Major
improvements will be made to all flat roofs and metal windows, which
will enhance the overall efficiency of the buildings. Upgrades will also
be made to the M&E infrastructure (heating and ventilation) in line with
current legislation on building efficiency. A new landscaped car
parking facility will be provided at the front of the school which will give
more emphasis to the entrance to the school and the current mobile
classroom provisions will be integrated into a secure nursery block with
it's own reception and secure access.

A summary of the changes considered are as follows:

e Structural remodelling to some of the classrooms to meet BB99
standards.

e Structural remodelling of the reception and nursery provisions info an
independent secure unit. (Removal of all mobiles).

e Addition of some general multi-use rooms.

e Addition of a secure youth and community provision with it's own
enfrance and identity.

Improvements to M & E facilities (heating &ventilation).

Replacement of all metal window frames to be replaced with uPVC
Refurbishment of all flat roofs

Improvements to surface water drainage.

12. Community Involvement and Wider Use

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 15
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 135



Appendix 5

The new Penhill site and building will serve the community of Penhill, will
be involved with Regeneration Initiatives, and will be a facility for the
whole community complementing the existing facilities in the area.

It is proposed that this new academy site will offer:

= Extended school activities, including leisure and sport, child
care, before and after school, holiday and weekend
provision;

» A Youth Service provision on-site.

= Access to ICT and business facilities;

= Access to larger spaces e.g. halls, drama studios;

» The opportunity for some co-located health and social
services provision that reflect the priorities of the local
community.

» Continuing education and learning opportunities for local
people.

Parents will be expected to participate actively in the education of
their children, not just providing encouragement and support but also
being fully engaged in the home/school partnhership and other aspects
of academy life. The academy will look to infroduce modern and
immediate ways to communicate with parents.

Links will be established with other primary and secondary schools,
Further and Higher Education Colleges and local employers. It is
expected that the academy will make a valuable conftribution to
promoting social inclusion, equality and diversity.

13. Consultation

Independent Consultants, DJB Consultancy - Dame Jocelyn Barrow,
Lead Consultant, and Dawn Hill - are running the consultation process
for expansion of the academy. The Consultants have considerable
experience of working in education and with ULT. They aim to engage
all sectors of the community.

The consultation process will start from 01st June 2008, during which time
this consultation document will be widely circulated. DJB Consultancy
will undertake consultation in parallel with the Council and be in
attendance at the Public Consultation Meetings held by the Council
for parents, staff and governors and the Penhill Forum. DJB Consultancy
will further carry out a randon survey of Penhill parents and hold focus
groups with Penhill parents and pupils; a series of interviews with key
academy and Penhill staff and governors and key stakeholders in
Swindon including Headteachers of associated primary schools,

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 16
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 136



Appendix 5

Swindon Borough Council Education Officers and Councillors, and
tfrade union representatives.

The public meetings will be held at,

Penhill Primary School, Alton Close, Penhill, Swindon, SN2 5HF on,
09t June 2008

Parents/carers 3.30pm

Staff 4.45pm

Governors 6.00pm

Parents/carers 7.15pm

Penhill Forum, Penhill Primary School, Alton Close, Penhill, Swindon, SN2
5HF on 12t June 2008 at 6.00pm

Details of the above meetings will be given to local schools and
through the local media. At the public consultation meeting ULT and
the Council will each make a presentation and be available to
respond fo your questions and listen to your views, which will be
recorded by the consultants.

At the end of the consultation period, the Consultants will bring
together all the views from the consultation and prepare a report for
ULT, the DCSF, Swindon Borough Council and the schools concerned.

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 17
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 137



Appendix 5

Interested parties can additionally express their views on the proposal

by writing to:

Jocelyn Barrow and Dawn Hill
DJB Consultancy

111 Helix Road

London, SW2 2JR

Mobile: 07947 371 639

Email: hilldawn@aol.com

Questions can also be addressed to:

Martyn Baker

ULT National Education Advisor and Project Manager
Church Schools House

Chapel Street

Titchmarsh

Northants NN14 3DA

Email: martyn.baker@church-schools.com

The document can also be accessed at:
www.ult.org.uk

Swindon Academy (Penhill) 18
Consultation Document
ULT/DJB/ Final 4 May 2008

Page 138



APPENDIX 5

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT BY LOCAL
AUTHORITY
Summary results of the consultations undertaken by
the LA with key stakeholders between 1 June and 14 July

Consultation meetings (two) with parents of Penhill Primary School held on 9

June

Key issues/questions/concerns raised:

VV V VWV VYV

VVVYVY 'V

>
>

Will the school remain on the existing site?

If this proposal does not go ahead, will the same amount of funding still be
available to improve the school premises?

Concerns about whether the new school will look after children with
disabilities in the same way that Penhill Primary School currently does.
Why make changes when Penhill Primary School is working well for the
children, with such dedicated teachers?

Concerns expressed about how well the Academy is operating.

Will the existing Head Teacher remain if the school becomes part of the
Academy and will there be jobs for all the staff? We could lose good
teachers we have.

Instead of one teacher for a class, will there be different teachers for
different subjects?

Education is being run as a business.

What is there to stop ULT walking away? What could the LA do?

Why can’t the LA increase the budget?

The Government funds the Academy but a change of Government could
mean Academies receiving the same money as other schools.

Transport to the Academy site is a big issue.

It is felt that this is considered a sink estate.

Consultation meeting with the Governing Body of Penhill Primary School held

on 9 June

Key issues/questions/concerns raised:

>

A\

VV VY

Staff morale is at rock bottom and people are hitting out because they do
not understand.

Concern about ULT’s lack of primary track record — where is the proven
expertise?

Timescale is too short.

Where is the funding coming from and will it be given regardless of
whether the School becomes part of the Academy?

Key issues are motivation, timing and lack of facts

We want to explore the option of Trust Status

Page 139



Consultation meeting with staff of Penhill Primary School held on 9 June

Key issues/questions/concerns raised:

>
>
>
>

Y

VVVVYVY V V¥V

A\

Questioned independence of consultation.

Why does it have to happen so quickly?

How can standards be raised within the School when the Academy has
such a low opinion of the Penhill parents?

The LA believed in extending the Academy to raise standards but what
happens if they are not raised? It is too early for evidence from the
Academy.

Research shows children do best in a smaller setting, so how is being one
of 2,000 better for children? The School's Senior Management Team
knows every child.

Will there be a Penhill football team or do they have to compete for
Academy places? What about the Penhill Christmas play?

The LA failed and will be rid of the School if it becomes part of the
Academy.

This proposal is based only on Ofsted results.

Why was Penhill not included in the Academy earlier?

When will Seven Fields and Gorse Hill Schools be part of the Academy?
Is Trust status going to be looked at alongside the Academy?

If the School closes, when do we need to resign? The decision to close
would be taken after the cut-off date for resignation.

Under TUPE we can object to going across.

Consultation meeting with local residents/community of Penhill held on 12

June

Key issues/questions/concerns raised:

VVVYY

VVVYVY YVYVV VYV

Lack of direct consultation with Penhill Forum.

Academy seen as being run on faith-based lines by ULT.

Does the Academy have the right to change its admission policy?

How does breaking up traditional Year groups benefit gifted and less able
children?

Academy has no proven track record.

How are the Governors chosen and to whom are the Academy staff
accountable?

Who is ULT responsible to?

Loss of control by local people.

Concern about the School being open 24/7 to community and youth
groups.

Concern about land and playing fields being sold off.

Resentment that LA would refurbish building before handing over to ULT.
Penhill has lacked investment from the LA for many years.

Why are other options not being considered?

Page 140



Response forms received

NB:

Type of Respondent Support Do not support
Parent 17 193
Staff 0 55
Governor 0 9
Local resident 12 99
Other 1 1

Total 30 357

There were 2,800 consultation documents, including response forms,
delivered across Penhill on the weekend of 31 May and 1 June and a total of
3,500 sent to all residents and stakeholders. 387 forms were returned, a
response rate of 11%.

Summary of issues and concerns raised on response forms:

This will take away parents’ choice.

Concerns over Penhill moving to the Pinehurst site.

Lack of evidence the Academy will raise standards. No time to prove
itself.

Penhill should stay independent of the Academy.

Proposal is an admission of the LA that they do not have the capacity
of aspiration to raise standards of Penhill. LA want to remove Penbhill
from the tables.

Lack of Primary focus in Academy.

Parents have the full support of the headteacher and staff at Penhill.
Swindon education is below the national average.

| hear nothing positive about the Academy.

Penhill is successful and has good levels of education.

Penhill is at the centre of the community and provides community
based services.

Penhill School has a large number of students with Special Educational
Needs (55%).

Parents are very happy with the teaching methods and the children are
working well. Would the Academy provide the same level of support?
Other options to explore still — e.g. Trust Status?

Concerns over management and organisation of the Academy.

The last OfSTED report was a good one.

| think this will be a good opportunity.

Land surrounding the school could be cleared for housing.

Penhill School needs improvements.

| feel my child will learn more in the Academy.

Expansion of the Academy should take in Seven Fields and Gorse Hill.
The Penhill area in general needs money spending on areas and
investment.

Page 141



e The consultation is rushed.
e The Academy will be too large.

Petition

A 432 signature petition was delivered to the Council on 11™ July regarding
the Academy proposal. It states that:

“We the undersigned do not believe that Penhill Primary School should be
closed and become part of Swindon Academy. We would like to remain as
our school in our community. We feel we would be seen as the poor relation
in comparison to the Academy, as they will have a new build and state of the
art facilities. Our children will not benefit from these facilities whilst they are
based at the Penhill site”.

Response for Penhill Primary School Governing Body

This was received on 13" July attached as Annex A.

Letters from Trade Union and The Academy

Letters received from UNISON, GMB and the Principal of The Academy are
attached as Annex B.

Page 142



Appendix 5

We, the Governing Body of Penhill Primary School, feel that the elected
representatives of Swindon Borough Council have been deliberately

misinformed by the information given to them concerning the move of
Penhill Primary School to the Swindon Academy.

Page 143



Appendix 5

In an attempt to balance the brief to Cabinet members, Penhill Primary
School governing body would like members of the Cabinet to consider
the following information which, we feel, puts our side of the
argument/case.

One point which must be made is that neither staff nor governors wish
Penhill Primary School to leave the Local Authority and therefore want to
pursue Trust status and thus stay within the Local Authority.

We have taken the entries from the consultative documents and provided
our more balanced view.

Consultative document: “It serves pupils from Pinehurst, Gorse Hill,
Seven Fields and Penhill, which is one of the most deserving areas of
Swindon.”

Response: Ofsted report ‘The school serves an area of significant economic and
social deprivation. Around half the pupils have some learning difficulties and/or
disabilities, and this is far higher than the national average. Children’s attainment
when they start school in the Nursery at age three is very low. The proportion of
pupils who are entitled to free school meals is among the highest in the country.’

The 2007 Index of Multiple Deprivation places Penhill Primary School at the top
of all schools in Swindon, with a score of 46.9. Consideration of the index (see
Appendix 1) clearly shows there is a difference between the Pinehurst and Penbhill
estates and therefore, we would suggest, a different solution, tailored to the
specific needs of the community, is required. The analysis by the Joseph
Rowntree Foundation for the Department for Work and Pensions which placed
the Penhill ward as the 5™ most deprived in the South-west of England, would
also support this case.

Consultative document: “The Penhill school building will be extensively
refurbished ....... 7

Response: Actually, the building works will only ‘bring the existing buildings to the
minimum current (build) standard.” More to the point, the majority of the suggested
changes were identified by Penhill Primary School nearly 5 years ago and at which
time SBC drew up plans. The original plans have merely been subject to minor
updates!

Page 144



Appendix 5

Consultative document: “Penhill Primary school ison the DCSF list of
266 ‘hard to shift’ primary schools and has failed to meet the floor target
at Key Stage Two in both maths and English for five years, despite
receiving considerable additional resource and support from the L ocal
Authority.”

Response: Ofsted report ‘School leaders embraced the intensive support provided
by the local authority to help raise standards. As a result, there is clear direction
for raising standards and a steady improvement has been secured in pupils’
achievement.’

Response: Ofsted report ‘The school provides a satisfactory standard of
education despite the very low standards reached in English, mathematics and
science. Standards are low partly because there is a very large group of pupils
who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Pupils’ achievement is
satisfactory overall from the Foundation Stage to Year 6.’

Consultative document; “ It removes a number of transition issues when

moving from one school to another ...."

Response: This would be true if the children from Penhill Primary were placed on the
academy campus. As this is not happening, the transition issues will remain. Equally,
of course, this will be true for all the other academy feeder schools.

Consultative document: “Aswell as helping to raise standards, an
academy expended to include Penhill Primary School will promote
inclusion.....”

Response: Penhill Primary School already practices a policy of inclusion and has yet
to permanently exclude any child. The academy however, has already, in its much
shorter life put a significant number of pupils on ‘reduced timetables’'.

Ofsted report: ‘This is a school that rightly prides itself on the good pastoral care
provided for pupils, particularly for those who are vulnerable.’

Consultative document: “Each student has a carefully prepared individual
programme of learning.”

Response: All Penhill Primary School students have a carefully prepared individual
programme of learning. Ofsted report: ‘Teachers gather a great deal of information
about how well all the pupils are doing.” Many pupils have Individual Educational
Plans.

Consultative document: “The new Penhill site and building......
Response: There is no ‘new’ building. This is a misrepresentation and led many
members of the Penhill community to believe that the current buildings would be
demolished.

Consultative document: “DJB Consultancy will also: ....... Conduct a

series of interviews with...... governors....”

Response: The Chair of Governors was contacted by DJB with one single date for a
meeting the week prior. Unfortunately, due to other commitments the Chair was not
free on that date. No alternative date was offered nor was an offer made to

Page 145



Appendix 5

interview any other member of the governing body. No interview took place, on an
individual basis with the governors!

Consultative document: General - There are many examples which show
that this document was produced using cut and paste from the document
used to move Pinehurst to the academy.

COUNCIL DOCUMENT

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal

“a. Penhill Primary school is on the DCSF list of 266 ‘hard to shift’
primary schools and has failed to meet the floor target at Key Stage Two
in both maths and English for five years, despite receiving considerable

additional resource and support from the Local Authority.”

Response: Ofsted report ‘School leaders embraced the intensive support provided
by the local authority to help raise standards. As a result, there is clear direction
for raising standards and a steady improvement has been secured in pupils’
achievement.’

Response: Ofsted report ‘The school provides a satisfactory standard of
education despite the very low standards reached in English, mathematics and
science. Standards are low partly because there is a very large group of pupils
who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Pupils’ achievement is
satisfactory overall from the Foundation Stage to Year 6.’

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal
“‘a ... The Local Authority considers that a structural solution is

required to move this school forward.”

Response: The Governing body does not dispute that more needs to be done to
speed the continuing improvements at Penhill Primary School and, to that end, have
submitted to DCSF an Expression Of Interest to move the school to Trust status.
Ofsted report: ‘Governors are fully involved in checking how well the school is
doing and planning for further improvement in partnership with the school
management team. This has led to a continued trend of improvement in
standards, and in teaching and learning.’

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal
“b. Anal-through academy can help pupils with the transition from one

school to another....."

Response: This would be true if the children from Penhill Primary were placed on the
academy campus. As this is not happening, the transition issues will remain. Equally,
of course, this will be true for all the other academy feeder schools.

Ofsted report: ‘Although pupils leave the school with low standards of basic
numeracy and literacy, their ICT skills are adequate and their self-confidence is
good so that they are developing appropriate life skills.’

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal

Page 146



Appendix 5

“b. However, the critical issue of school standards in Penhill Primary
School needs to be addressed;”

Response: Ofsted Report “The school provides a satisfactory standard of
education despite the very low standards reached in English, mathematics and
science. Standards are low partly because there is a very large group of pupils
who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Pupils’ achievement is
satisfactory overall from the Foundation Stage to Year 6.”

“Almost half the pupils have learning difficulties and/or disabilities, and this has a
considerable impact on the standards reached in each key stage, as many pupils
struggle to reach the expected levels for their age. There is appropriate support
for all these pupils so that they make satisfactory progress despite the very low
standards they attain. Over the past four years the school has achieved a steady
increase in pupils’ progress in Key Stage 2, and more recently in Key Stage 1.”

In a league table reflecting Contextual Value Added, Penhill Primary is never at
the bottom. The DCSF’s technical guide to contextual value added (2007 model)
states that “....CVA gives a much fairer statistical measure of the effectiveness of
a school and provides a solid basis for comparisons”. The bottom 200 school
nationally, have CVAs ranging from 96.4 to 97.9.

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal
“c. During the consultation phase for the academy, it became clear that
members of Penhill felt that their children might miss out on the academy

development.”

Response: In actual fact, the governor’s view is that the Penhill Community did not
wish to be part of the academy; rather the community was concerned that their
school would miss out on the money being spent elsewhere!

Council document - Objectives of the Proposal
“d. The developing educational plans for an all-through academy.....”

Response: This complete bullet point is conjecture, nothing is proven as yet!

Page 147



Appendix 5

Indices of Multiple Deprivation: Swindon Schools 2007

Inthe.s of In(jlce's of Rank out of
Dfes Deprivation for | Deprivation for Secondary/
No. School Name Super Output | Super Output Primary
Areas, IMD Areas, Rank of Schools in LA
Score IMD Score
LEA 18.00 18742.13
Secondary
4087|Headlands 34.02 8539.50 1
4065|Churchfields 31.27 10413.07 2
4060|Dorcan 21.00 16529.58 3
5409|St Josephs 18.74 17872.31 4
4084|Hreod Parkway 17.91 18418.48 5
5410|{Commonweal 15.37 19585.69 6
5407|Kingsdown 13.61 21440.81 7
4086|Greendown 12.73 22158.34 8
5417|Ridgeway 12.23 22065.78 9
4074/Warneford 10.01 24607.76 10
Primary
2007|Penhill 46.89 3902.54 1
2003|Mountford Manor 46.35 3429.42 2
2005|0Oaktree 40.17 5280.66 3
2151|Seven Fields 39.94 5897.66 4
2212|Goddard Park 38.55 5854.31 5
2115|Pinehurst Junior 34.55 7142.95 6
2116|Pinehurst Infant 34.23 7463.62 7
2123|Lainesmead 31.58 10486.27 8
3001[Holy Family 29.19 11943.98 9
2109|Gorse Hill Infant 26.06 11508.99 10
2002|Drove 25.44 12096.68 11
2204|Rodbourne Cheney 25.19 11569.68 12
2108 Gorse Hill Junior 24.80 12309.48 13
3461 Moredon 24.79 13273.32 14
2009 Eldene 21.41 14629.99 15
Upper
2105 Ferndale Junior 19.08 16400.13 16|Quartile
2106 Ferndale Infant 19.04 16299.67 17
3458 Oliver Tomkins Infant 19.04 15915.21 17
2203 Toothill 18.94 16232.82 19
2095 Beechcroft Infant 18.60 17667.47 20
2211 Robert Le Kyng 18.59 16482.94 21
3439 St Catherines 18.51 18813.60 22
3455 Oliver Tomkins Junior 18.34 16581.83 23
2094 Ruskin Junior 18.30 18081.88 24
2147 Lawn 17.97 20481.52 25
5211 Holy Rood Junior 17.55 18168.25 26
3175 King William Street 17.40 17079.20 27

Page 148



Appendix 5

3426 Holy Rood Infant 17.20 18098.77 28
5220 St Marys 16.87 18903.71 29
2161 Nythe 16.08 20363.89 30
2004 Liden 16.02 19187.01 31
2205 Freshbrook 15.73 19011.41 32
2103 Even Swindon 15.36 18908.03 33 Median
3000 Lethbridge 13.47 20689.68 34
2143 Wroughton Infant 12.49 21452.91 35
2026 Chiseldon 12.37 21143.60 36
2156 Wroughton Junior 12.27 21634.43 37
2036 Covingham Park Junior 12.17 23101.66 38
2050 Haydon Wick 11.80 23057.55 39
2093 Grange Infant 11.46 23003.23 40
2092 Grange Junior 11.36 22854.35 41
2164 Greenmeadow 11.15 23921.43 42
2217 Windmill Hill 11.14 23387.74 43
2035 Covingham Park Infant 11.04 23654.04 44
2194 Colebrook Infant 10.64 24398.91 45
2166 Colebrook Junior 10.58 24159.66 46
5221 St Andrews 10.56 23598.23 47
2219 Tregoze 9.98 24266.91 48
3165 South Marston 9.93 24398.67 49
Lower
2209 Westlea 9.90 24599.23 50 Quartile
2200 Eastrop Infant 9.62 24564.65 51
2051 Southfield Junior 9.50 24908.28 52
2167 Westrop 9.18 25169.30 53
2206 Northview 8.55 25741.93 54
2133 Wanborough 8.51 25884.55 55
3009 Bishopstone 7.97 26683.91 56
2001 Peatmoor 7.69 26874.86 57
2210 Shaw Ridge 7.63 27159.11 58
2229 Haydonleigh 7.37 27578.30 59
2214 Brook Field 7.12 27681.19 60
2011 Bridlewood 6.66 28091.62 61
3463 Orchid Vale 6.64 28251.32 62
3460 St Francis 6.32 28559.69 63
2000 Abbey Meads 6.23 28835.53 64
3462 Red Oaks 5.91 29024.02 65
2008 Catherine Wayte 5.28 29696.62 66

Page 149



Appendix 5

Page 150



SWINDON BRANCH
UNISON Office

Civic Offices
S NEREIME Euclid Street
IRER Swindon SN1 2JH
M ag un 2a08 | Tel: 01793 463729
H JUL 2008 v €l
L 08 L Email : unisonswindon@

swindon.gov.uk
7th July 2008 _—

To:  Members of the Cabinet
Swindon Borough Council

Dear Councillor

Proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary and Nursery
School - UNISON Submission

UNISON s the largest union for school support staff in Swindon, and represents 16
members at Penhill Primary School. Following consultation with our members, UNISON
is submitting the following points on the above proposal.

The proposal to close Penhill Primary School and incorporate it as part of the Swindon
Academy is opposed by support staff in Penhill Primary. There is a great commitment
amongst staff to serving the local community through their work in Penhill School. Whilst
it is recognised that in terms of ‘results’ Penhill School has had problems, its results are
now improving and there is a dedication amongst support staff to ensuring the
continuation of this improvement. There is a fear that the special relationship between
the school and the community it serves would be diminished through assimilation into
the Academy.

The school has a large number of pupils with identified special needs (55%) and it is
strongly felt that these special needs are best catered for within a local community
school rather than a large 0 - 19 Academy.

There is concern amongst staff that if the proposal goes ahead the Penhill site would
become somewhat of an appendage to the main Academy operating in Pinehurst, that it
would be difficult to be fully integrated, and that it would in fact be part of a 0 - 19
establishment in name only. Puplls in year 7 who then move to the main site would find
this particularly traumatic, when most of the others of their year group would have
already been based at this site. The possibility that pupils would be ‘bussed’ to the main
site in order to familiarise them is not felt to be appropriate or helpful.

Similarly, the prospect that staff may be moved to the main site is not supported as they
wish to work in their local school.

Appendix 5

THE PUBLIC SERVICES UNION

Page 151



The United Learning Trust does not have a proven record of success at primary level,
and to date there is no evidence that the Swindon Academy has raised standards.

Finally, there are concerns by support staff about terms and conditions of employment.
Whilst existing terms and conditions would be protected through TUPE, protection would
not necessarily continue following any restructuring of the workforce which led to
changes in jobs. Academies are not covered by the Best Value Code of Practise on the
‘Two Tier' workforce, and as such inferior terms and conditions could apply to support
staff.

Yours sincerely

Cdob @Jw\b

Bob Cretchley
Branch Secretary

cc Director, Children's Services

Appendix 5

Page 152



Appendix 5

GMB Response to Penhill Consultation

This is a GMB response to 2 consultations:

1. DJB Consultancy carrying out a consultation on behalf of Swindon
Academy to expand the Academy to include Penhill Primary and
Nursery School.

2. Swindon Borough Council’'s proposal to close Penhill Primary and
Nursery to allow an expansion of the Swindon Academy.

Because the issues relating to the 2 consultations are the same and because
the meetings etc were held together we thought it appropriate that we respond
with one document. Please excuse that a minimal number of points may just
relate to one or other of the consultations.

GMB are a general Trade Union who represents a large number of schools
support staff in Swindon. At Penhill we have a significant number of members
amongst the support staff specifically teaching assistants and within the Best
Team.

Consultation process

e The GMB have concerns that the supposed ‘independent’ consultancy
- DJB have a long standing relationship with ULT. This may explain
why there is no mention of any potential downsides to the proposals.

e The specifics of the consultation do not appear to consult with
academy pupils or parents. Therefore does the proposal presume that
the move to expand the academy is beneficial to academy pupils. GMB
believes this is not necessarily the case.

e We are also concerned about the representation of Penhill parents
during the consultation. From our local knowledge we are aware that
Penhill parents are strongly against Penhill School being included in
the Academy. We are concerned that parents views seemed to be
dismissed at their meetings and have not been effectively sought out
through the consultation process. This is especially important in the
catchment area which Penhill is where it may be more difficult for
parents to articulate their views and so may be more likely to be
ignored or views not to be taken into account.

e GMB were extremely unhappy with the attitude expressed by ULT, the
Academy and Swindon Borough Council in the staff consultation
meeting. Criticisms of the plans seemed to be dismissed. Comments
did not seem to be taken into account and were on occasion treated
with inappropriate responses from the panel.

e With regards to the staff consultation; the meeting took place at 4.45pm
when most certainly many support staff would have childcare
responsibilities. It also was obviously not in working time, you would
normally expect a consultation about something which could have such
an impact on a member’s employment to take place during working
hours or at least to encourage engagement for the time to be paid.

Page 153



Appendix 5

Despite the DJB consultation stating that trade union representative’s
views will be specifically sought out nobody has specifically spoken to
the GMB.

The proposal to look at including Penhill in the Academy was first
discovered by Penhill employees when they read about it in the
Swindon Advertiser. This is an appalling way to treat employees who
have worked hard to improve Penhill School in difficult circumstances.
The ‘consultation meeting’ consisted of a very long presentation
promoting the benefits of the proposals which was followed by very
limited time: 20 minutes where people could ask questions, which were
often dismissed or responded to in a very abrupt way.

Concerns for Penhill School — Pupils/Parents/Local Community

It is concerning that that the staff consultation meeting there seemed to
be a clear message from Swindon borough Council that they did not
feel capable of managing the necessary improvements at Penhill. This
should be of huge concern to local tax payers who obviously trust SBC
to manage the town in which they live including tax payers money.
They would surely be concerned to hear that the LEA doesn't feel
capable of managing improvements at Penhill.

This would also be of concern to parents of children in other Swindon
schools that the local LEA does not have faith in its own ability to
continue to improve local schools.

This is especially surprising considering Penhill School has been
consistently improving over the last few years despite a challenging
catchment area and a school building which is in need of major
improvements.

GMB is extremely concerned to note that there appears to be a
significant amount of public money on offer to Swindon Academy were
they to incorporate Penhill within the school. We would obviously ask
why this money has not been made available to Penhill before? Why
does the availability of this money appear to be conditional on
incorporation into the academy? Why does SBC seem to lack
confidence to manage improvements to the school internally? GMB is
sure that this would be of great interest to Swindon tax payers that
money is available to independent organisations to take responsibility
of local schools because Swindon Council feel they cannot manage the
project.

Penhill School is in a relatively deprived area of Swindon. GMB have
concerns that being included in such a large school but away from the
main site will make Penhill the ‘poor relation within the academy’

Also that the specific needs of pupils and parents at Penhill School will
be overlooked in the vastness of the Academy School.

GMB are concerned that the Academy is still a new school and is likely
to still have its own issues and problems to resolve. It seems extremely
premature to try to incorporate another new school within the structure.
The geography of the sites is still a big concern. How will Penhill
School feel part of the Academy? Bearing in mind Penhill is an eco-

Page 154



Appendix 5

friendly school it seems ironic that part of the proposal might include
bussing pupils between the schools.

e The idea that to create a seamless transition from primary to secondary
education for Penhill pupils is a benefit to Penhill becoming part of the
Academy is difficult to understand. Firstly presuming the 2 sites remain
as they are there would still be a school move for pupils. Also surely
secondary schools should be building good relations with their feeder
primary schools anyway; they do not need to be part of the same
school to enable this to happen. If this was true that they needed to be
part of the same school then doesn’t this move then leave Sevenfields
and Gorse Hill at a disadvantage? Will the next proposal from Swindon
Borough Council and the Academy be that all schools within the
catchment area become part of the academy?

e The Academy in Swindon has limited knowledge of the very young
Penhill pupils, specifically key stage 1. There is no senior management
expertise in the Academy relating to these age groups. There is
already a learning process to establishing the existing Swindon
Academy without incorporating even more age groups at this time.

e We also have concerns about the health and safety of such small
children using such a huge site.

Concerns for Penhill/Academy staff

e GMB members at Penhill wish to stay within a local authority schools
where their terms and conditions are negotiated within a national
structure and within the LEA’s negotiation structure. This obviously
brings with it security and protection which they will not have were they
to move to the employment of ULT.

e Were the expansion of the Academy go ahead and include Pendhill,
there have been no guarantees made that Single status will be
implemented. We would demand a commitment from ULT that they
implement Single status as it should have already been implemented in
April 2007.

e GMB members are also extremely concerned that with the ULT not
implementing national and local agreements we will ultimately end up
with a 2 tier workforce at Swindon academy and different terms and
conditions in various Swindon schools. This would be undesirable
considering the work which many have put into eliminating the 2 tier
workforce in local government and the current negotiations nationally to
establish a transparent and fair nation negotiating committee for school
support staff.

e The failure to commit to implement Single status is of concern as it
demonstrates that the ULT will not commit to implement national or
local agreements which our members would have otherwise been
entitled to.

e We also have concerns that in the long run there could be job losses
as jobs that are being duplicated within the schools are identified.

e It needs to be clearly stated that were the expansion of the academy
were to go ahead GMB recognition would transfer under TUPE for our
members at Penhill.

Page 155



Appendix 5

e There is no clarity about were the proposals to go ahead what would
happen to the employment of the Best team currently employed by
SBC/Penhill but with external funding which covers Swindon ten.

Page 156



Appendix 5

Principal: Ms J Shadick BA MA

Swindon Academy
Headlands Grove

t 01793 747800
f 01793 747801

e admin@swindon-academy.org

w www.swindon-academy.org
== N
g
Swindon Academy
The best in everyone”

A member of United Leaming Trust

9™ July 2008

To whom it may concern

| write in favour of the proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include
Penhill Primary and Nursery School.

My main reasons for doing so are as follows:

1.

Penhill has a legacy of underachievement which is greater than our
other feeder schools. Whilst there has been some improvement in the
past two years it is unlikely to be sustainable as the level of intensive
support from the Local Authority diminishes. It is my belief, as was the
case with Headlands School, that in order to achieve the potential that
exists in our children a radical change needs to happen. The evidence
from our cluster over the past 10 years shows real difficultly in sustaining
any improvements in attainment beyond 3 to 5 years unless significant
changes are put in place.

When tracking our own year 7 students on entry and through the year it
is evident that those coming from Penhill present particular challenges
that others do not on the same scale. On average,

a. they are already below other schools in terms of KS2 standards,
particularly in English and Science;
b. their CATs scores are below those of students from other

primary schools;
their average reading age at 11 is just over 7 years;
within the first 6 months of year 7 they do not make the same

level of progress as other students academically or behaviourally. In

fact significant numbers present challenging behaviour during this
time as they adjust to secondary school. This has been particularly
pronounced this year;

e. a significant number arrive to us with high levels of SEN which
have not been addressed. We have had to spend a great deal of
time applying for Statements of Need within the first few months.
This has been the case for 4 students this year. When talking with

Qo

Page 157



Appendix 5

the parents of these students they often tell us that Penhill School
just sent their son or daughter home when they were naughty;

f. a significant number were disapplied from the NC last year (5,
possibly 8). They do not appear, however, to have followed an
alternative programme and we were not informed of their
diapplication. We were therefore unprepared for them in September.

Our Academy can build on the strengths that Penhill has. We can bring:

1. a consistent and coherent approach to teaching and learning which our
children need;
2. an opportunity to build strong relationships with parents and the

community which will grow throughout our children’s education. This has
been significant for us this year and we are already seeing the benefits;

3. a specialist delivery to aspects of the curriculum with targeted
intervention when needed. The curriculum can be delivered as a
coherent framework from O - 19, thus raising aspirations and
expectations;

4. targeted SEN provision from a large team of specialists to ensure that

student’'s needs are met early and proactively. We can provide SEN
support on a scale which Penhill cannot.

| understand the concerns that staff in particular have about change. By
embracing change it is seen as an acknowledgement that what has gone
before is not good enough or needs to improve. This is sometimes difficult to
accept but what must drive any change is that it will benefit the students.

As professionals we have a collective responsibility to explore any
opportunities which come our way to improve the life chances of our children.
| believe that this is one of those opportunities.

It was very disappointing to hear so many questions and comments made at
the consultation meetings which either made assumptions with no basis or
which had little to do with our children and their opportunities. In fact, having
talked with many Penhill parents it appears that misinformation has been
allowed to spread within the playground. Many parents at the consultation
meetings had been told that the school was to be knocked down and the staff
sacked — no wonder some were angry!

| have offered to come and talk to senior staff, staff and Governors about the
structures and details of our Academy as we are at the moment. This offer
has been refused. | have invited staff and Governors to come to our Beech
Avenue site to see is in operation — this invitation has not been accepted. Itis
frustrating to hear such misinformation with no real attempt to find the truth.

At Swindon Academy our vision is to see every member of our community
achieve to their best. We face the challenges of deprivation but will never
allow that to be an excuse for under achievement. Time and time again we
have seen our students outperform others and themselves to realise their

Page 158



Appendix 5

potential. | believe that the same will be true for the children of Penhill if they
become part of Swindon Academy.

Yours sincerely

Ms J Shadick
Principal

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Appendix 5 D J
B

Proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill Primary &
Nursery School

Independent Consultation Preliminary Report

This preliminary report sets out the following:

1. The background reasons for this proposal

2. The consultation process

3. The key issues and responses emerging from the consultation which require
consideration towards progressing the proposal.

The final report will be available in September 2008.
1. The Background Reasons for this Proposal.

The aim of the proposed closure of Penhill Primary and Nursery School to allow it to
be incorporated into the expansion of Swindon Academy is to improve the quality of
education provided for the children of Penhill and in particular, to raise educational
standards and strengthen the development of good educational practice.

During the consultation to establish Swindon Academy, which was carried out in
2006 by DJB Consultancy® on behalf of the sponsor United Learning Trust (ULT), a
number of respondents suggested that some of the academy’s feeder schools
(excluding Pinehurst Infant and Junior schools, which will in any case become part of
the academy) would be disadvantaged, i.e. Penhill, Gorse Hill and Seven Fields.
86% of the academy’s student cohort comes from these feeder schools, with 20%
from Penhill.

Penhill Primary School is on the DCSF National List of 266 ‘hard to shift’ primary
schools and has failed to meet the floor target at Key Stage Two in both maths and
English for five years, despite receiving considerable additional resources and
support from the Local Authority. An Ofsted inspection which took place in
September 2006, judged the standards reached by learners to be inadequate (Grade
4). Penhill Primary School standards have been identified by Swindon Borough
Council (SBC) as a critical issue that needs to be addressed urgently and it considers
that a structural solution is required to move this school forward. If the school
became part of the academy, it would benefit from the academy’s drive to raise
standards.

The developing educational plans for this as an all-through 0-19 academy propose
that it will break out from traditional structures and introduce systems where the
needs of the individual learner can be more readily met and personalised. Students
will be progressed according to the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather

! See Swindon Academy Consultation Report November 2006

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 1
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 161



than their chronological age. Such a development could make it difficult for the
current Penhill Primary School pupils to integrate into the academy when they move
at age 11.

As well as helping to raise local educational standards, an academy expanded to
include Penhill Primary School will promote inclusion and enjoy the benefits attached
to continuity of care and personnel, especially for more vulnerable children.

ULT and SBC share the view that an all-age 0-19 academy is well-placed to
transform the education and learning opportunities for primary pupils of all abilities
from the surrounding area, raise aspirations and achievement and challenge
expectations of learning. It removes a number of transition issues when moving from
one school to another and provides continuity of teaching and learning for pupils.?
The development allows for a cross-curriculum approach to teaching and learning
across all the Key Stages ensuring individual levels of attainment are improved.

The academy’s Penhill expansion would open in January 2009 in the existing Penhill
school building and have a planned programme to refurbish the current
accommodation.

Places would be guaranteed for all existing students at Penhill School into the 0-11
element of the academy at the time the school closes in December 2008. The
Sponsor will seek the Secretary of State’s approval for the expansion of the
academy. (Refer to Consultation Document issued by ULT.)

2. Consultation Process

This independent public consultation has been conducted by DJB Consultancy on
behalf of ULT and has run in parallel from 1% June to 14 July 2008 with the SBC
consultation process.

The following areas are the key priorities explored in the independent consultation:

The academy’s intake and development
Transition, continuity and progression
Governance

Community links and wider use

Formal consultation meetings were held on 9™ June for parents and carers (two
meetings), and for staff and for the governing body, and on 12™ June for the Penbhill
Forum & Public. The school-based meetings were also attended by the
Headteachers and Senior Management Teams of Swindon Academy and of Penhill
Primary and Nursery School. A representative from SBC Human Resources was
present to answer questions on TUPE and other conditions of service matters. The
DJB Consultancy Lead Officer chaired all the meetings and presentations were made
by SBC and ULT representatives with input from the Principal of Swindon Academy.

2 Evidence shows that pupil performance dips, and pupil progress is slowed, as a result of
moving schools. In an area where raising standards of achievement is a key priority- which
has not to-date been successfully addressed through to age 16 - it is vital that these barriers
to progress are removed.

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 2
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 162



Face-to-face interviews and group meetings have been held with a cross-section of
the schools’ staff, trade unions, and focus groups with students representing Years 5
and 6 age groups, senior SBC representatives, the Chair of Swindon Academy and
the Councillor for the Penhill area. The Chair of Penhill School was unable to meet
with us for a face-to-face interview but was in attendance at all the school-based
meetings and chaired the Governors meeting. He was requested and agreed to
submit a written response, but this has not been received to date. SBC has
forwarded to the consultants on 14" July the Governing body’s response to the
Council dated 13" July.

Further, DJB consultancy commissioned a Survey of Public Opinion of parents which
included two parent focus groups with a cross-section of parents who participated in
the Survey. It was an opportunity for these parents to explore more fully the issues
raised in the Survey.

Correspondence has been received from the following:
15.07.09 - Helen Beale, a former pupil.

14.07.08 - Governors’ response

14.07.08 - GMB Trade Union

10.07.08 - Valerie Goulden

26.07-08 - Penhill Forum Steering Group

20.07.08 — Phil Deaves

19.07.08 — Amanda Broomhill, parent

24.07.08 — Ms C Bourton, parent

09.07.08 — Ms Jan Shadick, Principal Swindon Academy
02.06.08 — Creighton Muirhead, Headteacher of Ruskin Junior School

3. The Key Issues and Responses
3.1 Attitudes to the Academy proposal

The Penhill School Parents Survey (50 parents participated) reports that parents
were split in their attitudes to the proposal to expand the academy to include Penhill
with

support /strongly support the proposal - 46 %

oppose/strongly oppose - 37%

neither support nor oppose - 25%

don’t know - 4%

3.1.1 Positive responses

= “Since Swindon Academy took over Headlands, my other daughters’
education has improved”.

= “My eldest goes to the Academy and is doing really well”.

= “| know from people needing one-to-one attention it's quite long (wait to get
things done) here, but from what I've read it would be different at the
Academy”.

= “It will raise the standard and the school is not all that good anyway”.

= “There will be higher standards with all the schools on one level”.

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 3
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 163



= “If it's going to improve a lot of things, then it's worth it and if it brings up
standards”.

= “There are non-curriculum activities, and | think the standards would be
raised if it were in the Academy”.

= “| agree with them on the curriculum. If one child is slow they go down in
the curriculum a bit to help them”.

= “Might be a better education — | don’t think it’s brilliant at the moment”.

= “Part of it is their standards will improve over the next 2 years or so, and
they won’t have to keep looking for funds”.

= ‘| think Swindon Academy is brilliant. | have other children who were at
Headlands, and I've seen the changes and they worked well with my older
son with ADHS.

= |t'll give them more education.

= Because | don't think with the way Penhill is going, which is badly, that it's
very good - no anti bullying policy, they don’t follow it up, and it needs
improving”.

3.1.2 Negative Responses:

“My daughter has had a good education and | don’'t see why it should

change, it’s fine”.

= “l don't like the academy. My other daughter has had problems, the
headmistress doesn't listen, and it is difficult to see her”.

= “They are alright as they are”.

= “Firstly, the academy hasn’'t been going that long and I've heard reports of
bullying. Too early to say if it's working”.

= “Because the academy hasn't done a lot for my oldest child (first year
there). His level has dropped dramatically - inexperienced teachers there”.

= “How are they going to do it? The fact they’ll be bringing in kids from other
areas — less of a community if that happens”.

= “Why change when it's going ok?”

3.1.3 Don’t Know Responses:

» “It's too soon to say, the Academy hasn’t been there long”.

* “You hear two different stories”.

= “There’s not a lot of difference. When my son leaves Penhill, he’ll be going
to the Academy anyway”.

= “The proposal for Swindon Academy, the idea was that it would be all
together but they will still have to make a move to the Pinehurst site. On
the positive side they would (hopefully) bring the standards up”.

= “Because Penhill School newsletters say it wouldn’t benefit the children”.

= “The Academy says it would benefit, and the media say it would be good. |
just don’t know really.”

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 4
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 164



3.2 A brief overview of the attitudes to the proposal and key issues for Penhill
to join the academy

3.2.1.Teachers and teaching assistants at Penhill on the whole, but not entirely, had
a negative attitude towards the proposal. The trade union representatives were
clearly against it, both with regard to academies generally, and specifically against
this proposal. The Year 6 and Year 5 pupils in particular, were also largely against
the proposal. Much of this negativity was based on the feeling that not enough was
yet known about how the change would affect Penhill, and how the changes would
be implemented.

Staff were also worried about their job security and conditions of work if Penhill joins
the academy. In addition there were concerns about the lack of evidence that joining
the academy would improve educational standards for the Penhill children, and there
was a sense that Penhill would be just an “add-on” or would be “slotted in” to the
academy.

A further concern was that if Penhill does join the academy, the children and
teachers would not fit in since they would stay on the existing site and would
therefore not have the advantages of Pinehurst which is on the same academy site
as the secondary school. Scepticism was expressed repeatedly with regard to the
upgrading of the Penhill school buildings, with the question often repeated as to why
this refurbishment is only coming now, while the proposal is on the table.

A few teachers favoured the idea of Penhill becoming a Trust and there was a
suggestion that they would work with the community and partners including Plymouth
University to form such a Trust. However, there appeared to be a lack of
understanding of the process and the time-frame for such a move. Resentment was
expressed about the fact that it seemed to be a foregone conclusion, that Penhill
would “close down” and join the academy.

3.2.2 There was a strong concern expressed by the union representatives and others
that they were being ‘railroaded’ into this decision, and that the timescales were such
that people didn’t know what was going to happen. The union representatives also
voiced their disquiet about the implication that Penhill school would (quote) “close”,
and also that there had been a lack of transparency in the process. “People feel it's a
done deal and we’re just going through the motions.”

The union representatives complained that they had not seen SBC’s consultation
document before it went out. They claimed they had been told that the schools would
be the first to see it. They also said that they had been told they would be able to
contribute to the document, but that hadn’'t happened. These promises had, they
said, been made by the previous Director of Education. They also voiced concerns
about conditions of work and whether teachers would have to ‘resign’ before taking
up a post at the Academy.

3.2.3 Overall the main objections included:

e Lack of evidence that the Academy can improve educational standards

e Feeling that an Academy of 2,000 pupils is too big.

e Research suggests that children feel safer and happier in a family
environment in a school no bigger than 300. “Particularly here, where we
have vulnerable children (SEN and EBD) — they cope here, they’re secure.

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 5
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 165



They struggle in secondary school.” And: “Children come with emotional
baggage — we are the consistent place in their lives. When given a new
teacher they don’t know how to cope.”

e Concern over the “heavily weighted” senior leadership team and whether they
will understand ‘Foundation’ children.

¢ Not a good model to bring ‘secondary’ practice into primary schools.

e Paragraph D of SBC’s consultation paper (vertically organised systems): “This
is damaging to the children’s self esteem. They'll feel they've failed if they are
kept back. Both the children and the parents will be affected.”

e Perception that SBC wants to “dump” Penhill into the Academy so as not to
have to worry about the school any more. “It will no longer be their problem
and the SATs results for SBC will rise”.

e The timing of the decision-making and implementation process, and
especially the date of July 23" for the ‘Report’ to Cabinet. This is the last day
of the summer term.

e The money apparently being suddenly available for the refurbishment of
Penhill school. Will this money still be used for the school if it does not join the
Academy?

3.2.4 However, despite the above reservations, all the staff were aware that
standards need to be improved, though there was debate about how far this is
necessary. Some teachers appeared to feel that standards were acceptable. Where
teaching staff perceived that standards were not high enough, this was blamed
variously on the community, the children and the local authority. A wide range of
interventions for children with particular needs was mentioned, though during the
interviews at least, these interventions appeared to be numerous and somewhat
haphazard.

3.2.5 There is strong loyalty amongst the staff at the school and the residents of the
estate to the school, the Headteacher and the community. From the following
quotations, it appears that there are four main strands running through both the
support staff and teachers’ thinking: 1) the children are lovely, but very, very needy;
2) we love working in this school, we love the children and the Headteacher; 3)
standards of education in the school are not as high as they might be, but the
children are happy; 4) we’ve done our best.

3.2.6 A view supporting the academy move suggested that Penhill had strengths,
e.g. improvement in attainment levels of the more able pupils and also the
development of the teachers, but that there were “confused structures” in the school
with a lack of focus, sustained teaching and performance management. “Children do
need to be loved and happy, but they can have too much. They need education and
standards.” Expectations were also a problem, with the Local Authority cited as
having low expectations of Penhill. “Everyone has low expectations of the children”. It
was stated that the Local Authority had poured money in, but had not set standards
and moved children on. It was also suggested that the people living on the Penhill
estate would like the estate pulled down.

3.2.7 The overriding debate appears to be over the differing views of the educational
standards at Penhill and whether or not joining the academy would make a
difference.

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 6
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 166



The Penhill view is that the CVA score (Contextual Value Added score) - the score
which identifies how much progress the children have progressed between the KS1
SATs and the KS2 SATs, gives a more informed indication of progress as it takes
into consideration the original starting points of the children, not just the end result. It
now also takes into consideration factors such as the social and economic
background of the catchment area - factors which are acknowledged to be relevant to
the progress and attainment of the children.

The CVA score for Penhill Primary for 2007 is 99.0. When listed in order of CVA
score, highest to lowest, there were five schools listed below Penhill Primary. Two of
those schools listed below Penhill Primary also missed their ‘floor targets’ for Maths
and English. Three of the schools listed below Penhill Primary met their ‘floor targets’
for Maths and English. All of those schools listed below Penhill Primary had higher
aggregate scores, yet their lower CVA scores indicate that the progress of the
children in those schools, between KS1 and the end of KS2, is not as good as the
progress of those at Penhill Primary.

3.2.8 The Academy, however, has provided to the consultants the following evidence
about Penhill students entering the Academy.

When tracking Year 7 students on entry and through the year it is evident that those
coming from Penhill present particular challenges that others do not on the same
scale. On average;

a. They are already below other schools in terms of KS2 standards, particularly
in English and Science,;

b. Their CATs scores are below those of students from other primary schools;

c. Their average reading age at 11 is just over 7 years;

d. Within the first 6 months of year 7 they do not make the same level of
progress as other students academically or behaviourally. In fact, significant
numbers present challenging behaviour during this time as they adjust to
secondary school. This has been particularly pronounced this year;

e. A significant number arrive with high levels of SEN which have not been
addressed. It has had to spend a great deal of time applying for Statements
of Need within the first few months. This has been the case for 4 students
this year. When talking with the parents of these students they often said
that Penhill School just sent their son or daughter home when they were
naughty;

f. A significant number were disapplied from the National Curriculum last year
(5, possibly 8). They do not appear, however, to have followed an
alternative programme and were not informed of their disapplication. The
academy was therefore unprepared for them in September.

4. Transition Issues

There was some disquiet voiced by the staff at Penhill about the transition of Year 6
pupils to the ‘Headlands’ academy site. However, some of the thinking appeared to
be muddled: there was recognition that by joining the academy there would be
continuity of education from 0 -19, but simultaneously concerns were raised about
how the transition would take place, and whether Penhill children will be
disadvantaged vis-a-vis Pinehurst children. If Penhill joins the academy, then how will
they fit in? It was felt that the traditional ‘dip’ in standards on transition at year 6/7

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 7
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 167



would continue despite being all part of one institution. Questions were also asked
about whether the teaching assistants would ‘move up’ alongside the Year 6 pupils to
help them manage the transition. It was also said that “it’s still a significant way to
travel at transition time”.

However, another point of view from staff in support, suggested that transition will be
easier as the “children aged 11 will follow through with the same remit. The same
ethos will be followed.”

The Academy, is aware of the issues raised about the transition and has said that
working together with the same systems will make transition easier, though it was
recognised that as the Penhill Year 6 children will have been physically separate they
could feel “different”. However, it was a “solvable problem”.

The Academy view is that it can build on the strengths that Penhill has and can bring:

1. A consistent and coherent approach to teaching and learning which the children
need,;

2. An opportunity to build strong relationships with parents and the community which
will grow throughout the children’s education. This has been significant for us
this year and we are already seeing the benefits;

3. A specialist delivery to aspects of the curriculum with targeted intervention when
needed. The curriculum can be delivered as a coherent framework from 0 — 19,
thus raising aspirations and expectations;

4. Targeted SEN provision from a large team of specialists to ensure that student’s
needs are met early and proactively. The academy can provide SEN support on
a scale which Penhill cannot.

5. Governance

Staff across the board, from Sure Start, Penhill Primary and Nursery School and
members of the Penhill community voiced the same concerns:
e Will there be / is there enough representation of primary school expertise at
Senior Management level?
e Will the needs of the primary level school be catered for in the Governing body
of the Academy?
e What is the make up of the Governing Body of the Academy, and will the
existing governors from Penhill be able to join the academy Board of
Governors?

At the Penhill Forum & Public meeting very strong views were expressed about
governance, and some people who were at the meeting were invited to apply to join
the Governing Body of the academy. It appeared that some members of the
community did not appreciate that they could put themselves up for election as
governors. Also, there were concerns raised both at the forum meeting and during
some interviews about whether governors would be elected or appointed and
especially about the ULT ‘appointing’ Governors.

6. Swindon Academy’s response to these concerns

The academy has said they were very disappointed to hear so many questions and
comments made at the consultation meetings which either made assumptions with
Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 8

DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 168



no basis or which had little to do with the children and their opportunities. They have
talked with many Penhill parents and it appears that misinformation and false rumour
has been allowed to spread widely, including amongst the pupils. Many parents at
the consultation meetings had been told that the school was to be knocked down and
the staff sacked, so it is no wonder some were angry!

The Principal has said she has offered to come and talk to senior staff, staff and
governors about the structures and details of the academy as they are at the
moment. This offer has been refused. She has also invited staff and governors to
come to the Beech Avenue site to see it in operation — this invitation has not been
accepted. It was therefore frustrating to hear such misinformation with no real
attempt to find the truth.

Swindon Academy'’s vision is to see every member of our community achieve to their
best. It faces the challenges of deprivation but will never allow that to be an excuse
for under-achievement. Time and time again the academy has seen its students
outperform others and themselves to realise their potential. The same will be true for
the children of Penhill if they become part of Swindon Academy.

ULT and the academy acknowledge that much still needs to be done, and the
academy is only just beginning to “bed down” but there are enthusiastic teachers who
will make things work. When the new buildings are finished things will get better.
This is a time of transition, and although there were still some difficulties at the
academy, these are not insurmountable, and if everyone works together things will
improve. Continuity of education across the 0-19 age range will provide an anchor for
the children and give opportunities for children’s attainment to be monitored and
appropriate interventions provided where necessary. One of the biggest problems is
the poor standards of literacy in the primary age range.

They also acknowledge that there will be complexities in Penhill joining the academy.
In particular how will they *fit in’ — especially since they will not be on the same site as
the old Pinehurst and Headlands schools, and also because they will be joining later.
However, it was felt by the academy that these difficulties can be overcome - with
goodwill, good management structures and everybody working together to achieve
what they all want — the very best education for the children.

7. Conclusion

The School Improvement and Targets Unit in November 2006 stated “the Local
Authority will be challenged to justify the continued existence of these schools (hard
to shift primary schools), with the strong presumption that those schools unlikely to
meet the target by 2008 should be considered for closure. The Local Authority in
justifying the need to preserve provision in that school, Penhill, has used many other
statutory interventions to raise attainment”.

However the Local Authority having taken into consideration the concerns raised, feel
that although there has been some improvement, the best educational arguments for
further sustainable improvement is to include Penhill School into the Swindon
Academy.

On the balance of the evidence gathered, it is our view that the more significant
issues raised can be overcome and that the proposal for Penhill School to be

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 9
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 169



included in Swindon Academy should be progressed, as it offers the best way
forward for continued improvement.

The consultants will produce a final report in September 2008 where all the issues
and concerns raised will be included with recommendations.

Jocelyn Barrow and Dawn Hill
15 July 2008

Academy Consultation Preliminary Report 15. 07. 2008 10
DJB Consultancy — V2.0

Page 170



Appendix 5

RESPONSES TO KEY ISSUES RAISED

Set out below are the responses of the Local Authority to a number of the key
issues raised during the consultation period for this proposal:

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

Pupil attainment/standards at
Penhill Primary School are
improving and the last Ofsted
report reflected this.

Penhill Primary School is on the DCSF list of 266 ‘hard to
shift’ primary schools in England, out of approximately
17,000 primaries nationally. The school has failed to
meet the floor target at Key Stage 2 in both English &
Maths for the last five years, despite being supported by
a Local Authority Task Group and a School Improvement
Action Plan. This has also been disappointing for the
Local Authority as support provided in similar
circumstances elsewhere has generally been effective.

Standards of pupil attainment at the end of 2007 were
inadequate and well below the national average,
although overall pupils made satisfactory progress. The
Ofsted inspection in September 2007 judged that
achievement overall across the school was satisfactory,
although performance was not consistent and varied
across year groups and subjects, and ‘many pupils
struggle to reach the expected level for their age’. Out of
the 27 areas graded by Ofsted, 23 received a grade 3
(broadly average to below average), two received a
grade 2 (generally above average— healthy lifestyles and
safe practices) and two a grade 4 (exceptionally low —
the standards reached by learners, and the attendance
of learners). It received no grade ‘1’s.

Based on the 2007 key stage 2 SAT results, Penhill is
48™ out of 52 primary schools on the contextual value
added measure, and 52" out of 52 for average point
scores. This year (2008) 47% of Penhill pupils reached
the expected level in English, down from 62% last year.
62% reached the expected level in Maths, up from 44%
last year. The Government’s floor level for these targets
is 65% of pupils reaching the expected level. This
means that the school has failed to meet this floor level
for six years running. Further details are set out in
paragraphs 1.2,1.3 and 2.5 of the report and in the
consultation documents (Appendices 1 and 2).

The Academy was only
established in September 2007
and it is too early to judge its
results or success

The indicators so far are that the Academy is having a
strong impact on standards and pupil attainment. At key
stage 2 this year (2008), 56% of pupils reached the
expected level in maths compared to 42% last year, and
in reading, 73% reached the expected level compared to
50% last year. At key stage 3, there have been
improvements in English this year from 53% of pupils

Page 171




Appendix 5

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

meeting the expected level, to 65%. In addition, Maths is
up from 44% to 55% and Science is up from 48% to
51%. At key stage 4 in the last two years the % attaining
5 A*- Cs including English and Maths has moved for 5%
to 20% (and from 9% to 24% not including Maths and
English).

The developing educational plans of the Academy
suggest that it will break out from the traditional year
group structures and move towards working with
vertically organised systems, where the needs of the
individual learner can be more readily met and
personalised. Students will be progressed according to
the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather than
their chronological age. Such a development could
make it more difficult for the current Penhill Primary
School pupils to integrate into the Academy when they
move at age 11. Being within the Academy will therefore
help to remove or reduce a number of the transition
issues between primary and secondary, which
traditionally is when pupil performance dips — accepting
of course that Penhill pupils would remain on a separate
site. Further details are set out in paragraph 2.5 of the
report and in the consultation documents.

What is there to stop ULT
walking away / What could the
LA do?

There is a legally binding agreement between ULT and
the DCSF that ensures continuity of provision for the
duration of the agreement. In the unlikely event that ULT
decided that they longer wished to continue with the
agreement, there is a 7 year notice period that has to be
given that would have to be supported by a procedure to
transfer, in theory, back to the LA.

Moving from Community to
Trust Status would be a better
option for the school in terms of
raising standards and pupil
attainment

Trust status for some schools may be an appropriate
way forward as a Trust partner, such as a local business
or educational institution, may be able to help to drive up
standards and give a school renewed impetus.
However, these advantages are already set up at the
Academy, which has close links to Honda, and
Marlborough School, and is building partnerships also
with others stakeholders in the borough, such as the FE
colleges.

It is considered that a separateTrust arrangement, would
not offer the pupils of Penhill Primary School a sufficient
step change to significantly improve standards. As
already stated, Penhill is on the DCSF list of ‘hard to
shift’ primary schools, and the DCSF requires the Local
Authority to take decisive action. The challenges that
the school faces are very significant and have persisted
for a number of years. The Local Authority considers

Page 172




Appendix 5

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

that an immediate structural solution is required, and that
inclusion within the Academy would enable a significant
and sustainable shift for Penhill pupils that a Trust
arrangement would be less likely to offer. See also
‘Alternative Options’ in the body of the report.

If Penhill Primary School
became part of the Academy,
pupils would be ‘lost’ in such a
large school

If Penhill Primary School became part of the Academy, it
would remain on its present site and continue to be fully
integrated into the local Penhill Community. Although
part of a larger school, it is considered that this would not
‘feel’ the case. The Academy focuses on personalised
learning and care for pupils as individuals, and this would
apply equally to those pupils based in the new Pinehurst
building when it opens in 2009/10. Pupils at Penhill
would remain on their own site but would have the
advantage of having access to state of the art facilities
available in the Pinehurst building. The ULT consultation
document provides further details — Appendix 2.

Pupils with SEN, of which there
are a substantial number at
Penhill, would not receive the
same level of care or support in
the Academy

ULT, who run the Academy, place a strong emphasis on
support for pupils with SEN and have stated that this
would continue to be a high priority if Penhill became part
of the Academy. As already mentioned, the Academy
has a student focused approach which is designed to
meet the needs of each individual. The highest priority
within the Academy’s admissions criteria is ‘children with
statements of SEN where the Academy is named on the
statement’.

The Academy already has 50% of students on the SEN
register and is therefore very experienced at dealing with
SEN students. Their Special Educational Needs Co-
ordinator (SENCo) was previously the lead SENCo for
the whole borough. The Academy are also about to
employ their own Educational Psychologist, and they
have a large Inclusion Team with the breadth of
expertise necessary to deal with a wide range of special
needs, something that is not available in a primary
school. See Appendix 2.

Will funding still be available for
building refurbishment work if
the proposal does not proceed?

The refurbishment of Penhill Primary School is
recognised as a high priority. There have been many
demands on the Council's Capital resources over recent
years, and funding has had to be targeted, particularly at
those schools with accommodation in the poorest
condition.

It is estimated that up to £2.3 million may be required to
refurbish and remodel the school if it becomes part of the
Academy. If the proposal does not proceed, the work
remains a high priority with a strong case to implement
improvements, but it is for Cabinet to determine how

Page 173




Appendix 5

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

funding is allocated to all major capital schemes,
including at Penhill. Further details of the proposed
improvements to the accommodation are included in the
ULT consultation document (Appendix 2).

Will the school stay on the
existing Penhill site or will it be
moved elsewhere?

It will stay on the existing Penhill site within the Penhill
community and will not be moved. As already mentioned
elsewhere, it is intended to refurbish and remodel the
accommodation to bring it up a satisfactory standard.
Appendix 2 provides details of the proposed work. The
existing transport arrangements would also stay the
same.

Penhill Primary School is part
of the local community. There
are concerns that this would
change if it became part of the
Academy.

As stated in the ULT consultation document (Appendix
2), there is a very strong emphasis placed on community
involvement. ULT have made clear that the Penhill site
and buildings will serve the community of Penbhill. It will
support regeneration initiatives and will be a facility for
the whole community to use.

It is intended that the Penhill site will offer a range of
facilities to the community including extended school
activities, a youth service provision and access to ICT
and business facilities, which would all be subject to a
Community Use Agreement between the Council and
ULT. There will also be close links established with other
schools, the colleges and local employers. In addition,
there are two Local Authority representatives on the
Academy Governing Body — the Lead Cabinet Member
for Children and the Group Director Children. Further
details are set out in the ULT consultation document —
Appendix 2

Will the school remain open
24/7 to community and youth
groups?

The youth provision will not be open 24/7. It is the
intention to only allow access to the provision outside of
normal school hours. The extended use of the school will
be subject to a Community Use Agreement that ULT, the
Council, and Community groups will have to agree to.

Will all staff in Penhill Primary
School transfer to the Academy
or will jobs be at risk?

All staff, including the headteacher, will have the right to
transfer their employment to the Academy under the
provision of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of
Employment) Regulations 2006. The Regulations are
designed to protect the rights of employees in a transfer
situation. Both the Borough and ULT would undertake a
full consultation with staff and union representatives in
relation to the TUPE process. Whilst pension
arrangements are not included under the TUPE
Regulations, staff will continue to be able to contribute to
the Teachers Pensions and the Local Government
Pension Scheme. The ULT consultation document
(Appendix 2) provides further details.

Once the school is under ULT

The lease that is negotiated with the Council is

Page 174




Appendix 5

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

ownership what is there to stop
them selling off land for
housing?

provisioned such that ULT are only able to assign the
lease to another party for exactly the same use as
intended in the lease. This stops them from selling the
land in part or whole

Does the Academy have the
right to change its admissions
policy?

The Academy is responsible for setting its own
admissions policy. If included as part of the Academy,
the policy will be amended to reflect the existing ULT
admissions policy from January 2009.

The Academy’s arrangements are required to follow the
national School Admissions Code and the Local
Authority has the right to object to the School’s
Adjudicator if they feel the admissions policy is unfair.

Would Penhill become a Faith
school if it became part of the
Academy? Who is ULT
responsible to?

Swindon Academy is not a Faith school but it does
promote a Christian ethos. In ULT’s consultation
document (Appendix 2), they state that: ‘ULT hopes and
expects that its ethos can be accepted by people of all
faiths and none'.

ULT is a registered charity. Swindon Academy, which is
run by ULT, is a state (not private) school and is
responsible to the Department of Children, Schools and
Families, who fund it directly. It is subject to Ofsted
Inspections like any other school.

The consultation process did
not provide a proper
opportunity for people to
express their views, or to obtain
answers

There was a thorough and extensive consultation
process carried out which lasted 6 weeks, from 1 June
until 14 July. Approximately 3500 households in Penhill
and other stakeholders were sent the Local Authority’s
and ULT'’s consultation documents (Appendices 1 and
2). Five ‘formal’ consultation meetings were then held
over 9 and 12 June at Penhill Primary School — see
paragraphs 2.7 —2.9 of the main report. In each case,
presentations were made initially to explain the proposal
as fully as possible, and these were followed by a Q and
A session and an opportunity to put forward
views/comments. Representatives of the Local Authority,
ULT, DJB and Swindon Academy attended each of these
sessions and gave as full an answer as possible to each
guestion. The open offer of further consultation meetings
was made for staff, parents, governors or others,
although none were received.

A summary of the key issues raised at these meetings
and breakdown of the 357 response forms received is
set out in Appendix 3. Responses from Penhill Governing
Body, trades unions and Swindon Academy are attached
to Appendix 3. Copies of response forms, the petition

Page 175




Appendix 5

Key issues raised

Local Authority responses

and other more detailed background information is
available in the Members Room and will be available for
Cabinet at the meeting.

A separate and extensive consultation exercise was
carried by DJB, independent consultants appointed by
ULT. A summary of the results is set out in Appendix 4
and the full report will be available in September.

Page 176




Appendix 6

N

Swinpon

BOROUGH COUNGIL

SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Penhill Primary School

Notice to close Penhill Primary School to allow the expansion of
Swindon Academy

Notice is given in accordance with section 15(1) of the Education and
Inspections Act 2006 that Swindon Borough Council, Sanford House,
Sanford Street, Swindon, SN1 1QH intends to discontinue Penhill
Primary School, Alton Close, Penhill, Swindon, SN2 5HF on 31
December 2008.

All pupils on roll at Penhill Primary School would transfer to Swindon
Academy on 1st January 2009.

All applicable statutory requirements to consult in relation to the
proposals were complied with.

The transport arrangements for pupils would not alter as no pupils will be
displaced by the proposals.

This Notice is an extract from the complete proposal. Copies of the
complete proposal can be obtained from: David Neal, Sanford House,
Sanford Street, Swindon, SN1 1QH or telephone 01793 463367.

Within six weeks from the date of publication of this proposal, any person
may object to or make comments on the proposal by sending them to
Tricia Devany, Swindon Borough Council, Sanford House, Sanford
Street, Swindon, SN1 1QH.

Signed:

lan Bickerton
Director, Access and Provison
Publication Date: 14" August 2008

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 178



Appendix 7

Appendix 7 - Responses to Statutory Consultation

e Letter of support from Jan Shaddick, Principal Swindon Academy

e Letter of Objection from Linda Rankin, Headteacher Penhill Primary
School

e Letter of Objection from the National Union of Teachers
e Letter of Objection from the Penhill Forum
e Letter from Swindon Association of Primary Headteachers

e A copy of the standard letter from 11 governors of Penhill Primary
School

e A copy of the standard letter from 41 staff of Penhill Primary School

e A copy of standard letter parents, and of other letters received, totalling
163

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



Appendix 7

Vi@) Principal: Ms J Shadick BA MA

Swindon Academy
Headlands Grove
Swindon

b SN2 7HS
L t 01793 747800

f 01793 747801
Swindon Academy R S e 0
The best in everyone™

A member of United Learning Trust

25" September 2008

To whom it may concern

| write in favour of the proposal to expand Swindon Academy to include Penhill
Primary and Nursery School.

In supporting the proposal | recognise the hard work and commitment on the part of staff to
improve standards but it is my belief that this proposal will overcome the challenges that
still lie ahead in raising attainment in a sustainable way.

We have had a good first year at Swindon Academy and are making progress, particularly
at Key Stage 2. This progress has been confirmed by external reviews by our Sponsor
ULT and by the DCSF through our School Improvement Partner. We are beginning the
transformation and would welcome Penhill to be part of this.

If Penhill were to join us they would be joining a school which:

1. has a strong track record of success. In just ten months at KS2 we have made a 14%
improvement in Maths, a 22% improvement in Science and a 21% improvement in
Reading (we are still awaiting our writing results). We have also continued to make
improvements at KS3 with a 12% improvement in English, an 11% improvement in
Maths and a 4% improvement in Science.

At KS4 our Average Points Score has increased to the highest it has ever been
meaning that more students are gaining more GCSEs at higher grades and 100% of
students that we educated on site gained at least one formal qualification — a first. We
did have a serious set back in Maths which will inevitably impact on our 5 A*-C
including English and Maths performance. This is due to a very specific reason which
has been identified and isolated and we are back on course to reach floor targets in
2009. (I would be very happy to talk with members about this issue in detail if
desired). Until this ‘blip’ we had made over 300% improvement in our GCSE results
and progress in English and Maths placed us in the top 20% of schools nationally;

2. is very used to, and experienced in, dealing with students who have SEN - this
includes students with physical disabilities. There are currently 50% of students
identified with a need (500 individuals). They are provided for through an inclusive
programme of intervention. We are able to offer far greater resourcing and flexibility for
this area. Even our students with SEN are beginning to hit the ‘floor targets’ and will
go beyond them. We have reduced permanent exclusions this year and have been
successful in gaining Statements for students with severe need in order to keep them
within education.

Inspired to Achieve L \
P @

Chairman: Angela Rumbold DBE, Chief Executive: Sir Ewan Harper CBE . i
Registered in England No. 4439859. Charity No. 1093277 Business & Hea"hv SChOO'S

P ag e 181 Science Enterprise



Our Year 7 students last year who undertook the DISTAR reading recovery
programme (enabling them to access the curriculum) made on average 18 months
progress in just 8 months of intervention. Our 21 students from Penhill made an
average of 2 years progress in just 8 months. As a 0 — 19 Academy this successful
intervention can be made earlier;

3. Dbenefits from being part of a well established education sponsor — the United Learning
Trust — which has extensive experience of running schools from 3 — 19. This support,
plus the support from our partners Honda and Marlborough College, means that we
are now seeing our children and young people gain access to a whole range of
activities to supplement the curriculum and raise aspirations;

4. is committed to being in the heart of its community. Community and parental
engagement is reflected in our structures. We are already benefiting from the parent
and family learning activities that we run and would see this continuing to operate on
all sites;

5. has a strong transition programme. Our Year 6 felt very confident about joining the
secondary site. They know the teachers and the systems already and their Head of
Learning knows them. We are seeing the benefits of this as Year 7 settle into
secondary school life. There is a significant difference in the way they have settled
this year;

6. has a committed team of senior leaders and staff with expertise across the full age
range. We are developing the 0 — 19 teacher as well as the 0 — 19 school. This is
making recruitment and retention far easier. There is a misheld view that the senior
staff are all secondary trained and that staff do not like ULT contracts. This is not true.
1/3 of the senior staff have specific expertise in the primary phase and we have had
no difficulty recruiting good staff for September.

Penhill has a legacy of underachievement which is greater than our other feeder schools.
| recognise the improvements that have been made in recent years but it is my belief, as
was the case with Headlands School, that in order to achieve the potential that exists in our
children a radical change needs to happen. The evidence from our cluster over the past
10 years shows real difficultly in sustaining any improvements in attainment beyond 3 to 5
years unless significant changes are put in place.

When tracking our own Year 7 students on entry and through the year it is evident that
those coming from Penhill present particular challenges that others do not on the same
scale. On average;

a. they are already below other schools in terms of KS2 standards, particularly in
English and Science;

b. their CATs scores are below those of students from other primary schools;

c. their average reading age at 11 is just over 7 years;

d. within the first 6 months of Year 7 they do not make the same level of progress as
other students academically or behaviourally. In fact significant numbers present
challenging behaviour during this time as they adjust to secondary school. This
was particularly pronounced last year;

e. a significant number arrive to us with high levels of SEN but without a Statement.
We have had to spend a great deal of time applying for these within the first few
months. This was the case for 4 students last year. And we successfully gained
the support these students needed to access the curriculum.

Page 182



Appendix 7

Our Academy can build on the strengths that Penhill has. We can bring a consistent and
coherent approach to teaching and learning which our children need; a specialist delivery
to aspects of the curriculum with targeted intervention when needed. The curriculum can
be delivered as a coherent framework from 0 — 19, thus raising aspirations and
expectations;

| understand the concerns that staff, in particular, have about change. By embracing
change it is seen as an acknowledgement that what has gone before is not good enough
or needs to improve. This is sometimes difficult to accept but what must drive any change
is that it will benefit the students.

As professionals we have a collective responsibility to explore any opportunities which
come our way to improve the life chances of our children. | believe that this is one of those
opportunities.

It is always disappointing to hear comments made which are based on assumptions with
no basis in fact or which have little to do with our children and their opportunities.

| understand that some would like the proposal to be put on hold until other avenues have
been explored. We cannot put the education of our students on hold and we cannot allow
a change situation to ‘hang in the air’ creating uncertainty. This benefits no one.

At Swindon Academy our vision is to see every member of our community achieve to their
best. We face the challenges of deprivation but will never allow that to be an excuse for
under achievement. Time and time again we have seen our students outperform others
and themselves to realise their potential. 1 believe that the same will be true for the
children of Penhill if they become part of Swindon Academy.

Yours sincerely

Ms J Shadick
Principal

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



Appendix 7

PENHILL PRIMARY SCHOOL

THE BEST WE CAN BE TOGETHER

Headteacher: Linda Rankin B.A.

I am writing to formally object to the proposal to close Penhill Primary School and
amalgamate it into Swindon Academy.

I urge councillors to carefully consider the next step for the pupils of Penhill Primary
School, within their context. The 2007 Index for Multiple Deprivation placed Penbhill
Primary at the top of Swindon schools. A Joseph Rowntree Foundation analysis of
the Department for Work and Pensions (Sept 2007) placed Penhill as the 5th most
deprived ward in SW England as measured by the percentage of children dependant
on worklessness. The insular nature of the estate is significant. Having reached a
certain point in the raising of standards, | know that creative and innovative
solutions are required to break down the remaining barriers to that improvement.
Pinehurst’s solutions, or Oaktree’s solutions do not necessarily answer Penhill’s
needs. However, opportunities to work with high performing partners, with schools
whose proven practice results in high standards of achievement, will help is to
increase our upward trends.

Last September, Ofsted reported “...there is clear direction for raising standards and
a steady improvement has been secured in pupils’ achievements”. Our average point
score shows a consistent upward trend from 2003/4, which continues to 2007/8.

300

250

200

o
150 .
B Aggregate Point Score

100

50

04
Penhill

Similar data is available for all Swindon schools and this can therefore help us to
identify strong partners to work with. We can plot our progress against any school in
Swindon in order to identify ‘like’ schools who have had a significant impact on
standards or outstanding schools who could share good practice. Value added
scores also reflects consistent rising trend.

Page 185




Appendix 7

During the first Ofsted inspection of the newly formed Penhill Primary School, an
inspector remarked that it would take 6 years for improvements to be securely rooted
in the school as the job was like ‘turning around the Titanic’. The graph above shows
that and although we are very close to the 65% floor targets, we are not consistently
achieving them. The School Improvement Partner's Annual Report to Governors
(July 08), states that “the school is likely to need a reduced amount of local authority
support from September 2008”. It also states that “school self-evaluation is strongly
focused on pupil progress but it also reflects a broader picture of the school’s
effectiveness across the 5 Every Child matters outcomes” and that “there are robust
tracking procedures in place to monitor the progress of individual pupils, classes and
cohorts”.

These are all indications that its additional creative and innovative solutions that are
required. During all the discussions that have been held with the local authority in the
past 18 months, on addressing the 65% issue, there has been no mention of working
in partnerships with any other Swindon school, no suggestions of collaboration with
other Headteachers, and no drawing on the wealth of expertise that exists in
Swindon. This is why the Governors turned to the Trust status option because it
would facilitate partnerships which would create synergy and launch us forward.

I am not convinced that Swindon Academy is yet in the position to meet Penhill
Primary’s needs. | am disappointed that the local authority has only considered this
option and feels that it is appropriate to close our school in the middle of an academic
year. | am puzzled that despite our Ofsted inspection last year contributing to the
claim that ‘no Swindon schools are in special measures’, we have been made to feel
like a failing school.

Linda Rankin
Headteacher

Page 186



Swindon Division

Feter Smith

18 Woodside Avenue,

Swinden,

SN3 1DX A Doty

On the proposal to close Penhill Primary Schoo! to allow the expansion of
Swindon Academy.

| write on behalf of Swindon Division of the NUT to object to the propoesal
to close Penhill Primary school to allow the expansion of Swindon
Academy.

Introductory remarks.
The case put for closing Penhili Primary is broadiy:

» The school is on the DCSF “hard to shift" list reflecting levels of attainment at
KS2.

~ A serigs of asseriions that the expansion of the Academy will raise
standards and strengthen good practice.

This proposal is not based cn any evidence, indeed evidence accumulating
nationally and locally about the resuits of the Academies programme seems to
be excluded as of course it was when the original decision to establish the
Swindon Academy was seltled.

Consultation.

The consultation was seriously fiawed. The whole process seems to have
seriously downplayed the opposition of a large rmajority of stake hoiders at
Penhill Primary to the proposal, as avidenced by meetings with staff and a
petition, which | understand was signed by parents of 2 majority of pupils at the
schoal.

SBC officers involved in the consultation were quite open. for example in
discussions on the education JCC, about the fact that the closure was a position
they supported. The consultation was seen as a way, at best, of attempting to
answer objactions. it was not seen as a way of collecting the views of
stakeholders to influence the decision. This was an approach which generated
anger. When the DJB report suggests people felt the decision was a foregone
conclusion it seems clear they were correct.

We have remarked on the role of DJB in consultations about ULT schools
before. They are commisioned by ULT and DCSF. The guestion needs posing
once again, if they ever decided against the ULT position would they ever be
commisioned again?

The partial nature of the DJB consultancy position is clear in the report.

Firstly comments are listed in a way suggesting similar numbers of people lined
up on each side of the debate. This effect has been magnified by the method
used to assemble focus groups. | understand that invitations to the

focus group were made in such a way as to balance those against with those in

NATIONAL UNION OF
CRLEITHENT ST e e PAR TR nd Zun 0N

Page 187

TEACHER™




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 188



favour. This in no way reflected the cpinions of stake holders and leads to a
report which incorrectly suggests opinions were equally divided

In the report each comment vaicing cencerns about the academy proposal is
answered by reference to a ULT comment or position. At one peint an objection
relating to transition is brushed aside as the result of ‘muddled thinking.”

Following these sections in the report is the Academy response. section 5,
which suggests that opponents of the proposals are not concerned with children
or their opportunities. Curiously this section doesn't avan comment on prospects
of improvement in terms of attainment standards

Despite the DJB Consultancy report recommending. on cue, that the proposal to
close Penhiil should proceed it doesnt trouble it=elf {o suggest any evidence
that this will achieve the aim of improving pupil attainment at K&2.

Attainment.

Since the stated aim of the proposal is the improvement of attainment we might
expect some evidence that this is what the proposai will iead to. None is offered
so it is worth looking at evidence accumulating nationally on the attainment
levels achieved at academias.

Around the end of last school year Education secretary Ed Balls anounced a
“national challenge®. His suggestion was that 638 secondary schools weare
failing and could be closed to be replaced by academies. This amounts to 20%
of secondary schoogls. Indicating the incoherence of the policy 31% of
Academies are also failing schools by the measure used. The point s this: The
mantra about academies improving standards is nonsense.

Detailed analysis has shown that academies have not impreved attainment.
Early claims that they had were based entirely on the fact that the new schoals
switched from GCSEs o less demanding GNVQs. An intermediate pass at
GNVQ counted as four GCSE A*-C passes for the purposes of league tables.
When figures including Maths and English GCSEs were used this improvement
was all but wiped away. There was a modest 4% improvement but it needs to
be noted that many Academies adjusted their intake by admissicns policies, and
exclusions. It also needs to be noted that they gained £1600 per student as
“new start” funds.

In addition the least succesful students at academies do even worse, This is
important to note in an area of disadvantage. 19% leave (2008) with no passes
at A-G which is worse than predecessor schools. (figures from Terry Wrigley.
Dept of Education studies at Edinburgh University )

A February 2007 Audit office report indicates that the Academies project has
been less successful than the far less expensive Excellence in Cites (EIiC)
programme. It also shows that improvement in predecessor schools was at
least as strong as in the academies replacing them.

The NAD report shows that at Key Stage 3, pupils at Academies
performed less well in English {52 per cent). Maths (53 per cent) and
Science (42 per cent) compared to EiC pupils in deprived areas (62 %.
61% and 54% respectively. (TUC commissioned report.)

(hitp:/fwwwe tuc. org uk/extras/academies pdf)

Page 189
I




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



Appendix 7

Penhill Forum

Clo 31, Avebury Road,

Penhill,

Swindon.

SN2 5JR (\r
| N

Phone 01793 331516 (

Email penhill.forum3@ntiworld.com .__(_ _~

26 June, 2008 Attaeus the Roman

Dear Sirs/Madam
Academy/Penhill Primary

We object to the take over of Penhill Primary School by the Academy, for the
following reasons:

1. There is no evidence that this will help our children more than any other way,
especially with recent school results endorsing our concerns.
Neither the school nor we were invited to be part of previous discussions of
options for the future of the school.
No one should ignore effect of poverty and lack of aspiration on a children’s ability
to learn and the care needed to ensure they have a good childhood with no fear
of learning.

2. That this will have a very serious effect on the government’s drive for Community

engagement and empowerment.
The obvious railroading of the consultation with leaders of the same saying
“It's going ahead anyway” takes away empowerment and stalls engagement.

We object to the obvious wrong footing, disrespect for community and parent
wishes.

The see an obvious lack of understanding of community work principles which
does not augur well for the future academy management of the school.

3. That this will have a serious effect on our community plan and ‘out of school’
activities and Adult Learning.
Having already disregarded previous meetings about OUR plans for children and
youth Activities, we would not expect greater co-operation after the take over.
Disregarding community work principles that a variety of venues are more
appropriate to community engagement and Adult Learning, especially for those
who have had bad experience at school. Penhill community led projects have
been extremely successful in Adult Learning take up.

4. We already have experience that other statutory agencies take away resources
from our projects.

There is no evidence to support the promise that the Voluntary and Community
groups of Penhill would be looked upon as partners.

Page 191



Appendix 7

. SBC'’s paper, ‘Connecting People, Connecting places’ shows plans to Cluster
communities around Secondary schools and give them more standing and
importance in the general community. This means we need to be more aware of
the management and the head-ship of those schools. Not choosing a democratic
option for school management leads us to believe that this is not the way forward.

. Experience shows there will be a non-productive relationship between this
community and a school forced on us.

. We are concerned about the march of Academy management into the primary
sector, which could lead to all of our local school being under one management,
and one that is not proven. It is difficult enough to deal with problems for our
children without putting that management at ‘long arm’.

. Since the pre-statutory consultation we have discovered that our other Primary
school is to be rebuilt as ‘state of the art’ with many ‘add ons’ which will not be
available in-house to Penhill Primary. Whilst we are very pleased about the
rebuild, we are very concerned about the in-equity that will be felt and fear for our
future community cohesion and its effects on the primary population of Penbhill.

. We suggest that a preferred option is to explore TRUST status as a better way
forward for Penhill Primary. This would be more inclusive of the community and
give us a better, more engaging way of supporting the school, and include people
with more understanding of community engagement work and the problems of an
area of compounded deprivation. It will enable us to try for better a better balance
between the two Penhill primary schools.

Yours sincerely,

Marilyn Beale,
Secretary
On behalf of the Penhill Forum Steering Group

Page 192



Appendix 7
Swindon
Association
of Primary
Headteachers

Chair: Chris Davies — Wanborough Primary.
Vice Chairl: Terri Menham Redoaks Primary. Vice Chair2: Sue Kershaw — Gorse Hill Infants
Secretary and Financial Officer: Mrs Lesley Drewett, Brigadoon, Hockerbench, Bishopstone, Wilts. SN6 8PW.

23 September 2008

Re: SAPH response to the Penhill Consultation

The Swindon Association of Primary Head Teachers welcomes the opportunity to
make a formal response to the consultation on the proposal to close Penhill Primary
School on December 31 2008 and to expand The Swindon Academy.

We wholeheartedly agree with the necessity to provide the best possible education
for the children of Penhill and without pre judging the future capacity of The Swindon
Academy to provide such improvements, we have concerns, as a professional
association, that the case is yet unproven. This is especially in light of the fact that
any IFD data for The Swindon Academy at KS2 has not been made available to
Swindon Head teachers while it is readily available for FS and KS 1.

SAPH is committed to and welcomes any opportunity to work in partnership with
Children’s Service and accepts that we all have the moral responsibility to ensure
that all the children in Swindon have the best possible life chances.

We would therefore ask elected members and the group director, Children Services
to suspend the proposal for this academic year in order to enter into a meaningful
dialogue and collaboration with SAPH to look at further alternative solutions and a
more creative and innovative approach to supporting Penhill Primary School. Such
collaboration, we believe could bring about systemic and long lasting change for the
children of Penhill in a more measured and realistic timeframe and more importantly,
create a Swindon based model of good practice that could be used for other schools
who may find themselves working in challenging circumstances.

Furthermore, we would welcome the opportunity to ensure we collectively give a joint
and resounding message to all schools that Head teachers when working in
partnership with Children’s Services can become a powerful agent of improvement
and change which benefits all involved in improving life chances in Swindon.

Yours faithfully

Mr Chris Davis
Chair

Page 1

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 194



PENHILL PRIMARY SCHOOL

THE BEST WE CAN BE TOGETHER

Chair of Governors: Siman Wyntt

Alton Close
Swandon
SN2 SHF

Telephone:. 01793 723677
Fax: 0173 723807
Email: chair@penhill-pri.swindon.sch. uk

The Governing Body of Penhill Primary School writes to formally object to the closure of our school in
order for it to be absorbed by the Swindon Academy.

Our objections to this proposal are as follows:-

+ The Academy's Key Stage 4 results are not conducive to a quality education for all children as
promised and assured by United Learning Trust. A 9% pass rate, well below the government set
target of 30%, is disappointing and unacceptable.

« Penhill Primary Schoal's Key Stage 2 unvalidated results continue fo show an upward trend,
despite the unsettling and disruptive impact these proposals have generated,

e Our parents have shown overwhelming opposition to the proposal, with @2% raising objections
during the non-statutory peried.

+ The Borough's officers did net follow the procedures agreed, in writing, with the then Directer
of Education and Penhill Primary School's Head Teacher and Chair of Governors.

+  The school staff, parents and cemmunity groups al! feel that the schoo! should remain part of the
community; manoged and owned by the community ond not be absorbed into the Academy.

« Trust Status was never offered as an option for the Head Teacher or Governing Bady to consider
hor for the first twelve months was the Academy mentioned.

»  Whilst acknawledging that floor targets have still fo be achieved both by Penhill Primary schood
and by Swindon Academy, we feel that we would be better off continuing aur upward trend
without suffering the disruption which the proposal would bring, particularly in the middle of an
acedernic year.

TIn conclusion, the Gaverning Body of Penhill Primary School would urge the Council Cabinet to reject
this propesal and grant us Time to investigate moving to Trust Status,

Yours sincereiw

Member of the Governing Bady

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



PENHILL PRIMARY SCHOOL

THE BEST WE CAN BE TOGETHER

Headteacher: Lingda Rankin E.A.

| am writing to formally object to the proposal to close Penhill Primary School
and amalgamate it into Swindon Academy. | have several objections why this
move would not benefit the children of Penhill Primary.

Should this proposal go ahead, | feel that it will create a school with a
population in excess of 2000. Evidence shows that large schogis can have a
serious detrimental effect on the academic progress and wellbeing of children.
Qur children are especially vulnerable and benefit from being in a small,
caring environment; a fact which was acknowledgead in our Ofsted report in
2007. The headteacher and senior leadership team know all the children very
well. their individual needs and leaming styles, their parents, carers and home
environments. | therefore, have serious concerns that becoming part of the
larger Swindon Academy could only have a negative impact on them.

| am not convinced that the Loca! Authority recommendations are being driven
by a desire to improve the life chances of our children. Both Ofsted and our
Schocl Improvement Partner {SIP) have stated that as we have fully
embraced the intensive support programmes offered by Swindon LA, our
results have steadily improved and are set to continue in this way. "School
leaders embraced the intensive support provided by the local authority to help
raise standards. As a result, there is clear direction for raising standards and a
steady improvement has been secured in pupils' achievement......the
capacity for further improvements is satisfactory. School leaders are clearly
facused on improving the quality of teaching and learning throughout the
school to raised standards further”. (Ofsted, Sept 2007) Our first note of visit
from our SIP this year reports that “the school has increased capacity for
improvement...therefare the local authority support will be reduced this term.”
{Sept 2008)

| am seriously concerned that Swindon Academy are not yet achieving
Government set targets at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4, and therefore, they
need to address this fundamental issue before taking on further responsibiiity
and more children. Furthermore, we know that the Penhill community also
share our concems and this is demonstrated by the low percentage of Year 6
children transferring from Penhill and Sevenfields primaries.

Moreaver, the Secretary of State has publically stated that secondary schools
which do not meet their floor targets will face closure. As Swindon Academy
only managed to achieve 8% A" to C grades at GCSE in 2008, | feel it would
be guesticnable for us to become part of a school which still faces a huge
challenge at Key Stage 4.

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 198



| feel that the proposed amalgamation of Penhill Primary into Swindon
Academy will create an inequality of opportunity far our children, due to the
fact that we will effectively become a satellite site with the concomitant
problems of accessing the Academy's state of the art resources. It also
creates a division within the Penhill community, with the two primary schools
{with very similar results in the past three years) following different
approaches to the curriculum. To have an established Swindon Academy as
an option for transfer at K82, gives our children and parents the same options
as those at Sevenfields and Gorse Hill.

In conclusion, as a staff, we do recognise that we need to continue to improve
the life chances of our children, but we do not believe that this — the only
course pursued by the Local Authority - Is the most appropriate reute to take.

An Expression of Interest to gain Trust status, was submitted by the
Governing Body last June, because it offers us the timely opportunity to tailor
our owh solution, through innovative partnerships (particularly with successful
primary colleagues in Swindon) so as to tackle the identified barriers to
continued rising standards, particularly in core subjects.

Trust status wili:

+ enable us to use our knowledge of, and position within, our community
fo raisefinfluence aspirations of children to secure higher achievement
at all levels and therefore enhance life chances. A particular focus will
be to improve children’'s chances of economic wellbeing by widening
their parents’ and carers’ access to education in their local primary
school.

+ give us the scaffolding to develop a strong community presence in the
functioning of our schoo!, from strategic leve! to day to day delivery,
where all members of the community are valued.

« actively support the school to continue to develop at the centre of its
local community. Community cohesion will be increased by sustained

engagement both of the scheol within the community, and the
community within the school.

Member of Penhill Primary Staff

24.9.08

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 200



25" September 2008
To whom it may ¢oncern,

I'm writing to you with concerns about the meeting we had at
Penhill School regarding the take over to Swindon Academy. We were not all allowsd
to talk because they didn’t have enough time but to me it seemed to be that they only
wanted a few questions and that was it. they didn’t listen 0 all the parents and we
were pointed at and given numbers and not asked oor nanes. which | think is VEry
rude.

In the holidays a notice was put on one entrance of the school snly and we have two
entrances that are both used. The notice said about the take over but not everyone
comes past the school particularly in the school holidays so a lot of people didn’t
know about it so no one could put in their objections.

[ also read in the paper on Thursday 14" August the notice that stated the schoul was
closing on 31* December which alarmed me and my children. It seemis to me no
matter what we say it is going to the Academy anyway. You don’t wani (o listen o
what we have to say or what we want lor our community .1 can’t understand cither
that if it goes to Swindon Academy the school gets money for much needed and
overdue improvements but i1 it stays as Penhill Schoal we don't. if the work s needed
we should have it done anyway. This school hasn't failed with my children and [ have
had two that have lefi here now but { have still pot onc here and | am very happy with
what they have done with all three, so [ can’t see why it has to change, | hope you do
read this and listen to ail parents about what we have (o say before vou make vour
decision.

Yours Hopefully

Miss Merritt

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 202



23 September 2008

Dear Sit

i am writing to formally object to the closure of Penhill Primury School in otder for it
to be included into Swindon Academy. My reasons arc based on my experiences of
Headlands School and the Academy in the past two years.

! do not think children are given enough 1:1 attention. meaning that staft do not know
individual children, for example, I received a phone call complaining of my child’s
behaviour and attitude 1o work - only to be told later. sorry., it was the wrong child.

Also. as a parent, if you want to speak 1o someone, it’s realls hard to find the person
you want, messages aren't passed on. people do not return calls Thave been o
meetings with my child’s tuter and head of leaming which have not been tollowed up.

Many times my child's class has been keptin at Junchtime. sith no prior warning.
resulting in my child being unable to collect the free school meal voucher and
therefore having no lunch and coming home starving at the ond of the day.

Even though my child is in Year 9, the school has failed to help ber reach her
expected level in English, even though a learning plan was agreed between me. her
twior, head of leaming skills centre, head of English and her English teacher. Lxtra
work was 1o be sent home but it didn't happen. When 1 mentioned this at the end of
year parent meetings, the tutor was unaware that it hadn't happened. My child’s
Maths and Science levels are good.

[ think these problems are due to the size of the school and communication problems.
1 am sure that [ do not want Penhill Primary School to become part of school which
will then be even bigger. These children will just be a name. it will be impaossible to
keep the personal touch when the Principal is at Beech Avenue and there are hundreds
of pupils in the school.

What | like about Penhill Primary School is the feeling that every teacher s
approachable, Mrs Rankin s very approachable and knows ull the children in the
school. I've never had any problems here, it's casy (o talk through any worries, My
children are doing really well a1 Penhill. They are very happy here and Dwill bave e
move them to another primary school if Penhill is taken into the Academy.

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 204



I also wish © comment on the parent meetings which were held as part of the
consultation process. [ found them very poorly erganised. Some of the people leading
the meeting were arrogant and rude. They didn't really listen to vur views and when 1
did raise a point, 1 was spoken to aflerwards and told it wasn’t the right place wo make
that point. The chair person was patronising and this angered parents. It felt like we
were being told what was best for our children, as if we couldn’t decide as parents.

The maujority of our parents are not in favour of becoming part of’a huge school, Our
parent views have been ipnored by the council which prides itsclf on being a listening
council.

When the notice 1o close our school was put on the school tenee in the middle of the
holidays, I thought that the decision had already been musde. Muny parents did too. No
letters were sent to parents. We had to wait until the school opened in Scptember Lo
find out exactly what that meant. It's hard to understand the timings of this and why
things might change in the middle of a school year. Please take note ol my objections.

Yours truly,

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 206



23" September 2008

To whom it may concern,

We are writing a letter to you to complain about the meeting which was held at
Penhill Primary School for the proposal of Penhill Primary being taken over by the
Swindon Academy, firstly where do we begin? Well! We couldn’t belive what we
where hearing NOTHING. Firstly we had the chance 1o lisien o members of stafl
from the Acdamy and the council members which [ would like to add we couldn’t
hear them talking. Then we had a chance to ask qustions WELL! why we bothered |
don’t know because not one person bothered 1o answer any questions satisfactory or
didn’t anwer at all. We where not listen too and we arc still not being lisen too now.
over all the meeting was shabby. We where showen a small slide show. which |
would like to add was so boring especially for the children that attended the mecting.

To save their school, there were a couple of boards which displayed Acdemy details
but if we all had had a look at the same time it would have fallen over. We fecl as
parents of two, who at the moment are very happy and contented at Penhill need
stability which they have Please answer me this. who will pick up the pieces when it
has all gone wrong? The Council know they will be long gone. Has anyone asked the
children what they want ?._....NO! They are oaly children their opinion doesn’t count
BU' it does thew are our future. These and many questions weren't answered. This is
the second letter of complaint | have written the first one 1 received a reply back
which just said ‘Dear sir or madam’ you ¢ouldn’t even pul our nanies on iL., 0 was
this a standard letter that evervone received? By TRYING 1o like Penhill Primary
school not only are you taking a school that has and still is working very hard and has
achieved so much you are taking a commitiec away.

A very angry parent
Wendy Hill

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



Please insert your name and address below the dotted line.

Dear Sir,

Subject: Closure of Penhill Primary School and the move o the Swindon
academy.

I write fo farmally object to this event taking place. T am not convinced
that the academy’s results have improved enough to justify the
closure of our school and see no advantage to the children or community
of such a move taking place. I wish to see our school remaining within our
community and with its current management structure.

Yaurs sincerely

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 210



20" September 2008
Dear Sir, Madam,

T am writing to formally object to the proposal for the closure of Penhill Primary and
the subsequent amalgamation into the Swindon Academy. [ attended Penhill when it
was an Infant and Junior school and am a regular visitor to the area and so [ base my
objection on the following points:

L'irstiy. [ believe that Penhill Primary School serves its pupits well. The school has
shown that it has a good understanding of the needs of the children and is able to give
themn the caring environment they need te become leamers and achieve towards their
full potential. Without such a good level ol pastoral care the children would not be
able to develop their academic skills. This understanding of the negds of the children.
has I feel, always been a strength of the school and has been recognised by outside
agencies.

The main point of the argument is that the school is not achieving the floor target of
65% in the Key Stage 2 SATs in English and Maths. [ am aware that the school has
received support from Swinden Borough Council. The level of support. has helped the
school to continue to move forward in increasing the percentage of children who
reach Level 4 in Maths and English. The floor target has been reached tn Science but [
am teld that this doesn’t matter. This ongoing improvement in pereentages shows that
the school is continuing to move forward in this respect, but there has been little
public recognition of this. The response is the improvement 15 not quick enough.
Ironically, I have been told that the level of support from Swindon Borough Council is
being reduced this term because of the improvements evident at the school.

The improvements made by the school are also seen in the (VA scores. There is
much made of the fact that Penhill Primary has been at the bottom of the league tables
for performance in the Key Stage 2 SATs. However, when ranked in order of CVA,
the tables have told a different story. Surely. ihis is a better guide of how the children
are achieving at the school as it demonstrates how much the children have actoally
progressed, not just achievement during one week in May.

Secondly, I have grave concerns as 10 how the amalgamation with the Swindon
Academy will enable current progress to continue. The children will become part of a
much bigper school, theoretically, and it will be less easy for decisions made to be
based on the children’s needs. It will be difficult (o ensure that the children receive the
pastoral care they need in order to develop their learning skills. Other much needed
activities would also suffer as any sports teams would now be under the * Academy’
label, not Penhili.

Much has been made about the Academy’s skills in improving the standards of
leaming but [ have heard little to convince me that the childeen of Penhill will benefit
from the ‘state of the art facilities’. There is also little evidence w sugyest that the
children will perform any better, under the Swindon Academy. In lact {igures suggest
the opposite. It has been widely reported that the Academy only recent]y achieved 9%

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



24™ July 2008
Dear Cll Renard

As someone who lives in the ward that you represent I am writing to you
re the proposal to incorporate Penhill Primary School into Swindon
Academy.

T am Bursar at Penhill Primary School and have several concerns over This
proposal. Equally I understand that you may have little knowledge of our
school and therefore are taking guidance from the people who should
have knowledge namely the LEA.

What concerns me is, if this is the right move for Penhill why did the
LEA, in their report to Cabinet, take statements from the Ofsted report
out of context and publish unvalidated SATs results, something they
needed the schools permission for but did not seek.

T am enclosing a short copy of the school's Ofsted report together with a
graph showing our SATS results for the last 4 years. In my opinion
neither of these documents indicate the picture painted to Cabinet.

The school's academie results may not be as the LEA would like but from
my position I see how hard the entire classroom based staff work to give
all the children a rounded education.

The school does not have a PTA so staff actively fund raise fo give the
children that little bit more. Every year we take all of KSZ to the
theatre, not always in Swindon. For many of our children this is the only
opportunity they will get to see live theatre. Likewise KSZ was aiso taken
ta the Tutonkhamen exhibition. Parents are asked to contribute towards
the cost but no child is refused a place if their parents can't or will not
pay. These can be very iong days but staff give the extra time freely.

Page 213



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



53 Severn Avenue
Haydon Wick
Swindon

SN2Z5 3LL

24™ July 2008
tear Cll Renard

As someone who lives in the ward that you represent I am writing to you
re the proposal to incorporate Penhill Primary School into Swindon
Academy.

T am Bursar at Penhill Primary School and have several concerns over this
proposal. Equally I understand that you may have little knowledge of aur
school and therefore are taking guidance from the people who should
have knowledge namely the LEA.

What concerns me is, if this is the right move for Penhill why did the
LEA, in their report to Cabinet, take statements from the Ofsted report
aut of context and publish unvalidated SATS results, something they
needed the schools permission for but did not seek.

I am enclosing a short copy of the school’s Ofsted report fogether with a
graph showing our SATs results for the last 4 years. In my opinion
neither of these documents indicate the picture painted to Cabinet.

The school's academic results may not be as the LEA would like but from
my position I see how hard the entire classroom based staff work to give
all the children a rounded education.

The school does not have a PTA so staff actively fund raise to give the
children that little bit more. Every year we take all of K52 to the
thegtre, not always in Swindon. For many of our children this is the only
opportunity they will get to see live theatre. Likewise K52 was also taken
1o the Tutankhamen exhibition, Parents are asked to contribute towards
the cost but no child is refused a place if their parents can't or will not
pay. These can be very fong days but staff give the extra time freely.

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



KS1 also get treats with theatre groups brought inte school. Trips and
outings always need subsiding from Schaol Fund as many of our parents
cannot afford the full price of the trip. Beside academic achievement we
provide a whole host of pastoral support and even a safe haven for some
¢hildren,

T am sure the Academy is doing great work with their children but one
year is not long enough Yo see any trends. How will our children be able to
access all that the Academy has to offer as we ore staying on the same
site and logistics will get in the way?

It is also very disappointing to hear the £2.3 million earmarked to bring
the school up to EU standards, may not be available if it does not join the
Academy. The only capital money spent on the school in last few years
has had to come from the schoels own budget which is limited. We have
been waiting for a promised car park for eight years!

What T would like to ask if that you listen te the people this affects most
namely parents, staff and Penhill Forum, mos? of whom are against this
proposal, befere you make a final decision,

Yours sincerely

Janet Lewis (Mrs)

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



Appendix 8

LOCAL AUTHORITY RESPONSES TO KEY ISSUES RAISED

Set out below are the responses of the Local Authority to a number of the key
issues raised during the consultation period for this proposal:

Key issues raised Local Authority responses

Moving from Community to Trust status for some schools may be an appropriate
Trust Status would be a better | way forward as a Trust partner, such as a local business
option for the school in terms of | or educational institution, may be able to help to drive up
raising standards and pupil standards and give a school renewed impetus. The
attainment advantage to a school of having trustees is that the
school is able to establish long-term formal
arrangements with identified partners who are committed
to furthering the educational aims of the school.
However, these advantages are already set up at the
Academy, which has close links to Honda, and
Marlborough School, and is building partnerships also
with others stakeholders in the borough, such as the FE
colleges. The main sponsor, ULT, is seeking to improve
the Academy by aligning the knowledge and skills of
partners with the needs of the Academy.

In general terms, the level of involvement from business
partners differs in Academies and Trust Schools.
Academy sponsors appoint the majority of governors to
governing bodies of their schools. In Trust schools, the
Trust can appoint either a minority or majority of
governors — the decision is made by the predecessor
governing body. Academy sponsors also contribute
financially. In the case of Trust schools, the Trust is not
expected to make any financial contribution.

It is considered that a separate Trust arrangement, would
not offer the pupils of Penhill Primary School a sufficient
step change to significantly improve standards. As
already stated, Penhill is on the DCSF list of ‘hard to
shift’ primary schools, and the DCSF requires the Local
Authority to take decisive action. The challenges that
the school faces are very significant and have persisted
for a number of years. The Local Authority considers
that an immediate structural solution is required, and that
inclusion within the Academy would enable a significant
and sustainable shift for Penhill pupils that a Trust
arrangement would be less likely to offer. A Trust
arrangement would not produce the re-structured
leadership that the Academy would bring and which is
essential to bring about the step change in performance
required at Penhill. See also ‘Alternative Options’ in the
body of the report.

Page 219



Appendix 8

Key issues raised Local Authority responses

Pupil attainment/standards at Penhill Primary School is on the DCSF list of 266 ‘hard to

Penhill Primary School are shift’ primary schools in England, out of approximately
improving and the last Ofsted 17,000 primaries nationally. The school has failed to
report reflected this. meet the floor target at Key Stage 2 in both English &

Maths for the last five years, despite being supported by
a Local Authority Task Group and a School Improvement
Action Plan. This has also been disappointing for the
Local Authority as support provided in similar
circumstances elsewhere has generally been effective.

Standards of pupil attainment at the end of 2007 were
inadequate and well below the national average,
although overall pupils made satisfactory progress. The
Ofsted inspection in September 2007 judged that
achievement overall across the school was satisfactory,
although performance was not consistent and varied
across year groups and subjects, and ‘many pupils
struggle to reach the expected level for their age’. Out of
the 27 areas graded by Ofsted, 23 received a grade 3
(satisfactory), two received a grade 2 (good- healthy
lifestyles and safe practices) and two a grade 4
(inadequate— the standards reached by learners, and the
attendance of learners). It received no grade ‘1’s.

Based on the 2007 key stage 2 SAT results, Penhill is
48™ out of 52 primary schools on the contextual value
added measure, and 52" out of 52 for average point
scores. This year (2008) 47% of Penhill pupils reached
the expected level in English, down from 62% last year.
62% reached the expected level in Maths, up from 44%
last year. The Government’s floor level for these targets
is 65% of pupils reaching the expected level. This
means that the school has failed to meet this floor level
for six years running. Further details are set out in
paragraphs 1.2,1.3 and 2.5 of the report and in the
consultation documents (Appendices 2 and 3).

There is no evidence that the The indicators so far are that the Academy is having a
Academy will raise attainment. | strong impact on standards and pupil attainment. At key
stage 2 this year (2008), 56% of pupils reached the
expected level in maths compared to 42% last year, and
in reading, 73% reached the expected level compared to
50% last year. At key stage 3, there have been
improvements in English this year from 53% of pupils
meeting the expected level, to 65%. In addition, Maths is
up from 44% to 55% and Science is up from 48% to
51%. At key stage 4, from 2006 to 2007, the % attaining
5 A*- Cs including English and Maths has moved for 5%
to 20% (and from 9% to 24% not including Maths and
English). There has been a significant drop in 2008, due

Page 220



Appendix 8

Key issues raised Local Authority responses

to a serious setback in mathematics.

The developing educational plans of the Academy
suggest that it will break out from the traditional year
group structures and move towards working with
vertically organised systems, where the needs of the
individual learner can be more readily met and
personalised. Students will be progressed according to
the ‘stage’ they are at in their development rather than
their chronological age. Such a development could
make it more difficult for the current Penhill Primary
School pupils to integrate into the Academy when they
move at age 11. Being within the Academy will therefore
help to remove or reduce a number of the transition
issues between primary and secondary, which
traditionally is when pupil performance dips — accepting
of course that Penhill pupils would remain on a separate
site. Further details are set out in paragraph 2.5 of the
report and in the consultation documents.

The expanded Swindon If Penhill Primary School became part of the Academy, it
Academy will be too large. would remain on its present site and continue to be fully
integrated into the local Penhill Community. Although
part of a larger school, it is considered that this would not
‘feel’ the case. The Academy focuses on personalised
learning and care for pupils as individuals, and this would
apply equally to those pupils based in the new Pinehurst
building when it opens in 2009/10. Pupils at Penhill
would remain on their own site but would have the
advantage of having access to state of the art facilities
available in the Pinehurst building. The ULT consultation
document provides further details — Appendix 3.

The funding for the buildings is | The refurbishment of Penhill Primary School is

only available to Penhill recognised as a high priority. There have been many

Primary if it is part of the demands on the Council’'s Capital resources over recent

expanded Academy. years, and funding has had to be targeted, particularly at
those schools with accommodation in the poorest
condition.

It is estimated that up to £2.3 million may be required to
refurbish and remodel the school if it becomes part of the
Academy. If the proposal does not proceed, the work
remains a high priority with a strong case to implement
improvements, but it is for Cabinet to determine how
funding is allocated to all major capital schemes,
including at Penhill. Further details of the proposed
improvements to the accommodation are included in the
ULT consultation document (Appendix 3).

Page 221



Appendix 8

Key issues raised Local Authority responses

Penhill Primary School is part As stated in the ULT consultation document (Appendix
of the local community. There | 3), there is a very strong emphasis placed on community

are concerns that this would involvement. ULT have made clear that the Penhill site
change if it became part of the | and buildings will serve the community of Penhill. It will
Academy. support regeneration initiatives and will be a facility for

the whole community to use.

It is intended that the Penhill site will offer a range of
facilities to the community including extended school
activities, a youth service provision and access to ICT
and business facilities, which would all be subject to a
Community Use Agreement between the Council and
ULT. There will also be close links established with other
schools, the colleges and local employers. In addition,
there are two Local Authority representatives on the
Academy Governing Body — the Lead Cabinet Member
for Children and the Group Director Children. Further
details are set out in the ULT consultation document —

Appendix 3.
The pre-statutory consultation | There was a thorough and extensive consultation
process did not provide a process carried out which lasted 6 weeks, from 1 June

proper opportunity for people to | until 14 July. Approximately 3500 households in Penhill
express their views, or to obtain | and other stakeholders were sent the Local Authority’s
answers and ULT’s consultation documents (Appendices 2 and
3). Five ‘formal’ consultation meetings were then held
over 9 and 12 June at Penhill Primary School. In each
case, presentations were made initially to explain the
proposal as fully as possible, and these were followed by
a Q and A session and an opportunity to put forward
views/comments. Representatives of the Local Authority,
ULT, DJB and Swindon Academy attended each of these
sessions and gave as full an answer as possible to each
guestion. The open offer of further consultation meetings
was made for staff, parents, governors or others,
although none were received.

A summary of the key issues raised at these meetings
and breakdown of the 357 response forms received is
together with responses from Penhill Governing Body,
trades unions and Swindon Academy were set out in the
report in July 2008 (see Appendix 5).

A separate and extensive consultation exercise was
carried by DJB, independent consultants appointed by
ULT. A summary of the results were reported to Cabinet
in July 2008 (see Appendix 5) and the full DJB report is
attached at Appendix 4.

Page 222



Appendix 8

Key issues raised Local Authority responses

Who are DJB and are they As indicated above, DJB are independent consultants
impartial? appointed by ULT. They are on the DCSF list of
approved consultants and have been commissioned by
ULT to undertake consultation exercises for proposed
Academies across the country. They do not work
exclusively to DJB and have been commissioned to do
work by a number of other organisations.

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 224



	Agenda
	4 Minutes.
	6 Proposal for the Closure of Penhill Primary School and Nursery to Allow the Expansion of Swindon Academy.
	Appendix 1(i) - Cabinet Report 31 October 2007
	Appendix 1(ii) - Ofsted Report - Penhill Primary School
	Appendix 1(iii) - Cabinet Report 23 January 2008
	Appendix 2 - LEA Consultation Form
	Appendix 3 - Consultation Document
	Appendix 4(i) - Consultation Report September 2008
	Appendix 4(ii) - Consultation Report September 2008 -2
	Appendix 4(iii) - Key Stakeholders Individual and Group Interviews
	Appendix 4(iv) - Summary of Penhill Pupils Views
	Appendix 4 (v) DJB Consultancy Report - Survey of Parents Opinion
	Appendix 5 -Cabinet Report 23 July 2008
	Appendix 5(i) - Consultation Response Form
	Appendix 5(ii) - Consultation Document
	Appendix 5(iii) - Summary of Consultation Carried Out by LEA
	Appendix 5(iv) - Governors Response
	Appendix 5(v) - Trade Unions and Academy Response
	Appendix 5(vi) - DJB Consultancy - Preliminary Report
	Appendix 5(vii) - LEA Responses to Key Issues Raised
	Appendix 6 - LEA Statutory Notice
	Appendix 7 - Responses to Statutory Consultation
	Appendix 7a - Response from Swindon Academy
	Appendix 7b - Response from Penhill Primary School
	Appendix 7c(i) - Response from NUT
	Appendix 7c(ii) - Response Letter
	Appendix 7d - Response from Penhill Forum
	Appendix 7e - Response from Sw Association of Primary Head Teachers
	Appendix 7f - Response from Penhill Primary School - 4
	Appendix 7g(i) - Response from Penhill Primary School - 5
	Appendix 7g(ii) - Response from Penhill Primary School - 3
	Appendix 7h(i)
	Appendix 7h(ii)
	Appendix 7h(iii)
	Appendix 7h(iv)
	Appendix 7h(v)
	Appendix 7h(vi)
	Appendix 7h(viii)
	Appendix 7h(viii) - Response Letter
	Appendix 7h(ix) - Response Letter
	Appendix 8 - LEA Responses to Key Issues Raised
	Appendix 9 - Department for Children and Families - Guidance Document


